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Company Profile

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. (Th e Třinec Iron and Steel Works), which was established 170 years ago, in 1839, is among the 

steel companies with the longest tradition in the Czech Republic. It produces 2.5 million tonnes of steel annually in an integrated 

metallurgical cycle, which represents more than one third of the total production of steel in the Czech Republic. Th e main product 

portfolio consists of long rolled products – wire rod, rebars and sections, special bar steel, rails, wide steel and semis. Additional 

products include coke, by-products resulting from production, artifi cial compact aggregates and granulated slag. Třinecké železárny is 

the biggest Czech steel company with local capital. Its majority owner is MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Th ese two companies together create 

one of the most considerable industrial groups in the Czech Republic. Th e basic strategy of the Třinecké železárny – Moravia Steel 

Group (TŽ – MS) is a dynamic increase in the growth of the share of long products with higher added value and its control within the 

up- and down-stream product chains. A gradual diversifi cation of the product portfolio increases our resistance to market swings.

Th e Třinecké železárny – Moravia Steel Group also includes companies that are part of the product chains of Třinecké železárny or 

which provide other services. Třinecké železárny holds a majority stake in 17 companies and signifi cant capital share in a further 10 

companies belonging to the Group. In 2008, the Třinecké železárny – Moravia Steel Group was enlarged to include Hanácké železárny 

a pérovny, a.s., Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. and D 5, akciová společnost Třinec. Th e production facilities included in the Třinecké 

železárny – Moravia Steel Group are located in Třinec, Kladno, Staré Měste u Uherského Hradiště, Bohumín, Česká Ves u Jeseníku, 

Ostrava, Dobrá u Frýdku-Místku, Kyjov, and Prostějov.

To date, Třinecké železárny has produced more than 160 million tonnes of steel, especially long rolled products, which have been 

placed on the domestic market as well as bought by customers all over the world. Moravia Steel sells the products of Třinecké železárny 

through its trade network. More than half of the annual production of high-quality steel products bearing the trademark of three 

hammers in a circle has been directed to customers in more than 50 countries worldwide. 

Th e corporate mission of Třinecké železárny “Together for the Next Generations” accents the role of the historically dominant 

industrial company which infl uences a region with approximately 100,000 citizens. Th e responsibility for the further development of the 

surrounding region is included in our corporate mission and vision. Th is annual report confi rms the successful fulfi lment of our mission 

and vision and achieved results.
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Characteristics of the Production Plants

Steel Production in Tinecké železárny Includes the Following Facilities:

In the Coke-Chemical Production plant, the production of coke for the needs of the company’s blast furnaces takes place. Two coke-

oven batteries of Koppers design heated by blended or coking gas work with ramming operation. Th ey are equipped with the facility for 

wet quenching of coke. Th e coke gas is desulphurised and supplied to the gas networks of Třinecké železárny for subsequent utilisation.

Numerous coke chemical products, especially crude coking tar, benzyl, and ammonium sulphate are produced in the consecutive 

chemical section.

Th e Iron and Steel Production plant comprises: • production of hot iron; and • steel production.

Sinter is the basic metal-bearing raw material for the production of hot iron. It is produced in two sintering plants; each equipped 

with two sintering belts. In 2007 and 2008, the renovation of electrostatic separators at sinter plant No.1 took place which signifi cantly 

reduced the amount of air pollution. Th e input material of the sintering plants consists of the powdery iron ores, dolomite, lime, 

pulverised coke, and reverse charging material resulting from production processes. 

Th e pig iron production itself takes place in two blast furnaces with bell-free throats equipped with automated control of furnace 

operation. Hot iron is transported to the converter plant in torpedo cars.

More than 98 percent of the Třinec steel is produced in the BOF converter plant based on the processing of hot iron with oxygen. Th e 

plant is equipped with top ladle metallurgy facilities, which enable chemical and temperature homogenisation, alloying, preheating, and 

vacuum degassing of steel. Converter steel is mostly cast at two continuous casting machines; approximately 5 percent of steel is teemed 

into ingots, especially the special steel grades. Continuous casting machine No. 1 is of a fi ve-strand design, with the possibility of casting 

rectangular blooms of 300 x 350 mm and circular blooms of diameters 320, 410, and 525 mm. Th e eight-strand continuous casting 

machine No. 2 enables the casting of square billets with sides of 150 mm. Th e automatic control system controls the whole converter 

process including the gas cleaning station. Th e small EAF steel plant producing special steel grades is also a part of the steel production 

section.

Th e metallurgical cycle is concluded by rolling mills, which are the most complex manufacturing units. Th ey consist of the rolling mill 

of blooms and heavy sections, rolling mill of wire rod and light sections in Třinec, and the universal strip mill in Bohumín.

Th e semis are delivered for further processing that ensures an increase in added value to: Sochorová válcovna TŽ located in Kladno, 

Válcovna trub TŽ located in Ostrava-Vítkovice and VÚHŽ in Dobrá. 

According to technology, the Rolling Mill of Blooms and Heavy Profi les is divided into two production lines: • blooming mill and 

reversing mill; and • medium section mill.

Th e continuously cast semis and ingots are rolled at the blooming mill into slabs and blocks, and then at the reversing mill into billets, 

heavy profi les, special profi les for railway accessories and rails. Th e medium section mill produces round bars, fl at bars, sections for 

railway accessories, parabolic springs, and mine rails.

Th e Rolling Mill of Wire Rod and Light Section plant consists of: • continuous light section mill; and • continuous wire rod mill.

Th e product portfolio produced at the continuous light section mill includes round bars and coils, fl at bars, hexagons, rebar, and angles. 

Th e mill was largely modernised; one of the results of the modernisation was the expansion of the product mix by special bar quality 

products. A substantial part of the output of the light section as well as wire rod mill is processed at the fi nalising facilities enabling 

heat treatment, peeling, drawing, or the combination of those operations based on customer specifi cations including the inspection of 

surface and internal defects.
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Th e modern continuous wire rod rolling mill with controlled cooling produces wire rod with diameters of 5.5 to 20 mm in two-tonne 

coils. It has the highest production capacity within the whole TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY – MORAVIA STEEL Group.

A part of the wire rod mill output is processed by the wire drawing mills in Staré Město u Uherského Hradiště, the screw mill in Kyjov, 

the spring mill in Prostějov, and the chain mill in Česká ves u Jeseníku, which is a part of the TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY – MORAVIA 

STEEL Group.

Th e Universal Strip Rolling Mill is located in Bohumín. It is equipped with the universal Laut 3-high stand and produces steel plates in 

widths from 150 to 520 mm and in thickness from 5 to 60 mm.

Th e accompanying products resulting from metallurgical production, such as blast furnace and steel slag, sludge, scales, debris and 

other wastes including those obtained from heaps are processed at the Secondary Raw Material Plant. It is equipped with three lines 

for magnetic separation, crushing and sorting machines, and machines for manipulation of the material. Th e plant also has a multi-

purpose environmental area together with a dumpsite for inert waste. 

Th e obtained metal-bearing material is returned for processing in the metallurgical process, slag aggregate is intended for users in the 

building industry. Debris is used for restoration. Sludge and granulated slag are processed in the cement plants. Th e remaining materials 

are disposed of as waste.
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Events of 2008

January

In 2007, a record volume of steel was produced in the Třinec BOF steel plants. Th e result is the highest number in the recent history. 

Labour productivity calculated as an amount of produced steel per employee reached 472 t/employee and surpassed the record of 2006 

by 7 tonnes. 

February

Th e process of issuance of collective documents shares and documents to shareholders was initialised, following the decision of the 

extraordinary General Meeting November 2007 regarding the change from book-entry form of shares to the certifi cate form of shares. 

March

Th e most signifi cant investment in the last fi fty years was commenced in the subsidiary VÚHŽ in Dobrá, which became a part of the 

TŽ – MS Group in 2007. Th e company VÚHŽ signifi cantly expanded production areas in its division – the Special Profi le Rolling 

Mill by the end of 2008. A total of CZK 20 million was spent with regard to this investment. Th is action will be followed by future 

investments in 2009 and 2012 and aimed at the implementation of a new portfolio of special sections. 

Th e most considerable ecological investment has been recently fi nished. Th e total reconstruction and modernisation of dedusting 

from sintering bands No. 1 and No. 2 of Sinter plant No. 1. Th e construction of a new facility based on eight segments of highly effi  cient 

cloth fi lters together with existing electrostatic separators makes it possible that the Sinter plant No. 1 has been ranked among the top 

European producers of sinter thanks to a signifi cant decrease in the amount of solid emissions from 100 mg to less than 50 mg/m3. 

April

Třinecké železárny became the only shareholder of Šroubárna Kyjov (screw mill). Th e Třinecké železárny – Moravia Steel Group has 

completed its product portfolio by a renowned producer of rail screws, nuts, bearing hanks, mining stirrups and accessories for special 

application such as rivets, turnbuckles, and anchor bolts. Th is acquisition is directly connected to Třinecké železárny material inputs. 

Třinecké železárny ranked in the prestigious competition the Czech TOP 100 once again. Based on the voting of a domestic jury, the 

Třinec company ranked fi rst in the 10th Czech TOP 100 competition in the fi eld of Metallurgy and Metal Treatment. On the whole, 

Třinecké železárny ranked eighth in ten most signifi cant Czech companies.

May

Th e reconstruction and modernisation of Garret coilers in the Continuous Light Section Mill was fi nished in May 2008. Th is allowed 

coiling bigger diameters of round bars to coils up to the weight of 2 tonnes. Yearlong construction of one of the major production 

investments in the last ten years reached CZK 350 million. After the modernisation, the production of coils in the Continuous Light 

Section Mill amounted to 100 kt from the previous 30 – 40 kt annually. In this way, Třinecké železárny enlarged the portfolio of the 

steel grades shifting them towards higher quality. 

Th e subsidiary Energetika Třinec came second in the Czech competition “Th e Energetic Project of 2007” and gained an award from the 

Ministry of Industry and Trade of Czech Republic for general overhaul, modernisation and reconstruction of the exhaust-heat boiler. 

Th e jury judged 19 projects by energetic, economic and environmental parameters. 

4.

6



June

Třinecké železárny obtained all the necessary integrated allowances from the regional authority of the Moravskoslezský region. Th e 

seven legitimate regulations determine the conditions for operation of steel complex consisting of coke and sinter production together 

with iron and steel making facilities and rolling mills as well. 

In the CZECH TOP 100 ranking, Moravia Steel, the dominant shareholder of Třinecké železárny, came seventh in the 10 most 

signifi cant Czech export companies by revenues in 2007. Moravia steel ranked fi rst in this prestigious ranking of the biggest Czech 

companies regarding the Moravskoslezský region with its revenues of CZK 26.8 billion. 

Třinecké železárny became the only shareholder of the D5 joint-stock company on 20 June 2008. 

July

Th e teachers of Technical High School in Frýdek-Místek gained a special training at Třinecké železárny aimed at new information about 

steel trends and particularly about technical facilities and the organisation of the steelmaking process. 

August

Třinecké železárny ranked second in the ecological competition “Entrepreneur of 2008 with regard to environmental protection in 

the Moravskoslezký region” in the category of entrepreneurs above 50 employees. Th e competition was part of the Development of the 

Moravian-Silesian Environmental Advisory and Information Centres Network project and focused on increasing the motivation of 

Moravian-Silesian businesses with regard to environment protection and implementation of environmental education. .

September

Th e 50th International Engineering Fair in Brno welcomed the Třinecké železárny – Moravia steel Group and honoured the Group with 

a loyalty prize as an acknowledgment of its participation in all fi fty Brno fairs to date. 

October

A new drawing facility for the drawing of steel from coils to bars was put into operation in the subsidiary Ferromoravia in Staré město 

u Uherského Hradiště. A total of CZK 90 million was expended with regard to this investment. Th is new facility should gradually 

replace the older, less effi  cient aggregates and signifi cantly increase the labour productivity. Th e advanced facility is connected with the 

investment of new Garret coilers in the Continuous Light Section Mill in Třinecké železárny.

November

Třinecké železárny employees have elected Vladislav Heczko and Roman Mitręga to the Supervisory Board. Th e new Supervisory Board 

members replaced Oldřich Cieslar and Jiří Stašák after their mandate period expired.

Th e subsidiary of Třinecké železárny, VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, which is the most signifi cant Czech producer of seamless steel tubes, put 

into operation a modernised main production line – Big Mannesmann. Th e total expenses of the renovation and modernisation that is 

historically the greatest investment in this rolling mill reached approximately CZK 700 million.

December

A public auction of Třinecké železárny’s certifi cate shares not yet assumed by the shareholders took place in Brno on 16 December. 

No bid was made during the public auction. A repeated public auction will be held in 2009. Th e competent shareholders have still the 

opportunity to assume the certifi cate form of shares. 

Because of the rapid decline in demand for rolled goods in the last months of 2008, production regulation was initialised. Th e longest 

shutdown of production aggregates happened in December when the rolling in the majority of rolling mills was stopped for two weeks. 

Th e reversing mill was the only exception as it only stopped running during Christmas.

Th e management and trade union of Třinecké železárny suspended negotiations regarding a new Collective Agreement for 2009 due to 

the present economic and fi nancial crisis. Th e validity of the Collective Agreement from 2008 was prolonged through the end of March 

2009 and all the conditions of the contract remain valid. 
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Selected Economic Indicators 2004 – 2008

INDICATOR UNIT 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Pig iron production kt 1 873 1 979 1 814 2 033 2 074 1 983

Crude steel production kt 2 333 2 427 2 248 2 516 2 563 2 448

 Of this continuous castings kt 2 164 2 255 2 104 2 356 2 401 2 296

Sales of rolled products including steel kt 2 190 2 301 2 205 2 366 2 392 2 301

Total revenues CZK mil. 22 579 32 193 35 038 35 087 36 905 40 308

Income from sales of products, goods and services CZK mil. 21 034 29 276 30 827 31 675 35 553 37 095

Export share* % 49.8 48 48.1 51.1 50.8 52.1

Total costs excluding tax CZK mil. 22 053 28 709 32 317 31 673 32 381 38 791

Profit CZK mil. 518 2 575 2 068 2 684 3 633 1 204

Consolidated profit CZK mil. 701 2 737 2 027 2 795 4 151 1 409

Total assets CZK mil. 18 395 19 511 21 495 22 899 24 343 24 724

Long-term tangible fixed assets (depreciated) CZK mil. 20 479 21 421 22 112 22 980 23 525 24 409

Adjustments CZK mil. 12 311 12 936 13 179 13 749 14 539 15 163

Amortisation % 60.1 60.4 59.6 59.8 61.8 63.0

Equity CZK mil. 11 264 13 030 14 538 16 404 18 010 19 214

Capital investments CZK mil. 1 305 1 201 1 418 1 225 832 1 010

Not-own capital including other liabilities CZK mil. 7 131 6 482 6 957 6 495 6 333 5 509

Employees (average adjusted total) persons 5 777 5 599 5 519 5 417 5 428 5 539

Average monthly wage CZK/person 20 980 22 840 23 662 24 858 26 799 27 402

Steel production per employee t/person 404 433 407 465 472 442

* including exports through MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

5.

STEEL PLANTS

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY HAS PRODUCED 

ALMOST  MILLION TONS OF STEEL 

DURING ITS EXISTENCE
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Statutory Bodies and Company Management6.

František Ligocki Vladislav Heczko Roman Mitręga

Hanns Kurt ZöllnerJán ModerTomáš Chrenek Pablo Alarcón Espinoza Evžen Balko Jozef Blaško

Jan CzudekJaroslava CiahotnáJiří Cieńciała Jan Lasota Česlav Marek Petr Matuszek

Supervisory Board

T ITLE NAME RESIDENCE CHANGES

Chairman Tomáš Chrenek Praha 1, Nové Město, Ve Smečkách 1326/11, Postcode 110 00

1st Vice-Chairman Ján Moder Bystřice 1241, Postcode 739 95

2nd Vice-Chairman Hanns Kurt Zöllner 6314 Unteraegeri, Zimmelstrasse 68, Switzerland

Member Pablo Alarcón Espinoza Madrid, Serrano Galvache 42, Kingdom of Spain

Member Evžen Balko Bystřice 1241, Postcode 739 95

Member Jozef Blaško Košice, Československého odboja 74, Slovak Republic, Postcode 04 001

Member František Ligocki Jablunkov 311, Postcode 739 91

Member Oldřich Cieslar Mosty u Českého Těšína, Školní 97, Postcode 735 62 Till 14.11.2008

Member Jiří Stašák Český Těšín, Kolonie 3, Postcode 737 01 Till 14.11.2008

Member Vladislav Heczko Návsí 316, Postcode 739 92 Since 14.11.2008

Member Roman Mitręga Bystřice 458, Postcode 739 95 Since 14.11.2008

Board of Directors

T ITLE NAME RESIDENCE

Chairman Jiří Cieńciała Vendryně 902, Postcode 739 94

1st Vice-Chairwoman Jaroslava Ciahotná Komorní Lhotka 350, Postcode 739 53

2nd Vice-Chairman Jan Czudek Jablunkov 373, Postcode 739 91

Member Jan Lasota Třinec III – Kanada, Nad Úvozem 264, Postcode 739 61

Member Česlav Marek Třinec, Oldřichovice 202, Postcode 739 61

Member Petr Matuszek Český Těšín, Pod Zvonek 889/44, Postcode 737 01

Company Management

T ITLE NAME

General Director Jiří Cieńciała

Financial Director Jaroslava Ciahotná

Human Resources and Administration Director Boguslaw Heczko 

Production Director Česlav Marek

Technical Director Henryk Huczala

Investment Director Jan Czudek
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Introductory Word of the Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board

Dear Shareholders, Customers, Partners, and Employees,

Th e year 2008 showed us two faces. Th e fi rst favourable one lasted over the fi rst three 

quarters of the year and continued the previous extremely successful period. Th e second 

one was characterised by a considerable drop of demand as a consequence of the fi nancial 

crisis. Despite the diffi  culties brought by the crisis, we succeeded in achieving profi t before 

taxation in the amount of CZK 1.517 billion, that is about one third compared to the 

previous year, which stands as a record success.

Th e level of added value also decreased to CZK 5.94 billion, which is a drop by 25.5 percent 

compared to 2007. Th e sales of our products declined by 3.8 percent to the level of 2,301 kilotonnes year-on-year.

Th e global fi nancial crisis, which started in the second half of 2008, perceivably hit Europe as well as the Czech 

Republic in the last quarter of 2008. As the statistics and forecasts of the World Steel Association show, the automotive 

industry, a signifi cant market segment for our products, faces extensive problems. Steel consumption dropped by more 

than 20 percent on a year-on-year basis in the automotive segment. Th e price index plummeted by 40 percent from the 

maximum values of summer 2008. Th e year-on-year decline in global steel production was 27 percent.

Th ese trends will continue in 2009. Even optimistic forecasts do not expect improvement earlier than at the end of 2009. 

Th e return to the level of previous years will be slow and it could even last several years.

Th ese circumstances defi ne the situation we are now facing. Nevertheless, the fi nancial results of previous years are 

the guaranty of surviving the period of crisis. Successfully coping with the crisis is also credited to the foresighted 

management of Třinecké železárny and the devotion of our employees.

Th e investment activities of 2008 were both well planned and successfully managed with regard to the crisis. Our Group 

increased by two companies whose production fi t into our strategy of downstream product chains. We completed the 

7.
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environmental investments at the sinter plant; this resulted in a signifi cant decrease in dust emissions as well as a 

substantial drop in dioxin and furans. Th e installation of the Garret coilers at the light section rolling mill enabled us 

to produce two-tonne coils of steel of a diameter up to 50 mm. We invested CZK 1.5 billion in the development of our 

subsidiary companies; this sustains our long term eff orts to maximise the value of product within our product chains.

In 2009 we will celebrate the 170th anniversary of the establishment of our company. During that time, Třinecké 

železárny faced complicated situations, however all of them were successfully overcome. I believe that the solid 

framework of our corporate culture, mutual goodwill, and team spirit in the relationships of shareholders, 

management, employees, as well as of our partners will signifi cantly contribute to successfully overcoming the 

complicated situation we are now facing.

 Tomáš Chrenek

 Chairman of the Supervisory Board

COKE PRODUCTION PLANT

THE FIRST COKE PRODUCTION PLANT 

IN TŘINEC WAS BUILT IN 
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Board of Directors’ Report

Development of the Macroeconomic Environment and Competition

In 2008, the Czech Republic witnessed the lowest gross domestic product growth of past six years, which climbed year on year by 

3.1 percent. Foreign trade and industrial production which have been drivers of the Czech economy were infl uenced mostly by the 

signifi cantly diff erent development in the last two quarters of 2008 compared with previous years. Th e alternations caused by the 

fi nancial crisis, particularly a decline in export orders and tightening credit conditions led to unprecedented performance drops in the 

Czech economy as well as in Europe and as a consequence caused an increase in stock levels and work in progress. In relation to foreign 

trade, neither export nor import reached the level of 2007. Th e negative contribution of foreign trade to gross domestic product growth 

is due to the decline of total goods export volume (–8.4 percent) which is higher than the decline of the goods import volume (–6.2 

percent). 

In 2008, steel production in the Czech Republic fell year on year by almost 10 percent, from 7.1 million tonnes to 6.4 million tonnes. 

Třinecké železárny’s share in this volume is 38.3 percent which represents year-on-year growth of 2 percent. Th e Czech Republic’s trade 

balance showed year-on-year growth in imported steel products by 4.8 percent due to the increased import of semis and fl at products. 

Conversely, the export of steel products declined by 5.5 percent, particularly regarding semis and steel tubes. Th e portfolio of long and 

fl at rolled products witnessed a partial decrease in exports as well. Considering the total balance, the drop in the debit balance was 

slightly reduced and reached the value of CZK 18,155 million. Th is result is principally due to the year-on-year increase in export prices 

and decrease in import prices. For the fi rst time the average import price fell below the level of the average export price of steel products. 

With regard to the annual consumption of steel products, the Czech Republic placed third and ranked in the top global category once 

again. Th e per capita consumption of steel products is nearly 250 kg higher than the average in EU countries, where it amounted to 

378 kg per capita in 2008.

8.

TRANSPORT

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY USES ON ITS AREA 

RAILWAY TRACKS WITH THE LENGTH OF  KM 

WITH  SWITCHES AND  GRADE CROSSINGS
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Th e metallurgical industry worldwide was hit by the global fi nancial and economic crisis in the second half of 2008. Many steel companies were 

forced to regulate production and consequently to implement cost cutting in all operational fi elds due to a rapid decline in demand. Economy 

measures, staff  reduction, investment loss and deceleration of the implementation of strategic investments focus on the internal effi  ciency and 

rationality of all activities in the metallurgical fi eld. 

Th e total global production of crude steel in 2008, in accordance with the statistics of the World Steel Association, recorded a decrease of 

–1.2 percent compared to 2007 and reached 1,329.7 million tonnes. Nevertheless, 2008 is the second consecutive year that world steel production 

has been over 1,300 million tonnes. Th e production of crude steel declined in EU-27 (−5.3 percent), North America (−5.5 percent) and South 

America (−1.4 percent), and Russia (−5.4 percent). Conversely, Asia, particularly China, but also the Middle East recorded an increase in crude 

steel production in 2008. Worldwide steel production has shown an acceleration in negative growth from September to the 2008 year-end, 

when the highest decrease of –24.3 percent compared to 2007 was recorded in December 2008. China became the fi rst country ever to produce 

more than 500 mmt in one year, to be exact China’s crude steel production in 2008 reached 502 mmt which presents an increase of 2.6 percent 

compared to 2007. Since 2002, when China’s production reached “only” 222 million tonnes, the production volume has more than doubled. 

China’s share of world steel production already represents 38 percent of world total crude steel.

Shareholder Structure

  OTHER COMPANIES

  NATUR AL PERSONS

  MOR AVIA S TEEL A .S.

  F INITR ADING, A .S .

  CMC IN TERNAT IONAL AG

0.02 % 3.58 %

16.34 %

11.00 %

69.05 %

e 0.02 % 3.53.58 %

34 %%

11.00 %%

6699.055

STEEL CASTING

TŘINEC ROUND BLOOM OF  MM 

IN DIAMETER RANKS AMONG THE BIGGEST 

ONES OF ITS KIND IN EUROPE
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Production and Position on the Market

Because of a decline in demand at the end of 2008 Třinecké železárny had to initiate forced regulation of production, which aff ected the 

production of pig iron and rolled products. Třinecké železárny produced 1,983 kt of pig iron and 2.448 kt of hot steel in 2008. Th e total 

production of fi nished products reached 2,301 kt. 

In the middle of 2008, Třinecké železárny enlarged the portfolio of steel grades with higher added value thanks to the new Garret 

coiling line designated for production of coils at the Continuous Light Section Mill. Th is line enables coiling of steel coils of diameter 

16 – 50 mm and of a weight up to 2 tonnes together with more than doubling of the coiling capacity. Th e subsidiaries that are a part of 

the TŽ product chain invested in the improvement of product quality as well. Th e most signifi cant investment was the construction of 

walking-beam furnace in Sochorová válcovna TŽ, renovation and modernisation of the rolling mill of the Big Mannesmann in Válcovna 

trub TŽ, and the building of a new composite drawing facility in Ferromoravia. 

Th e total sales of rolled goods, including castings, reached a year-on-year decrease of 91t and thus amounted to 2,301 kt. Rolled products 

and castings were sold exclusively through the Moravia Steel trade network. 

Th e total share of domestic deliveries reached 48 percent. As in previous years, wire rod was the best selling product of Třinecké 

železárny. Th e total sales of products from this assortment amounted to 820 kt and 58 percent of the produced wire rod was exported to 

foreign markets. Th e sales of rails, where Třinecké železárny is the only Czech producer, recorded an increase of 8 percent compared to 

2007 and exceeded 254 kt. Th is assortment is successfully sold especially on foreign markets, particularly in Germany, Canada, USA and 

Switzerland.

Developments in the automotive industry, building industry and machinery have stimulated the demand for our sections and bar steel. 

Although a rapid decline in demand took place in the last quarter of 2008, the total sales of this assortment have grown year on year by 

13 percent, amounting to 428 kt. Th e export share of total sales of sections and bar steel was 46 percent.

A part of Třinecké železárny’s strategy is to produce higher-added-value products. Th at is why the total sales of rebars dropped by 

19 percent year on year and amounted to 112 kt. 

WORKS AND THE TOWN

TŘINEC WORKS SPREADS THE AREA OF  

HECTARES; TŘINEC BECAME A TOWN IN  WHEN 

WORKS WAS  YEARS
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Total sales divided into product groups 2006 – 2008 (kt)

  WIRE ROD SEMIS SECT IONS AND BARS REBARS R AILS WIDE STEEL

Export 2006 559 150 127 107 204 48

2007 303 167 207 71 200 45

2008 478 190 206 63 217 44

Domestic 2006 329 490 224 91 26 11

2007 523 478 171 62 36 13

2008 342 441 222 49 37 12

Total 2006 888 640 351 198 230 59

2007 826 645 378 133 236 58

2008 820 631 428 112 254 56

0 300100 200 4 00 600500

DOMES T IC  E X POR T

Domestic and export sales in 2008 (kt)

WIDE S T EEL
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Total sales volume between 2006 – 2008 (kt)
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Investments and Modernisation

Th e technical development projects plan in 2008 is a part of the fi ve-year business plan and fully corresponds with the commercial – 

production strategy of the TŽ-MS Group defi ned as “Dynamic growth in the share of long products with a higher added value and its 

control within the up- and downstream product chains.” We focused investments on modernisation activities, which will enable us to 

further increase the share of more sophisticated products in place of the plain steel grades, further diversifi cation of production and also 

further environmental protection, based on the conclusions of the integrated permissions, and the renewal of the existing production 

facilities.

We continued in the completion of the 15 construction projects initiated in the previous years. Th e implementation of 33 new projects 

commenced. As far as the volume of investments is concerned, the major construction projects in 2008 include:

–  Reconstruction of the electrostatic separators at sinter plant No. 1 – ecological investment, which signifi cantly reduced the amount of 

emissions under the level of 50mg/m3;

–  Increase the continuity of fi nishing and detection lines in the light section rolling mill – this investment enables us to meet customers’ 

demands for bars together with the inspection of surface and internal defects;

–  Replacement of the grinding machine in the long billet cleaning shop – the new grinding machine enables full-surface grinding of 

billets aimed at production of high-grade wire rods and bars;

–  Th e Garret coilers were put into operation – the new coilers provide the production of bars in coils with diameters of 16 to 50 mm in 

two-tonne coils;

–  Out-of-furnace hot metal desulphurisation – a facility with a signifi cant impact on the environment as well as on operating expenses.

–  Th e signifi cant investments continuing into the coming period are:

–  Reconstruction of the washer for benzol absorption; 

–  Reconstruction of the coke unloading from railway wagons together with dedusting; 

–  Replacement of fi lling crane 250/63/20tonnes at the BOF steel plant; 

–  Increase the continuity of fi nishing and detection lines in the light section rolling mill – third stage.

A total of CZK 1031 million was expended with regard to investments in 2008, divided into CZK 1010 million on investments and CZK 

21 million on operating expenses.

CONTINUOUS WIRE ROD 

ROLLING MILL

OUR CUSTOMERS APPRECIATE PARTICULARLY 

THE TOP QUALITY OF OUR HIGHCARBON WIRE 

ROD THAT IS MARKED AS THE BEST IN EUROPE
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Technology and Research

Th e technology of Třinecké železárny controls the product fl ow from the production of hot steel through the rolling mills to the 

fi nalisation lines through technological regulations and instructions. Th ey are closely connected to the research and development 

activities, or innovation based on the needs of customers. In relation to these facts, 79 new steel grades were introduced or upgraded in 

2008.

Th e technology and its exacting character is closely related to the quality. Standard assurance and evaluation of the production quality is 

above all provided through 12 supporting product groups as well as through quality meetings; both are connected with the profi tability 

and feedback from the most signifi cant customers.

In 2008 the start of two facilities for out-of-furnace hot metal desulphurisation was managed at the converter steel plant. Th e test of the 

new casting bloom of 300 × 385 mm, used for production of rails, was commenced at the bloom continuous caster. Th e production of 

round ingots especially of higher steel grades for Válcovny trub TŽ started at the EAF steel plant.

Th e technology of rails production was stabilised at the bloom and heavy section mill; this enabled the record annual production of rails.

After the controlled rolling of the SBQ bars had been mastered at the light section mill, attention was paid to the possibility of their 

winding into coils. Th e new investment of Garret coilers enabled the rolling mill to increase the fl exibility of products from rebars, 

through sections up to the SBQ bars, including steel in two-tonne coils. Th is investment includes the technology of accelerated and 

decelerated cooling of coils in the diameter range of 16 to 50 mm.

Within the rolling technology, we extended the production of high carbon wire rods (cords and wires for pre-stressed concrete), screw 

high-tensile wire rods, bearing wire rods, and above all the spring wire rods.

Th e wire rod production is connected with the fi nalising line – spherical annealing in the STC furnaces to the surface treatment 

connected with the equalisation drawing at the STAKU line.

Th e technological activities in TŽ do not directly relate to the TŽ facilities only, but are connected with the fi nalising technologies of 

Třinec products within the subsidiaries.

In 2008 a total of 57 research assignments were completed, of which 42 had commenced in 2007. 

A total of 15 technological and research projects were commenced:

–  Measuring of emissions at the quenching tower during the coke quenching;

–  Continuous measurement of SO3 and O2 concentration at the chemical part of the coke plant; 

–  Verifi cation of the calculation of the specifi c need of heat for coking in the TŽ coke plant; 

–  Controlled cooling of rails;

–  Research and development of new tool steels for wood cutting knives; 

–  Development, verifi cation, and production start up of controlled cooling of spring steel in coils after controlled rolling; 

–  Increasing the utility value of steels determined for production of high strength chains;

–  Research and development of new possibilities of environmental processing of the metallurgical waste, and recycling of secondary 

materials;

–  Research, development and verifi cation of new technologies for the production of the 9 Cr tubes for power engineering; 

–  Research, development and verifi cation of microwave technologies in metallurgy;

–  Out-of-furnace desulphurisation of the hot metal;

–  Development of the technology for reducing surface and internal defects of the continuously cast billets;

–  Research and optimisation of the production of special steels for accessory materials for welding; 

–  Research and optimisation of the effi  ciency of the protection of the casting fl ow to ingot-moulds, development and design of the 

technology of bearing steel production with Ti contents up to 20 ppm including optimisation of the methodology of determining the 

Ti content in TŽ;

–  Research and optimisation of continuous casting at the bloom CCM.

170 years
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A total of 38 technological projects were completed:

–  Measuring of emissions at the quenching tower during the coke quenching; 

–  Development and introduction of the technique of SBQ grades production;

–  36 sub-projects within project FI-IM2/043: “New progressive technological procedures of the production of steel products” 

Other signifi cant projects completed in 2008:

–  Research of conditions and creation of a model of the occurrence of chemical non-homogeneity, tension states, and dislocation of 

material at continuous casting of steel;

–  Development and verifi cation of new technological procedures of production of ultra-clear bearing steel designated for the automotive 

and aerospace industry.

Th ese technological projects were completed within the Impuls and Tandem programmes of the Czech Ministry of Industry and Trade 

with state support and in the form of in-house projects.

Environment

Air Protection

Th e year-on-year trend in air pollution is unambiguously positive.

Th e sources of emissions at the Iron and Steel Production plant have the most signifi cant share in this result, especially the sintering 

belts of the sinter plant, converter steel plant and some sources at the blast furnaces. Th e implemented environmental projects also had 

favourable eff ects. Another reason for the lower emissions was the regulation of production at the end of 2008.

Table: Amount of emissions to the air in 2008 compared to the previous year

YE AR SOLID POLLUTANTS ( T / Y ) SULPHUR DIOXIDE ( T / Y ) NITROGEN OXIDES ( T / Y ) CARBON MONOXIDE ( T / Y ) OTHER EMISSIONS ( T / Y )

2007 1 132 2 170 1 563 73 337 174

2008 832 1 440 934 47 166 99

SECONDARY RAW MATERIALS

AT PRESENT WE PROCEED ALL SLAGS FOR CEMENT 

PRODUCTION AND ROAD CONSTRUCTIONS; MOREOVER 

WE ARE GRADUALLY EXPLOITING SLAG FROM DUMP 

THAT HAS ARISED DURING ALL THE HISTORY OF TŽ
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Water Protection

Th e volume of industrial waste water released to the waterway of the Olše river and the rate of pollution in the water show values 

in 2008 similar to those in the previous year. Th e quality of the waste water is at a good level with regard to the fulfi lment of the set 

pollution limits.

In 2008 no accidental leakage of harmful substances was recorded which would have resulted in a hazard or lowering of the quality of 

surface as well as underground water.

Table: Pollution discharged to the waterways in 2008 compared to 2007 (data for the whole TŽ area)

YE AR VOLUME OF 

WAS TEWATER

[ m3/year]

UNDISSOLVED 

SUBSTANCES

[ t /year]

NON-POL AR E X TR ACTED 

SUBSTANCES

[ t /year]

DISSOLVED 

INORGANICAL SALTS

[ t /year]

CHEMICAL OX YGEN 

CONSUMPTION USING 

DICHROMATIC ME THOD 

[ t /year]

TOTAL IRON

[ t /year]

2007 4 998 445 72 3.6 2 765 88 7.8

2008 5 004 735 68 4.9 2 623 106 7.3

Waste Disposal

Currently, the production of waste in TŽ is stable, free of fl uctuations. It is predominantly dependent on the volume of the steel 

production and varies around 100 kg per tonne of produced steel.

In 2008, a total of 212 kt of waste were produced in TŽ; this represents a slight increase compared to 2007, which is caused mainly by 

waste which occurred during the investment projects (excavated soil, debris) and because of the maintenance and repair of the facilities 

(exchange of railway sub-base) etc.

Table: Volume of waste deposited at the Neboranka dumping site

DEPOSITED ( T ) CHARGE*

Year Total Year Total Year Total

2007 6 787 2 020 4 767 698 292 400

2008 3 222 1 768 1 454 951 444 400

AUTOMATION 

AND DRIVING SYSTEM

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY HOLDS WORLD SUPREMACY 

IN ELECTRIFICATION OF ROLLING MILL DRIVE 

FROM 
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Environmental Investments

In 2008, the following environmental projects were commenced or completed (settled by investment resources, the repair fund, or from 

the operational costs):

–  Reconstruction of electric separators at the sinter plant No. 1 (2006 – 2008);

–  Reconstruction of the tubing of Blast furnace No. 6 to dedust the skip pits (2008);

–  Reconstruction of the emissions measurement of the hot stoves of blast furnaces No. 4 and 6 (2008);

–  Reconstruction of the secondary dusting off  of the converter steel plant (2008 – 2011);

–  Technical reclamation of the Neboranka dumping site (2008 – 2012);

–  Dusting off  of the crusher No. 2 (2007 – 2008).

In 2008, a total of CZK 34.2 million was covered by the investment resources (besides the redevelopment and projects covered by 

operational resources).

Emissions of Greenhouse Gases

Th e emissions of greenhouse gases in 2007 amounted to 2,661,643 tonnes, the specifi c emissions are 1.039 tonnes of carbon dioxide per 

tonne of steel.

Th e volume of greenhouse gas emissions in 2008 reached the level of 2,712,074 tonnes. Th is represents a year-on-year increase by 1.89 

percent. Th e main reason for higher emissions is the stricter monitoring set by legislation, especially the procedure of setting up the 

emission factors of the cogeneration gases according to their chemical composition. Th e specifi c emissions of carbon dioxide reached 

the value of 1.108 tonnes per tonne of crude steel.

Employees

In 2008, management, in the scope of human resources, was focused primarily on the accomplishment of the long-term goals and 

objectives resulting from the personnel strategy and policy encompassed in the Business Plan. Fulfi lment of the personnel strategy and 

policy leads to the eff ective rejuvenation of the workforce and staffi  ng all recent as well as future projects and processes.

In connection with these aspects, the process of shared services for selected personnel and accounting activities as well as the process of 

agency employment was developed in 2008. Th e type of agency employment was tailored to current needs.

Considerable attention was paid to securing personnel replacements. 

Gradual modernisation and environmental care of facilities required qualitative changes in the structure of professions. Th is was 

ensured by controlled selection of graduates of apprentice schools and secondary schools, either to new working positions or to positions 

made vacant by the natural fl uctuation. 

Low fl uctuation was maintained during the year and employees in key professions were stabilised. Co-operating with the selected 

personnel agencies we acquired new qualifi ed employees, mainly graduates of technical schools. 

In order to achieve the required number of technically profi cient employees, well-proven methods of personnel marketing were used: 

co-operation with all kinds of schools, Trainee Centre, the section Career on our webpage as well as services of selected personnel 

agencies including the Labour Market Institute. Th e model of cross border co-operation with the aim of broadening the attraction zone 

of new potential employees with technical education is newly developed. 

Th e process of transforming the secondary school Třinec-Kanada into a private school has been commenced; this will prepare 

specialists with regard to the needs of the TŽ – MS Group.

Th rough education of employees, further development of the intellectual capital was achieved. Th e qualifi cation requirements were 

fulfi lled at the level of 70 percent for all employees, the year-on-year growth was 5 percent. Besides the professional preparation, the 

education was oriented towards to training relating to the standard ISO/TS 16949, preparation of managers, and improving language 

skills.

20



Th e health care of employees was enhanced through activities within the health programmes, such as recuperation vacations in spas, 

topical programmes for selected groups of employees (healthy back, managing stress), group sessions for quitting smoking, weight 

reduction, fl u vaccinations, vitamins, health days in the plants.

Th e rate of employee satisfaction refl ects the level of corporate activities connected to the human resources management. Based on the 

measurement of employee satisfaction, the positive trend and the result achieved in 2008 is the best result in the last ten years.

Consistent expansion of the safety and occupational health policy resulted in a reduction in labour accidents. Th e number of labour 

accidents with an absence over 3 calendar days decreased in 2008 to 12, which is also an historical minimum. Th e labour accident 

frequency per 100 employees dropped to 0.22. Th e labour accident frequency per million hours reached the value of 1.34. Th is ranks our 

company in fi rst place among steel producers.

In 2008, the motivation of employees focused on fulfi lling and exceeding the production plan indicators, maintaining required quality, 

and implementing investment and environmental projects. Changes in the staff  evaluation system enabled the diff erentiation of 

remuneration in order to increase focus.

Th e social harmony was maintained by the observation of the Corporate Collective Agreement and Social Code with a view to retaining 

a high standard in the area of social benefi ts.

At the end of the year, the human resources work was infl uenced by the irregular operation of the facilities because of the fi nancial 

crisis. In connection with this fact, preventive measures in the personnel strategy were under preparation.

In 2007, the average recalculated headcount grew by 111 to 5,539. Th e reason for the growing number was the environmental adjustment 

of selected facilities (dusting off  the sinter plant fumes), the technological development projects (out-of-furnace desulphurisation of hot 

metal) and transfer of key activities from the labour agencies and purchasing of services to the permanent staff  of TŽ.

COKE PRODUCTION PLANT

SINCE  TŘINEC COKE PLANTS HAVE PRODUCED 

 MILLION TONS OF COKE
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Table: Th e average adjusted count of employees by category of activities

CATEGORY OF ACT IVIT IES

2006 2007 2008

persons % persons % persons %

Steel products total 2084 38.47 2104 38.76 2152 38.85

In which:

– coke and chemical production 275 5.08 276 5.08 276 4.98

– blast furnace production and charge preparation 419 7.73 419 7.72 421 7.60

– steel production 469 8.66 469 8.64 493 8.90

– rolled material production 921 17.00 940 17.32 962 17.37

Engineering production 47 0.87 49 0.90 49 0.88

Power engineering plant 59 1.09 58 1.07 58 1.05

Transport 600 11.08 601 11.07 592 10.69

Repairs and maintenance 902 16.65 934 17.21 942 17.01

Managerial activities 312 5.76 314 5.78 315 5.69

Administrative activities 604 11.15 603 11.11 650 11.73

Technical development and design 433 7.99 396 7.30 414 7.47

Services and other activities 376 6.94 369 6.80 367 6.63

TŽ total 5,417 100.00 5,428 100.00 5,539 100.00

Ensuring and achieving personal strategy goals embedded in the Business Plan will require the following in the following period:

–  Exerting the policy of salary diff erentiation and development of motivational systems in order to reach higher involvement of 

individual interests with corporate objectives and stabilising the key employees;

–  Deepening the effi  ciency of established shared services in selected personnel and accounting activities;

–  Fulfi lling the Corporate Collective Agreement and Social Codex provisions in order to maintain the social harmony;

–  Increasing the qualifi cation of employees in correspondence with the development of new technologies and introducing the new 

products and product chains;

–  Completing the transformation of the secondary school in Třinec-Kanada into the Třinec private school as of 1 September 2009;

–  Maintaining the existing key professions;

–  Recruitment of graduates from the labour market and border regions;

–  Ensuring the needs of new professions, solved by the controlled selection of appropriate university graduates to the trainee 

programmes;

–  Ensuring co-operation with schools;

–  Achieving a higher level of individuals’ identifi cation with the set corporate objectives;

–  Ensuring the needs of technical specialists through eff ective personnel marketing; and

–  Emphasis on the long-term prospects of studying the technical subjects with the possibility of employing graduates of these branches 

within the TŽ – MS Group with reference to our mission “Together for the generations to come”.

Management System

Th e strategic management model of TŽ consists of the performance control indicator system “Balanced Scorecard” (BSC) and the 

reporting system providing the feedback necessary for determination and checking the fulfi lment of the strategic objectives.

In order to effi  ciently fulfi l the strategic objectives, three essential tools are used in TŽ – control of the organisational structure, process 

management and project management.

Th e information platform of TŽ is the SAP system, based on which the automatic control of BSC, reporting, and investment control was 

implemented. Th e introduction of the APS system resulted in optimal production planning as well as the guarantee of amounts and 

terms of deliveries to the customers.

During 2008, the regulations of process management were implemented into the integrated quality management system (QMS) and 

environmental management system (EMS). Another substantial change of the management system was the implementation of the 

quality system pursuant to the ISO/TS 16949 Standard, which assures the continuity of TŽ capability as the supplier of long rolled 

products for the automotive industry. 
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TŽ has an equity share in 27 companies, either with the deciding vote or a substantial minor vote. Th e majority of the TŽ subsidiary 

companies focus on activities related directly or indirectly to the business in the steel industry and this focus corresponds to the long 

term business strategy of TŽ.

Th e TŽ capital shares are managed by means of the representatives in the statutory bodies of those companies and is focused on the 

creation of strategic objectives, co-ordination of the business plans, creation of investment, fi nancial, and commercial strategies, as 

well as unifying the main processes. Th e objective of all entities’ management within the TŽ Group is increasing their value; their 

contribution to the group is regularly checked and evaluated in the form of analyses and reporting.

Financial Situation

At the end of 2008, the fi nancial situation of TŽ was signifi cantly infl uenced by the developing fi nancial crisis and resulting dramatic 

drop of demand for rolled products as well as the prices; that is why we were forced to regulate production.

Mainly thanks to the favourable development in three quarters of 2008, we managed to achieve a favourable profi t in the amount of CZK 

1,517 million (compared to 2007 lower by CZK 3,007 million, or by CZK 1,894 million compared to 2006).

Regarding production, the year-on-year output of pig iron decreased by 91 kt and output of crude steel dropped by 115 kt, or a 50 kt drop 

in pig iron and 68 kt drop in crude steel compared to 2006. Th is was caused by the negative trends of the commercial situation in the last 

quarter of 2008.

Total production achieved the amount of CZK 38,242 million (CZK 36,147 million in 2007 and CZK 32,361 million in 2006), which 

represents growth by CZK 2,095 million compared to 2007 (or by CZK 5,881 million compared to 2006). Growth, when compared to 

2006, can be attributed primarily to the higher sales of rolled goods and steel (+CZK 1,415 million), which was infl uenced by the higher 

sales price (+1,182 CZK/t), whilst the sales volume had a negative eff ect (–91 kt). Th e year-on-year growth of total production was also 

infl uenced by the re-evaluation of own production inventories.

BLOOM AND HEAVY 

SECTION MILL

TŘINEC RAILS PRODUCTION HAS A TRADITION 

MORE THAN  YEARS LONG
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Trends of total revenues during the past three years

INDICATOR ( IN CZK THOUSANDS ) 2006 2007 2008

Rolled goods incl. steel 30 225 304 33 997 255 35 412 197

Other products 1 099 176 1 176 640 1 288 467

Sales of own products 31 324 480 35 173 895 36 700 664

Revenues from services 350 188 372 764 384 187

Sales of goods purchased for resale 781 5 969 10 217

Sale of own production, services and goods 31 675 449 35 552 628 37 095 068

Th e purchased year-on-year consumables were CZK 4,123 million higher (or by CZK 6,173 million compared to 2006). Th e most 

signifi cant eff ect on the year-on-year increase was the consumption of raw materials, infl uenced by the growth of input prices.

Due to faster growth of input materials compared to the sales prices as well as because of the drop in orders at the end of the year, the 

added value was lower by CZK 2,028 million year on year and reached the level of CZK 5,939 million. Th e labour productivity from 

added value per employee was CZK 1,072 thousand.

Th e operating profi t amounted to CZK 1,377 million, which is a decrease by CZK 2,995 million compared to the previous year 

(CZK 1,618 million compared to 2006).

Th e profi t from fi nancial activities achieved the amount of CZK 140 million. It was positively infl uenced by the dividend received from 

the subsidiary companies.

Th e cost structure in 2008:

On 31 December 2008, our company stated assets in the amount of CZK 24,724 million, which is an increase by CZK 381 million 

compared to 31 December 2007 (or by CZK 1,825 compared to 2006). Th is increase was infl uenced by the growth of long-term assets by 

CZK 1,045 million (CZK 1,157 million), the current assets including the accruals decreased by CZK 664 million (rose by CZK 668 million 

compared to 2006).

In 2008 the long-term fi nancial assets increased in connection with the purchase of shares in the companies Šroubárna Kyjov, D5, the 

investment in Moravia Security and the non-monetary investment in Strojírny Třinec.

Th e increased level of inventories compared to the beginning of the year was infl uenced by the growth of products in progress and semi-

fi nished products due to growing prices of raw materials as well as increased stock (especially iron ore, coal, and coke).

Th e decrease of the short term receivables is related to lower trading receivables.

Concerning liabilities, we are succeeding in the long-term in improving the structure of equity and liabilities. Th e share of equity grew 

by 3.7 percent year-on-year to the level of 77.7 percent (by 6.1 percent compared to 2006) due to achieved fi nancial results.

Liabilities dropped by CZK 817 million (by CZK 980 million compared to 2006), whereas bank credits, reserves, and payables decreased.
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Strategic Objectives

Th e developments in the steel market as well as other industrial segments suff ered a signifi cant setback relating to the economic 

depression in the fourth quarter of 2008. A signifi cant drop of demand caused by the uncertainty of future development forced 

the companies to be more cautious and take savings measures. On the other hand, this required more active co-operation with the 

customers and searching for new uses for its products. Th e upcoming period will involve ensuring a solvent company.

Maintaining the integrated steel company is very demanding regarding investments. Th e goal of TŽ for the upcoming period will be 

balancing the needs of renewing the facilities, environmental investments and modernisation regarding the fi nancial possibilities.

Th e strategic investment projects which will infl uence the future of Třinecké železárny include:

–  Modernisation of the coking batteries;

–  Modernisation of the rolling mills of blooms and heavy profi les; 

–  Modernisation of the continuous wire rod mill;

–  Modernisation of the bloom continuous casting machine; and

–  Renovation of dust removal and major overhaul of the gas cleaning station at the converter steel plant.

Profit Distribution Proposal

Th e after-tax net profi t of TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY in 2007 amounted to CZK 1,204,420 thousand. Th e Board of Directors proposed 

the following distribution of the profi t:

Allocation to reserve fund CZK  60,221 thousand

Accumulated profits brought forward CZK 1,144,199 thousand

CONTINUOUS LIGHT SECTION MILL

PRODUCTION PORTFOLIO IN CONTINUOUS LIGHT SECTION 

MILL HAS CHANGED RECENTLY TOWARDS PRODUCTS WITH 

HIGHER UTILITY VALUE THAT ARE APPLIED IN AUTOMOTIVE 

FIELD AND MACHINERY

170 years
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Report of the Supervisory Board

Th e Supervisory Board regularly checked compliance of the business activities with legal regulations, the Articles of Association, and 

resolutions of the General Meeting and the Supervisory Board. During the course of 2008, the Board of Directors informed it on the 

current economic situation of the Company as well as on fulfi lling the Business Plan.

At its meetings, the Supervisory Board dealt with the most signifi cant strategic intentions and projects, the signifi cance and character of 

which were within its decision-making competence placing emphasis on meeting the long-term strategy of the Company.

At its meeting on 27 April 2009, the Supervisory Board reviewed the regular fi nancial statements and regular consolidated fi nancial 

statements of the Company for 2008, the proposal for distribution of the profi t achieved in 2008, and the report of the Board of 

Directors on business activity and the assets of the Company. 

Based on the audit of the unconsolidated fi nancial statements and consolidated fi nancial statements on the date of 31 December 2008 by 

Deloitte Audit s.r.o. and their opinions, which were without qualifi cation, the Supervisory Board recommends that the General Meeting 

of the shareholders of TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. approve all the above-mentioned documents.

Th e Supervisory Board also reviewed the Report on Relations for the 2008 accounting period considering the Deloitte Audit s.r.o. 

Auditor’s opinion and concluded that it was prepared in conformity with the Commercial Code and the actual state of relations between 

the affi  liated entities.

 Tomáš Chrenek

 Chairman of the Supervisory Board

9.
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Financial Part
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Auditor‘s Opinion on the Annual Report10.
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Financial Part I. – Financial Statements

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2008

Name of the Company: TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a. s.

Registered Offi  ce: Průmyslová ,   Třinec-Staré Město

Legal Status: Joint Stock Company

Corporate ID: 

Components of the Financial Statements:

• Balance Sheet

• Profi t and Loss Account

• Statement of Changes in Equity 

• Cash Flow Statement

• Notes to the Financial Statements 

These financial statements were prepared on 9 March 2009. 

Statutory body of the reporting entity: Signature

Ing. Jiří Cieńciała, CSc. 

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jaroslava Ciahotná

First Vice Chairwoman of the Board 

of Directors

11.



32 F I N A N C I A L  P A R T

BALANCE SHEET FULL VERSION (CZK thousand)

 ..  ..  ..

Gross Adjustment Net Net Net

TOTAL ASSETS    -           

B. Fixed assets    -           

I. Intangible fi xed assets   -       

. Research and development   -    

. Software   -       

. Valuable rights   -      

. Other intangible fi xed assets      

. Intangible fi xed assets under construction       

II. Tangible fi xed assets    -           

. Land         

. Structures    -           

. Individual movable assets and sets of movable assets    -           

. Other tangible fi xed assets         

. Tangible fi xed assets under construction   -       

. Prepayments for tangible fi xed assets         

III. Non-current fi nancial assets    -          

. Equity investments in subsidiaries    -          

. Equity investments in associates   -       

. Other securities and investments     

. Other non-current fi nancial assets         

. Acquisition of non-current fi nancial assets   -     

C. Current assets    -           

I. Inventories    -           

. Material    -          

. Work in progress and semifi nished goods    -          

. Products    -          

. Goods        

. Prepayments for inventory       

II. Long-term receivables         

. Long-term prepayments made     

. Other receivables         

III. Short-term receivables    -          

. Trade receivables    -          

. State - tax receivables        

. Short-term prepayments made         

. Estimated receivables         

. Other receivables   -       

IV. Current fi nancial assets             

. Cash on hand         

. Cash at bank          

. Short-term securities and investments            

. Acquisition of current fi nancial assets     

D. I. Other assets         

. Deferred expenses         

. Complex deferred expenses         

. Accrued income     
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (CZK thousand)  

 ..  ..  ..

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY         

A. Equity         

I. Share capital         

. Share capital         

II. Capital funds      

. Other capital funds      

. Gains or losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities - - -

III. Statutory funds         

. Statutory reserve fund / Indivisible fund      

. Statutory and other funds         

IV. Retained earnings         

. Accumulated profi ts brought forward         

V. Profi t or loss for the current period (+ -)         

B. Liabilities         

I. Reserves      

. Reserves under special legislation      

. Other reserves      

II. Long-term liabilities      

. Trade payables      

. Long-term prepayments received    

. Long-term bills of exchange to be paid    

. Other payables    

. Deferred tax liability      

III. Short-term liabilities         

. Trade payables         

. Payables to partners and association members      

. Payables to employees      

. Social security and health insurance payables      

. State – tax payables and subsidies      

. Short-term prepayments received    

. Estimated payables      

. Other payables      

IV. Bank loans and borrowings         

. Long-term bank loans        

. Short-term bank loans      

C. I. Other liabilities      

. Accrued expenses      

. Deferred income   
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT STRUCTURED BY THE NATURE OF EXPENSE METHOD (CZK thousand)

Year ended .. Year ended .. Year ended ..

I. Sales of goods     

A. Costs of goods sold     

+ Gross margin   

II. Production         

. Sales of own products and services         

. Change in internally produced inventory      

. Own work capitalized      

B. Purchased consumables and services         

. Consumed material and energy         

. Services         

+ Added value         

C. Staff  costs         

. Payroll costs         

. Remuneration to members of statutory bodies      

. Social security and health insurance costs      

. Social costs      

D. Taxes and charges      

E. Depreciation of intangible and tangible fi xed assets        

III. Sales of fi xed assets and material      

. Sales of fi xed assets      

. Sales of material      

F. Net book value of fi xed assets and material sold      

. Net book value of sold fi xed assets      

. Book value of sold material      

G. Change in reserves and provisions relating to operating activities and 

complex 

deferred expenses

  -  - 

IV. Other operating income        

H. Other operating expenses        

* Operating profi t or loss         

VI. Proceeds from the sale of securities and investments    

J. Cost of securities and investments sold    

VII. Income from non-current fi nancial assets      

. Income from subsidiaries and associates      

. Income from other non-current fi nancial assets   

IX. Income from the revaluation of securities and derivates   

M. Change in reserves and provisions relating to fi nancial activities -  -  - 

X. Interest income      

N. Interest expenses      

XI. Other fi nancial income      

O. Other fi nancial expenses      

* Financial profi t or loss      

Q. Income tax on ordinary activities      

. – due      

. – deferred -  -   

** Profi t or loss from ordinary activities         

*** Profi t or loss for the current period (+/-)         

**** Profi t or loss before tax         

Control number         
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CZK thousand)

Share capital Capital funds Statutory 

reserve fund

Statutory and 

other funds

Retained 

earnings

Profi t 

or loss for the 

current period

TOTAL 

EQUITY

Balance at  December                    

Profi t for the period      

Distribution of retained earnings      -   

Dividends -  - 

Revaluation of securities - -

Payments from the social fund -  - 

Balance at  December                    

Profi t for the period      

Distribution of retained earnings     -  

Dividends -   -  

Payments from the social fund - -

Other  - 

Balance at  December                    

Profi t for the period      

Distribution of retained earnings      -   

Revaluation of securities  

Other -  

Balance at  December                    



36 F I N A N C I A L  P A R T

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CZK thousand)

Year ended  .. Year ended .. Year ended ..

P. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the accounting period        

Cash fl ows from ordinary activities

Z. Profi t/(loss) from ordinary activities before tax         

A.. Adjustments for non-cash transactions       

A... Depreciation of fi xed assets        

A... Change in provisions and reserves   -  - 

A... Profi t/(loss) on the sale of fi xed assets -    - 

A... Revenues from dividends and profi t shares -  -  - 

A... Interest expense and interest income      

A... Adjustments, if any, and other non-cash transactions     - 

A.* Net cash fl ow from operating activities before changes in working 

capital

        

A.. Changes in working capital -    - 

A... Change in receivables from operating activities, deferred expenses, accrued 

income and estimated assets

     

A... Change in short-term payables from operating activities, accrued expenses, 

deferred income and estimated liabilities

    - 

A... Change in inventory -   -  - 

A... Change in current fi nancial assets not included in cash and cash equiva-

lents 

     

A.** Net cash fl ow from operating activities before tax and extraordinary 

items

        

A.. Interest paid -  -  - 

A.. Interest received      

A.. Income tax paid from operating activities -  -  - 

A.. Receipts and expenditures relating to extraordinary activities    

A.. Received dividends and profi t shares      

A.*** Net cash fl ow from operating activities         

Cash fl ows from investing activities

B.. Fixed assets expenditures -   -   -  

B.. Receipts from fi xed assets sold      

B.*** Net cash fl ow from investing activities -   -   - 

Cash fl ow from fi nancial activities

C.. Change in payables from fi nancing -  -  - 

C.. Impact on cash and cash equivalents due to change in equity -  -   - 

C... Payments made from funds - - 

C... Dividends paid -  -   - 

C.*** Net cash fl ow from fi nancial activities -  -   -  

F. Net increase or decrease of cash and cash equivalents -       

R. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the accounting period         
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

1.1. Incorporation and Description of the Business

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s. (henceforth the “Company”) was formed by the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic on the basis of a Deed of 

Foundation as a joint stock company registered in Třinec, Czech Republic, and was incorporated following its registration in the Register of Companies 

of the Regional Court in Ostrava on 21 March 1991. Th e Company is primarily engaged in metallurgy with a closed metallurgical cycle. In addition to the 

production of coke, pig iron and steel, the range of principal products provided by the Company involves the products of rolling mills, namely blooms, 

slabs, billets, rods, reinforcing bars and thin, medium and heavy sections. Th e Company benefi ts from its incumbent status of being the Czech monopoly 

in respect of the manufacture of rails.

Th e Companys registered offi  ce is located in Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová 1000, 739 70.

Th e Companys issued share capital is CZK 8,109,863 thousand.

Th e following table shows individuals and legal entities exercising controlling or substantial infl uence over the Company and the amount of their equity 

interest:

Shareholder Ownership percentage

MORAVIA STEEL a. s. . 

Other . 

Total . 

1.2. Changes in and Amendments to the Register of Companies

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the corporate details held at the Register of Companies were updated to refl ect the change in the composition 

of the Supervisory Board (refer to Note 1.5.). 

1.3. Organisational Structure of the Company 

Th e key governing bodies of the Company are as follows:

– General Meeting of Shareholders;

– Supervisory Board;

– Board of Directors; and 

– Chief Executive Offi  cer and management.

Th e basic organisational chart of the Company 

eff ective as of 31 December 2008:

Th ere were no signifi cant organisational changes in the year ended 31 December 2008. 

ROD AND LIGHT 

SECTION MILL
HEAVY SECTION MILL

IRON AND STEEL 

PRODUCTION

HUMAN RESOURCES AND OFFICE 

SUPPORT DIRECTOR
FINANCIAL DIRECTOR INVESTMENT DIRECTOR

PRODUCTION 

DIRECTOR
TECHNICAL DIRECTOR

SJ AND EMS DEPUTY DIRECTOR

SHIPMENT
COKE AND CHEMICAL 

PRODUCTION

HR AND PAYROLL

LEGAL DEPARTMENT

INSPECTION

FIRE BRIGADE

ASSET MANAGEMENT

SPOKESMAN OF TŽ, a.s.

SECRETARIAT OF CEO 

AND PUBLIC RELATIONS

STRATEGY OF TŽ, a.s.

MARKETING

CONTROLLING

FINANCING

ACCOUNTING

DEVELOPMENT 

AND INVESTMENT

DSP MANAGEMENT

IT AND 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION

PRODUCTION PREPARATION 

AND MANAGEMENT

DEPUTY PRODUCTION DIRECTOR

MAINTENANCE

TECHNOLOGY 

AND RESEARCH

QUALITY ASSURANCE

TEST ROOMS 

AND LABORATORIES

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM TRANSPORT SECONDARY RAW MATERIALS UNIVERSAL LINE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SUPERVISORY BOARD 

COMMITTEES

SUPERVISORY BOARD

GENERAL MEETING

INTERNAL AUDIT 

DIRECTOR



38 F I N A N C I A L  P A R T

1.4. Group Identification 

Th e Company is included in the MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Group. MORAVIA STEEL a.s. is controlled by FINITRADING a.s. and R.F.G., a.s., acting in con-

cert.

1.5. Board of Directors and Supervisory Board as of 31 December 2008

Position Name 

Board of Directors Chairman Jiří Cienciala

st Vice Chairwoman Jaroslava Ciahotná

nd Vice Chairman Jan Czudek

Member Jan Lasota

Member Česlav Marek

Member Petr Matuszek

Supervisory Board Chairman Tomáš Chrenek

st Vice Chairman Ján Moder

nd Vice Chairman Hanns K. Zöllner

Member František Ligocki

Member Evžen Balko

Member Roman Mitręga

Member Vladislav Heczko

Member Jozef Blaško

Member Pablo Alarcón Espinosa

Th ere were the following changes in the Board of Directors in the reporting period: 

Supervisory Board:

Position Original member New member Date of the change

Member Oldřich Cieslar Roman Mitręga  Nov 

Member Jiří Stašák Vladislav Heczko  Nov 

On 21 January 2009, the change in the name of the Chairman of the Board of Directors from Jiří Cienciala to Jiří Cieńciała was recorded in the Register 

of Companies. 

2. Basis of Accounting and General Accounting Principles 

Th e Companys accounting books and records are maintained and the fi nancial statements were prepared in accordance with Accounting Act 563/1991 

Coll., as amended; Regulation 500/2002 Coll. which provides implementation guidance on certain provisions of the Accounting Act for reporting entities 

that are businesses maintaining double-entry accounting records, as amended, and Czech Accounting Standards for Businesses, as amended. 

Th e accounting records are maintained in compliance with general accounting principles, specifi cally the historical cost valuation basis, the accruals 

principle, the prudence concept and the going concern assumption.

Th ese fi nancial statements are presented in thousands of Czech crowns (CZK).

2.1. Reporting Period 

Th e fi nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 were prepared as follows:

– Th e balance sheet contains comparative balances as of 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006;

– Th e profi t and loss account comprises comparative amounts for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006;

– Th e statement of changes in equity contains comparative amounts for the years ended 31 December 2007, 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005; and 

– Th e cash fl ow statement comprises comparative amounts for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006. 
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

3.1. Tangible and Intangible Fixed Assets 

Valuation

Tangible fi xed assets include assets with a cost greater than CZK 40 thousand on an individual basis and an estimated useful life greater than one year. 

Intangible fi xed assets include assets (such as software, valuable rights, and research and development) with a cost greater than CZK 60 thousand on an 

individual basis and an estimated useful life greater than one year.

Purchased tangible and intangible fi xed assets are valued at cost. Tangible and intangible fi xed assets developed internally are valued at direct costs, in-

cidental costs directly attributable to the internal production of assets, or alternatively incidental costs of an administrative character if the production 

period of the assets exceeds one year.

Th e following tangible and intangible fi xed assets are stated at replacement cost: tangible and intangible fi xed assets acquired through donation, intan-

gible fi xed assets internally generated if replacement cost is lower than internal costs, assets recently entered in the accounting records such as an invento-

ry count surplus (accounted for by a corresponding entry in the relevant accumulated depreciation account) and an investment of intangible and tangible 

fi xed assets, except for cases where the investment is valued diff erently pursuant to a Memorandum of Association or a Foundation Deed.

Th e replacement cost is also applied to tangible fi xed assets acquired under fi nance lease arrangements with an original cost exceeding CZK 1 million. 

Th ese assets are carried at replacement cost and recorded in the statutory books as fully depreciated. Replacement cost is determined by an expert apprai-

ser or through an estimate performed under the Companys internal regulations. 

Tangible and intangible assets with an estimated useful life greater than one year and a cost equal to or lower than CZK 40 thousand and CZK 60 thou-

sand, respectively, are not treated as fi xed assets. Such tangible assets are accounted for as inventory and when brought into use they are charged to Con-

sumed material and energy in the profi t and loss account. Intangible assets costing CZK 60 thousand and less are expensed through the account Servi-

ces in the year of acquisition.

Th e cost of a fi xed asset improvement exceeding CZK 40 thousand increases the acquisition cost of the related fi xed asset.

Th e results of the Companys research and development activities, if designed for trading or resale, are recognised through the balance sheet line Re-

search and development. Research and development results designed for internal purposes are not classifi ed as intangible fi xed assets for fi nancial repor-

ting purposes and are held in off  balance sheet records at internal costs of production.

Greenhouse emission allowances are recognised as non-depreciable intangible fi xed assets and are stated at cost, or replacement cost when acquired 

free of charge. Th e use of emission allowances is accounted for at the balance sheet date as a minimum, depending upon the level of emissions produced 

by the Company in the calendar year. An initial free-of-charge acquisition of the allowances is recognised as a subsidy not reducing the carrying amount 

of the intangible fi xed assets. Th is subsidy is released into income on a systematic basis as the allowances are used and charged to expenses. Th e sale of al-

lowances is recorded as a component of Sales of fi xed assets. 

As of the balance sheet date, emission allowances are valued according to the EUROPEAN ENERGY EXCHANGE rate. Th e change in the valuation of 

emission allowances as of the balance sheet date is recognised between balance sheet accounts Other intangible fi xed assets and State – tax payables and 

subsidies. If there is a lack of allowances at the balance sheet date, the Company recognises a reserve as part of Other reserves and Change in reserves and 

provisions relating to operating activities and complex deferred expenses. Th e reserve for the purchase of allowances is released in the following accoun-

ting period when the missing allowances are purchased. 

Depreciation for Accounting Purposes

Depreciation of fi xed assets, other than land and assets under construction, is recorded on a straight line basis over the depreciation period indicated be-

low:

Category of assets Depreciation period in years 

Structures  – 

Machines and equipment  – 

Vehicles  – 

Furniture and fi xtures  – 

Software  – 

Th e depreciation period in years is established in terms of the estimated useful life of the fi xed assets taking into account the operational conditions.

If the inventory count indicates that the estimated useful life of assets has changed, the Company appropriately adjusts the depreciation period of the 

related asset. 

Th e bulk of buildings and structures are depreciated over 45 – 60 years. Th e shorter depreciation period is applied to temporary structures and short-

term structures (lighting, fencing, energy grids, pipelines, etc.). A depreciation period over 60 years is applied to structures with a long useful life such as 

railway and road bridges, conveying tunnels, and production and administrative buildings.

Th e bulk of machines and equipment are depreciated over 15 – 25 years. Th e shorter depreciation period is primarily applied to IT systems, management 

systems, devices, etc.; the longer depreciation period is applied in exceptional cases to agglomeration equipment. 

Objects from precious metals acquired prior to 1 January 2002 are depreciated based on actual weight loss.

Th e gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the diff erence between the sales proceeds and the net book value of 

the asset at the sale date and is recognised through the profi t and loss account.
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Provisioning 

Provisions against tangible fi xed assets are recognised in circumstances where the carrying value is greater than value in use, which is equal to the present 

value of estimated future cash fl ows expected to arise from the continuing use of fi xed assets/expected proceeds from the intended sale.

Impairment 

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 

suff ered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impair-

ment loss (if any). 

3.2. Non-Current Financial Assets 

Non-current fi nancial assets principally consist of equity investments, securities and equity investments available for sale and long-term term deposits. 

Valuation 

Securities and equity investments are carried at cost upon acquisition. Th e cost of securities or equity investments includes direct costs of acquisition, 

such as fees and commissions paid to brokers, advisors and stock exchanges. Financial assets acquired prior to 1 January 2002 are stated at purchase cost.

At the balance sheet date, the Company records:

Equity investments at cost less any impairment provisions.

Available-for-sale securities are valued pursuant to the Accounting Act (Section 27) at fair value, determined by reference to the market value or a rea-

sonable estimate. If the determination of fair value is not practicable, the securities are valued at cost.

At the balance sheet date, changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities are recorded through balance sheet accounts Other non-current secu-

rities and equity investments and Gains and losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities. A deferred tax is determined in respect of the revaluati-

on diff erence where the value of available-for-sale securities increases, and is recorded through accounts Gains and losses from the revaluation of assets 

and liabilities and Deferred tax liability.

Upon sale or any other disposal, securities of the same type are valued on the basis of the weighted average of acquisition costs.

Investments in enterprises in which the Company has the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies so as to obtain benefi ts from their acti-

vities are treated as Equity investments in subsidiaries. 

Investments in enterprises in which the Company is in a position to exercise signifi cant infl uence over their fi nancial and operating policies so as to 

obtain benefi ts from their activities are treated as Equity investments in associates.

Provisioning against Equity Investments

Investments are provisioned if there is a risk that the fair value of a non-current fi nancial asset is lower than its carrying value. 

In charging provisions against equity securities that are not fair valued, the Company refers to its detailed knowledge of the relevant entity, the results 

of its operations and refl ects its interest in the entitys equity. 

3.3. Current Financial Assets 

Current fi nancial assets principally consist of cash on hand and cash at bank and short-term debt securities with a maturity of less than one year and other 

securities available for sale. 

Current fi nancial assets are carried at cost upon acquisition.

3.4. Inventory 

Valuation 

Purchased inventory is valued at acquisition costs. Acquisition costs include the purchase cost and indirect acquisition costs such as customs fees, freight 

costs and storage fees during transportation, commissions and insurance charges. 

Inventory is issued out of stock at costs determined using the weighted arithmetic average method.

Internally developed inventory is valued at full operating costs established based upon a costing formula refl ecting annual planned costings. Th e prices 

are determined on the basis of an annual fi nancial plan.

Th e revaluation of internally developed inventory is performed as of 1 January of the current year by reference to the calculations made based on the ap-

proved fi nancial plan. 

During the reporting period, the Company analysed the internally produced inventory by comparing the valuation of own costs according to planned 

(planned costing) and actual costs. If the diff erence in valuation according to actual costs is greater than the valuation according to the planned own costs, 

the diff erence from the revaluation of internally produced inventory is refl ected in the fi nancial accounting records only on the accounts of the general 

ledger – Changes in internally produced inventory with a corresponding entry to Internally produced inventory. In the contrary case, (if the diff erence in 

valuation according to the planned own costs is greater than the valuation according to actual own costs) the inventory is not revalued and the diff erence 

is accounted for as the recognition of a provision against internally produced inventory. 

Provisioning 

Provisions against the inventory of material are made in respect of inventory with low or no movement and a very low likelihood for processing following 

an individual analysis. 

Provisions against the inventory of fi nished products and semi-fi nished products are charged based on the analysis of movement, selling prices and 

realisability.
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3.5. Receivables 

Upon origination, receivables are stated at their nominal value as subsequently reduced by appropriate provisions for doubtful and bad amounts.

Provisioning 

Th e Company recognises provisions against receivables, the recoverability of which is doubtful. Tax deductible provisions against receivables are made 

pursuant to the Income Taxes Act and the Provisioning Act. 

Non-tax deductible provisions (other than intercompany) are created as follows:

a) Receivables past due over 360 days are provisioned in full; and

b) Receivables past due over 180 days but less than 360 days are provisioned at 50 percent.

In addition, the Company recognised provisions against specifi c receivables following an assessment of their collectability. 

Th e Company creates provisions against interest-free long-term receivables. Th is provisioning charge is calculated as equal to the diff erence between 

the nominal value and the discounted value of these receivables.

3.6. Payables 

Trade payables are stated at their nominal value. Long-term bills of exchange to be settled are recorded at nominal value. Interest on these bills is accru-

ed over their maturity period. 

3.7. Loans and Borrowings 

Valuation 

Loans are reported at nominal value. Th e portion of long-term loans maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and revolving loans which are 

regularly rolled over to the following period are included in short-term loans. 

3.8. Reserves

Th e Company creates other reserves to provide for future risks known at the balance sheet date. In addition, the Company records tax allowable reserves 

for repairs of tangible fi xed assets in accordance with the Provisioning Act, and a reserve for restoration and maintenance of a dump site and clean-up af-

ter termination of the operation of the site in accordance with Regulation of the Environmental Ministry No. 294/2005 Coll. If the reserves are not drawn 

within the statutory period, they are released. 

3.9. Foreign Currency Translations 

Transactions in foreign currencies conducted during the year are translated using the exchange rate of the Czech National Bank prevailing on the date 

preceding the transaction date.

Financial assets denominated in foreign currencies (foreign currency cash) are translated into Czech crowns using the fi xed monthly exchange rate as 

notifi ed by the Czech National Bank as of the fi rst day of the month in which they were recorded. 

At the balance sheet date, the relevant assets and liabilities are translated at the Czech National Banks exchange rate prevailing as of that date.

3.10. Finance Leases 

A fi nance lease is the acquisition of a tangible fi xed asset such that, over or after the contractual lease term, ownership title to the asset transfers from the 

lessor to the lessee; pending the transfer of title, the lessee makes lease payments to the lessor for the asset that are charged to expenses. 

Th e initial lump-sum payment related to assets acquired under fi nance leases are amortised and expensed over the lease period. 

3.11. Taxation 

3.11.1. Depreciation of Fixed Assets for Tax Purposes 

Depreciation of fi xed assets is recorded on an accelerated basis for tax purposes under Section 32 of Act No. 586/92 Coll., with the exception of assets used 

in the Univerzální trať Bohumín plant which are depreciated using the straight line method.

3.11.2. Current Tax Payable

Th e tax currently payable is based on taxable profi t for the reporting period. Taxable profi t diff ers from net profi t as reported in the profi t and loss account 

because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or dedu-

ctible. Th e Companys liability for current tax is calculated using the tax rate that has been enacted by the balance sheet date.

3.11.3. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. 

Under the liability method, deferred tax is calculated at the income tax rate that is expected to apply in the period when the tax liability is settled.

Th e balance sheet liability method focuses on temporary diff erences which are diff erences between the tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying 

amount in the balance sheet. Th e tax base of an asset or liability is the amount that will be deductible for tax purposes in the future.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profi t and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case 

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. 
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3.12. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs arising from loans are directly expensed regardless of the purpose for which the loans were drawn. 

3.13. Costs Relating to Employees Hired through an Employment Agency

Since 2007, the Company has reported staff  costs of employees hired through an employment agency as part of social costs which include the actually 

paid salaries including social security costs and health instance and other aids and protective drinks for agency employees. Th ese costs are reported under 

Consumed material and energy. Other services of the agency such as mediation fees and agency overheads are reported under Services. 

In the past, all costs relating to employees hired through an employment agency were reported under Services. 

3.14. Revenue Recognition 

Revenues are recognised when goods are delivered and accepted by the customer or when services are rendered and are reported net of discounts and VAT.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the eff ective interest rate applicable. 

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders rights to receive payment have been declared. 

3.15. Use of Estimates 

Th e presentation of fi nancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabili-

ties as of the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management of the Company has made 

these estimates and assumptions on the basis of all the relevant information available to it. Nevertheless, pursuant to the nature of estimates, the actual 

results and outcomes in the future may diff er from these estimates.

3.16. Research and Development Expenditure 

Research and development expenditure is capitalised as part of cost and posted to the acquisition of tangible or intangible fi xed assets if the research and 

development projects result in fi xed assets (tangible and intangible). Th e output of a research project is capitalised on the basis of the results of opponent 

proceedings. A detailed analysis of the projects in progress is undertaken at the balance sheet date and the costs incurred are charged to expenses or re-

cognised as complex deferred expenses in the event that there is doubt over the completion or future utilisation of the project. 

3.17. Subsidies 

Th e Company receives operating subsidies. Th e funds drawn are charged to expenses and operating subsidies received are credited to income on an accru-

als basis (refer to Note 4.17.). In addition, the Company receives subsidies to fund the acquisition of fi xed assets and these subsidies reduce the cost of the 

related assets.

In 2004, the Company received state aid for projects related to the environment, research and development, education and payments to workers who 

will be made redundant following the discontinuation of a furnace. Th is aid is reported as a component of the balance sheet line State – tax payables and 

subsidies and is split into short-term and long-term portions, and is gradually released to income on an accruals basis as the projects for which it was 

created are implemented.

3.18. Cash Flow Statement 

Th e cash fl ow statement is prepared using the indirect method.

For cash fl ow reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents include cash and duty stamps, cash in bank except for deposits with maturity longer than 

three months, and current liquid assets easily convertible into cash in an amount agreed in advance where no signifi cant changes in the value of these 

assets are expected over time.

Cash and cash equivalents can be analysed as follows: 

 (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Cash on hand      

Current accounts       

Short-term securities and equity investments        

Provision against current fi nancial assets   – 

Total cash and cash equivalents         

Total cash and cash equivalents not included in cash fl ow     

Total current fi nancial assets         

Comments on the Cash Flow Statement:

Th e change in the balance of current fi nancial assets as of 31 December 2007 as compared to the balance sheet is associated with the opening of a special-

purpose account of CZK 35,444 thousand as of 31 December 2007 in connection with the received state aid. 

Th e change in the balance of current fi nancial assets as of 31 December 2006 as compared to the balance sheet is associated with the opening of a special-

purpose account of CZK 246,216 thousand as of 31 December 2006 in connection with the received state aid. 
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4. Additional Information on the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account 

4.1. Fixed Assets 

4.1.1. Intangible Fixed Assets

Cost (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Jan 

Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 



Research and development            

Software                  

Valuable rights               

Other intangible FA                      

Intangible FA under construc-

tion

                 

Total                         

Accumulated Amortisation and Provisions (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Jan 

Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 



Research and development          

Software                  

Valuable rights              

Total                  

Net Book Value (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Research and development    

Software      

Valuable rights     

Other intangible FA    

Intangible FA under construction    

Total      

Amortisation of Intangible Fixed Assets Charged to Expenses 

Amortisation of intangible fi xed assets amounted to CZK 14,701 thousand, CZK 19,053 thousand, CZK 14,552 thousand as of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 

2006, respectively. 

Other Intangible Fixed Assets

Other intangible fi xed assets include greenhouse emission allowances. 

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company purchased 19,500 emission allowances for CZK 9,624 thousand and 84,000 CER credits for CZK 

42,287 thousand. Th e Company exchanged 111,474 emission allowances for 120,000 CER credits in the amount of CZK 45,192 thousand. Th ese emission 

allowances and CER credits were used as of 31 December 2008. A reserve of CZK 39,991 thousand was created for the missing allowances needed to cover 

the greenhouse emission consumption. 

Aggregate Balance of Low Value Intangible Assets not Reported on the Balance Sheet 

Th e aggregate balance of low value intangible assets not reported on the face of the balance sheet was CZK 23,559 thousand, CZK 22,098 thousand and 

CZK 19,956 thousand as of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
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4.1.2. Tangible Fixed Assets 

Cost  (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Jan 

Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Land               

Structures                        

Individual movable assets                         

– Machinery and equipment                        

– Vehicles                        

– Furniture and fi xtures              

Other tangible FA              

Tangible FA under construction                        

Prepayments for tangible FA                    

Total                              

Accumulated Depreciation and Provisions (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Jan 

Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



Structures                        

Individual movable assets                        

– Machinery and equipment                        

– Vehicles                      

– Furniture and fi xtures              

Tangible FA under construction               

Total                          

Net Book Value  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Land      

Structures         

Individual movable assets         

– Machinery and equipment         

– Vehicles       

– Furniture and fi xtures      

Other tangible FA      

Tangible FA under construction      

Prepayments for tangible FA      

Total         

Principal additi ons to tangible fi xed assets for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as follows: (CZK thousand)

Garett winding line  

Equipment for the desulphurisation of pig iron  

Filtration equipment for agglomerations  

During the year ended 31 December 2008, assets with an aggregate net book value of CZK 68,173 thousand were removed from tangible fi xed assets. Ma-

jor disposals related to the investment of the real estate in Strojírny Třinec, a.s., sale of testing equipment and vehicles. 

Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets Charged to Expenses 

Depreciation of tangible fi xed assets amounted to CZK 1,012,927 thousand, CZK 983,774 thousand and CZK 915,369 thousand as of 31 December 2008, 

2007 and 2006, respectively. 

Aggregate Balance of Low Value Tangible Assets not Reported on the Balance Sheet 

Th e aggregate costs of low value tangible assets not reported on the face of the balance sheet were CZK 383,636 thousand, CZK 361,594 thousand and 

357,764 CZK thousand as of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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4.1.3. Assets Held under Finance and Operating Lease Agreements 

Finance Leases 

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Cars Machinery 

and equipment 

Balance at  Dec 

Total anticipated lease payments      

Actual lease payments made through  Dec      

Future payments due by  Dec      

Future payments due in the following periods   

31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Cars Machinery 

and equipment 

Balance at  Dec 

Total anticipated lease payments      

Actual lease payments made through  Dec       

Future payments due by  Dec       

Future payments due in the following periods     

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Cars Machinery 

and equipment 

Balance at  Dec 

Total anticipated lease payments      

Actual lease payments made through  Dec       

Future payments due by  Dec       

Future payments due in the following periods      

Operating Leases 

As of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company made lease payments of CZK 21,804 thousand, CZK 22,866 thousand, CZK 21,677 thousand, re-

spectively. 

4.1.4. Pledged Fixed Assets 

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible FA

Land

 

 

Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA

Land

 

 

Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Total   

31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible FA

Land 

 

  Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA

Land 

 

 

Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Total   

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible FA

Land 

 

 

Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible FA

Land

 

 

Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Tangible FA   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Total   
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4.2. Non-Current Financial Assets 

Cost  (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Jan 

Additions Disposals Revalua-

tion 

Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals

Equity investments in subsidiaries              

Equity investments in associates          

Other non-current securities and equity investments    –   

Other non-current fi nancial assets     –     

Acquired non-current fi nancial assets            

Total        –        

 (CZK thousand)

Revalua-

tion

Balance 

at  Dec 



Additions Disposals Revalua-

tion

Balance at 

 Dec 



Equity investments in subsidiaries            

Equity investments in associates         

Other non-current securities and equity investments      

Other non-current fi nancial assets –       

Acquired non-current fi nancial assets            

Total –             

4.2.1. Shares and Equity Investments in Subsidiaries

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name and address Cost Nominal 

value 

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 

Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss 

Provision Net cost Financial 

revenues 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s., 

Třinec-Staré Město

       .           

Strojírny Třinec, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město      .         

Slévárny Třinec, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město      .        

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.,

Ostrava-Vítkovice **

     .   –     

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o., Kyjov *   – .      * 

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o., 

Třinec-Staré Město 

    – .        

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.,

Třinec-Staré Město

     .   – –    

Doprava TŽ, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město      .         

D , akciová společnost, Třinec

Třinec-Staré Město

*    .      * 

Moravia Security, a.s.Třinec, Konská      .   –     

H & S PROGRESS s.r.o., Dobrá *   – .      *  

Soukromá střední škola Třinec, s.r.o,, Třinec, 

Staré Město

    – .   –    

TRIALFA, s.r.o., Třinec-Kanada   – .       

MATERIALOVY A METALURGICKÝ 

VÝZKUM s.r.o.,

Ostrava-Vítkovice **** *   – .      * 

TRISIA, a.s., Třinec      .   –     

Řetězárna a.s., Česká Ves      .         

REFRASIL, s.r.o., Třinec-Konská    – .         

Total    –      

Note: * confi dential information

** change in the name from VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. to VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. 

*** change in the name from VÍTKOVICE – Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o. to MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o

italics – preliminary results of operations
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31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name and address Cost Nominal 

value 

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 

Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss 

Provision Net cost Financial 

revenues 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s., Třinec-Sta-

ré Město

       .            

Strojírny Třinec, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město*      .         

Slévárny Třinec, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město      .        

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, 

a.s.,Ostrava-Vítkovice

     .        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o., 

Třinec-Staré Město 

    – .       

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s., Třinec-Sta-

ré Město

     .   – –    

Doprava TŽ, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město      .        

H & S PROGRESS s.r.o., Dobrá *   – .      * 

TRIALFA, s.r.o., Třinec-Kanada   – .       

VÍTKOVICE-Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o., 

Ostrava-Vítkovice

*   – .     * 

TRISIA, a.s., Třinec      .   –     

Řetězárna a.s., Česká Ves      .         

REFRASIL, s.r.o., Třinec-Konská    – .         

Total    –      

Note: * confi dential information

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name and address Cost Nominal 

value 

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 

Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss 

Provision Net cost Financial 

revenues 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s., Třinec-Sta-

ré Město

       .            

Strojírny Třinec, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město*      .         

Slévárny Třinec, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město      .     –    

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, 

a.s.,Ostrava-Vítkovice

     .        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o., Třinec-Sta-

ré Město 

    – .   –    

Doprava TŽ, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město      .        

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s., Třinec-Sta-

ré Město

     .   – –    

TRIALFA, s.r.o., Třinec-Kanada   – .       

TRISIA, a.s., Třinec      .   –     

Řetězárna a.s., Česká Ves      .         

REFRASIL, s.r.o., Třinec-Konská    – .         

Total    –      

4.2.2. Shares and Equity Investments in Associates

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name and address Cost Nominal 

value 

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 

Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss 

Provision Net cost Financial 

revenues 

for the 

year

„ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE“ Spółka z ogra-

niczoną odpowiedzialnością, Cieszyn (PL)*

  – . – –   

SILESIASLAG, a.s., 

Třinec-Staré Město

     .   – –   

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s., Třinec       .         

Hutnictví železa, a.s., Praha       .   – –    

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s., Třinec-Kanada     .      

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s., Třinec, 

Staré Město

  – .  – –  

HRAT, s.r.o., Třinec   – .       

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s., Třinec-Sta-

ré Město

     .         

  –     

Note: * preliminary results of operations in PLN

Italics – preliminary results of operations
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31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name and address Cost Nominal 

value 

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 



Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss 

Provision Net cost Financial 

revenues 

for the 

year

SILESIASLAG, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město*      .   – –   

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s., Třinec       .         

Hutnictví železa, a.s., Praha       .    –    

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s., Třinec-Kanada     .       

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s., Třinec   – .   –  

MS-UNIKOV OSTRAVA s.r.o., Ostrava Svi-

nov

    – . * * –   

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s., Třinec-Sta-

ré Město

     .         

Total   –     

Note.: * the bankruptcy trustee has not provided results

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name and address Cost Nominal 

value 

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 



Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss 

Provision Net cost Financial 

revenues 

for the 

year

SILESIASLAG, a.s., Třinec-Staré Město*      .   – –   

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s., Třinec       .         

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s., Třinec-Kanada     .       

Hutnictví železa, a.s., Praha       .    –    

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s., Třinec   – .   –  

MS-UNIKOV OSTRAVA s.r.o., Ostrava Svi-

nov

    – . * * –   

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s., Třinec-Sta-

ré Město

     .         

Total   –     

Note: * the bankruptcy trustee has not provided results 

4.2.3. Other Non-Current Securities and Equity Investments

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 

Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss

Gain or 

loss from 

revalua-

tion

Fair 

value

Financial 

revenues 

for the 

year

KPM CONSULT, a.s., Brno    .       

ACRI, Praha   – .    –  

Total  –  

Note: italics – preliminary results of operations

31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 

Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss

Gain or 

loss from 

revalua-

tion

Fair 

value

Financial 

revenues 

for the 

year

HRAT, s.r.o., Třinec   – .    –  

KPM CONSULT, a.s., Brno    .       

ACRI, Praha   – .   – –  

Total  –  
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31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of shares 

Owner-

ship 

Equity Accoun-

ting pro-

fi t/loss

Gain or 

loss from 

revalua-

tion

Fair 

value

Financial 

revenues 

for the 

year

HRAT, s.r.o., Třinec   – .    –  

KPM CONSULT, a.s., Brno    .       

ACRI, Praha   – .    –  

Total  –  

4.2.4. Other Non-Current Financial Assets

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Investment Cost Description 

of investment

/collateral

Provision Financial revenue for 

the period to  Dec 



Term deposit   Bank guarantee 

collateral

 

31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Investment Cost Description 

of investment

/collateral

Provision Financial revenue for 

the period to  Dec 



Term deposit   Bank guarantee 

collateral 

 

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Investment Cost Description 

of investment

/collateral

Provision Financial revenue for 

the period to  Dec 



Term deposit   Bank guarantee 

collateral 

 

Major additions to non-current fi nancial assets as of 31 December 2008 include:

– Increase in the share capital in Strojírny Třinec, a.s. of CZK 65,000 thousand;

– Acquisition of the 100 percent equity investment in Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r. o;

– Acquisition of the 100 percent equity in D 5, joint stock company, Třinec,

– Formation of Moravia Security, a.s., with TŽ as the sole owner;

– Formation of Soukromá střední škola Třinec, s.r.o., with TŽ as the sole owner; and

– Acquisition of the 45 percent equity investment in “ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE“ Spółka z ograniczoną odpowiedzialnością.

Major disposals of non-current fi nancial assets as of 31 December 2008 include the write-off  of the equity investment in MS-UNIKOV Ostrava, s.r.o. Th e 

entity was dissolved following the removal from the Register of Companies due to the completion of the bankruptcy proceedings following the fulfi lment 

of the asset allocation resolution. 

4.2.5. Non-current Financial Assets Pledged as Collateral

Th e Company has no non-current fi nancial assets pledged as collateral. 

4.3. Inventory  (CZK thousand)

Structure of inventory Balance at 

 Dec 

Provisions at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Provisions at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Provisions at 

 Dec 

Raw material    –     –     – 

Spare parts   –    –    – 

Technical and overhead material, goods   –    –    – 

Internally produced inventory:

– Work in progress

– Semi-fi nished products

– Finished products

  

 

  

  

– 



– 

– 

  

 

  

  

– 



– 

– 

  

 

  

  

– 



– 

– 

Prepayments       

Total    –     –     –  
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4.4. Receivables 

4.4.1. Long-Term Receivables 

Breakdown of Long-Term Receivables (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

– Prepayments made   

– Other receivables      

Total      

Other receivables include loans advanced to employees as of 31 December 2008 and 2007. 

As of 31 December 2006, other receivables included predominantly loans advanced to employees and a long-term supplier loan, the maturity of which 

is in 2008. For this reason, the long-term supplier loan is recorded in Other short-term receivables as of 31 December 2007. 

Long-term receivables are settled within their due dates.

4.4.2. Short-Term Receivables 

Aging of Short-Term Trade Receivables (CZK thousand)

Year Category Before due date Past due date Total 

 –  days  –  days  –  days  –  years  years and gre-

ater

 Short-term             

Provisions – – – – –  – 

Total            

 Short-term              

Provisions –  – – – –  –  –  

Total            

 Short-term               

Provisions –  –  – –  –  – 

Total            

Breakdown of Short-Term Trade Receivables (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

– customers         

– other receivables      

– provision –  –  – 

Total         

Other Short-Term Receivables 

Short-term prepayments made principally involve prepayments for supplied services and prepayments of charges relating to air pollution. 

State – tax receivables predominantly include a receivables arising from the corporate income tax and a receivable arising from the excessive deduction 

from the value added tax. 

Other receivables mainly relate to the outstanding dividends, loan contract and bank guarantees.

Estimated receivables principally include amounts due from insurance proceeds. 

Receivables typically mature within 30 days.
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4.4.3. Intercompany Receivables 

Short-Term Recei vables  (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at Dec 

• Trade balances

Doprava TŽ, a.s.      

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.*  – –

D, akciová společnost*   – –

MORAVIA STEEL a.s.         

REFRASIL, s.r.o.   

Řetězárna, a.s.   

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

TRIALFA, s.r.o.      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.   

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.    

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.      

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.      

SILESIASLAG, a.s.   

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.   

Kvalifi kační a personální agentura, o.p.s.   

TRISIA, a.s.   

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Třinec     

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.      

Beskydská golfová, a.s.   

VALCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.*      

VÚHŽ, a.s.   –

Moravia Security, a.s.*  – –

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o.*   –

Total         

• Other intercompany receivables

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.    

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.     

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.    

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Třinec

Zameczek Błogocice

 

 

 

–

 

–

Total      

Total short-term intercompany receivables         

Other than intercompany receivables      

Total short-term receivables         

* Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. became part of the group on 8 April 2008, D5, joint stock company on 20 June 2008, Moravia Security, a.s. on 15 February 2008 and Zameczek Błogocice on 24 October 

2008, the change in the name from VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. to VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. and the change in the name from VÍTKOVICE – Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o. to MATE-

RIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o.,

Long-Term Receivables  (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Long-term receivables 

• Other 

St rojírny Třinec, a.s.    

Total long-term intercompany receivables    

Other than intercompany receivables      

Total long-term receivables      

4.4.4. Pledged Receivables

None of the Companys receivables were pledged.
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4.5. Current Financial Assets (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Cash      

Current accounts       

Current deposit – special-purpose funds of the received state aid     

Short-term securities and equity investments        

Provision against current fi nancial assets   – 

Total current fi nancial assets         

Short-term securities and equity investments as of 31 December 2008 include depository notes of Komerční banka, a.s. of CZK 774,051 thousand, ČSOB, 

a.s. of CZK 25,001 thousand Raiff eisenbank, a.s. of CZK 610,033 thousand, Česká spořitelna, a.s. of CZK 688,038 thousand and tradable securities of CZK 

15,349 thousand.

Short-term securities and equity investments as of 31 December 2007 include depository notes of Komerční banka, a.s. of CZK 1,195,145 thousand, Raiff eisenbank, a.s. of 

CZK 300,090 thousand, HSBC Bank plc. of CZK 101,010 thousand, Citibank, a.s. of CZK 69,007 thousand, ČSOB, a.s. of CZK 558,259 thousand and tra-

dable securities of CZK 17,208 thousand. 

Short-term securities and equity investments as of 31 December 2006 included depository notes of Komerční banka, a.s. of CZK 545,105 thousand, Čes-

koslovenská obchodní banka, a.s. of CZK 24,752 thousand and Raiff eisenbank, a.s. of CZK 9,626 thousand, tradable securities of CZK 716 thousand and 

equity interest in Beskydská golfová, a.s. of CZK 93,048 thousand, reduced by a provision, which was sold in January 2007.

4.6. Deferred Expenses and Accrued Income (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Deferred expenses      

Deferred expenses – lease contracts      

Other deferred expenses – studies, projects, interest, subscription payments, right of 

use

     

Complex deferred expenses      

Accrued income   

Total deferred expenses and accrued income      

Deferred expenses principally consist of deferred fi nance lease instalments, projects, and analyses relating to repairs scheduled for the coming period.

As of 31 December 2008, a signifi cant portion of deferred expenses relates to the right to use new technologies. 

Complex deferred expenses primarily consist of deferred implementation of information systems.

4.7. Shareholders’ Equity

Allocations to the statutory reserve fund are made at 5 percent of net profi ts until the fund reaches 20 percent of the Companys share capital, that is, the 

level required by law. 

Gains and losses from revaluation comprise the gain or loss from the revaluation of available-for-sale securities, net of the deferred tax liability.

At the General Meeting held on 23 June 2008, the shareholders approved the allocation of the profi t of CZK 3,633,114 thousand generated in 2007 as 

follows:

 (CZK thousand)

Allocation to the statutory reserve fund  

Retained earnings   

Th e General Meeting of Shareholders decided not to declare dividends for 2007, gross dividends for 2006 were CZK 250 per share and gross dividends for 

2005 were CZK 100 per share. 

On 28 September 2008, the payment of dividends for 2003 declared by the General Meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2004 which were due on 

28 September 2004 became statute barred. Th e amount of these dividends of CZK 1,640 thousand was written off  to other fi nancial income. 

4.7.1. Share Capital 

Th e Companys share capital is composed of 8,109,863 ordinary registered shares, fully subscribed and paid up, with a nominal value of CZK 1 thousand per 

share. Th e Extraordinary General Meeting held on 19 November 2007 approved a change of the book-entry to the certifi cate form of shares. Th e change of 

the form of the Companys shares was registered in the Register of Companies on 13 December 2007. Th e shares were deregistered from the Prague Stock 

Exchange in 2002.

On 16 December 2008, the Companys shares in the certifi cate form which were not collected by their owners after the change of the book-entry to the 

certifi cate form of shares were auctioned. Th e shares were not sold, and a repeated enforced auction will be held in 2009. As of 31 December 2008, the 

number of uncollected shares was 84,119. 
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4.8. Reserves  (CZK thousand)

Reserves under special legislation Other reserves Total reserves 

Reserve for repairs 

of tangible FA

Reserve for restoration

Balance at  Dec         

Creation       

Use       

Balance at  Dec         

Cre   ation      

Use       

Balance at  Dec         

Th e reserves for repairs of tangible fi xed assets (tax deductible) were made for repairs of main production facilities in compliance with the Provisioning 

Act. Th e creation of reserves is based upon a long-term repair plan, timing and budget of repairs. 

Other reserves consist of reserves for the scrapping of equipment, emission allowances, additionally assessed taxes, real estate transfer tax, employee 

bonuses, losses incurred in connection with concluded long-term contracts. 

4.9. Payables 

4.9.1. Long-Term Payables (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Long-term payables

– Long-term trade payables      

– Long-term prepayments received    

– Long-term bills of exchange to be settled    

– Other payables    

– Deferred tax liability      

Total      

Long-term trade payables include the aggregate amount of CZK 11,570 thousand relating to retentions from suppliers under concluded contracts. 

As of 31 December 2006, long-term bills of exchange to be settled refl ected the nominal value of bills of exchange issued in order to cover the due amount 

arising from the renovation and modernisation of the light section mill. Interest expense on these bills of exchange is recorded as a deferred expense. As 

of 31 December 2008 and 2007, the bills of exchange are posted to short-term trade payables. 

4.9.2. Deferred Income Tax 

Th e deferred tax liability is analysed as follows: (CZK thousand)

Deferred tax arising from Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Diff erence between tax and accounting carrying value of fi xed assets –   –   –  

Revaluation of available-for-sale securities   

Accounting reserves      

Provisions       

Expenses tax deductible in the following periods      

Total –   –   –  

Tax rate (in ) ,  ,  

Deferred tax liability –  –  – 

As of 31 December 2008, the Company anticipates realising certain temporary diff erences giving rise to a deferred tax asset in 2009 and hence it used the 

tax rate of 20 percent. By contrast, the Company used the 19 percent tax rate in respect of other temporary diff erences giving rise to a deferred tax liabili-

ty and a deferred tax asset to be realised after 2009. 

 (CZK thousand)

Analysis of movements 

 January  – 

Current changes charged against the profi t and loss account  

Total changes against the profi t and loss account  

Current changes charged against equity –

 December  – 
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4.9.3. Income Tax on Ordinary and Extraordinary Activities (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Profi t before tax          

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of   ( ,  )       

Tax eff ect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profi t –  –  – 

Additional taxes of prior years –    – 

Total income tax on ordinary and extraordinary activities      

4.9.4. Short-Term Payables (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Short-term payables 

– suppliers         

– bills of exchange to be settled     

Totals         

Aging of short-term trade payables  (CZK thousand)

Period Category Before due date Past due date Total 

 –  days  –  days  –  days  –  years  years and gre-

ater

 Short-term            

 Short-term             

 Short-term            

Payables typically fall due for settlement within 30 days. Signifi cant payables past due more than 90 days predominantly arise from off set agreements in 

progress. 

Other Payables

As of 31 December 2008, payables associated with social security and the state employment policy contribution amounted to CZK 52,289 thousand, health 

insurance payables totalled CZK 22,305 thousand, and pension insurance payables totalled CZK 2,612 thousand. Th e Company has no past due social 

security or health insurance payables.

Th e category State – tax payables and subsidies principally comprises payables arising from the personal income tax and received research and develo-

pment subsidies under which the Company received CZK 16,452 thousand for operating activities and CZK 48 thousand for investments. 

Estimated payables mainly consist of unbilled supplies of work and services, estimated amount for outstanding vacation days and annual bonuses in-

cluding insurance. 

Other payables primarily relate to employee deductions. 
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4.9.5. Intercompany Payables 

Short-Term Payables  (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at Dec 

• Trade payables

Doprava TŽ, a.s.      

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Hutnictví železa, a.s.   

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.*  – –

MORAVIA STEEL a.s.         

REFRASIL, s.r.o.      

Řetězárna Česká Ves, a.s.   

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

TRIALFA, s.r.o.      

TRISIA, a.s.     

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.      

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.       

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.     

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.      

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Třinec      

Beskydská golfová, a.s.   

D, akciová společnost*   – –

VALCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.*    

VÚHŽ, a.s.    –

Moravia Security, a.s.*   – –

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o.*    –

KAPA, o.p.s.   

Total short-term intercompany payables         

Other than intercompany payables         

Total short-term payables         

*  Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. became part of the group on 8 April 2008, D5, joint stock company on 20 June 2008, Moravia Security, a.s. on 15 February 2008 and Zameczek Błogocice on 24 October 

2008, change in the name from VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. to VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. and change in the name of VÍTKOVICE – Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o. to MATERIÁLOVÝ 

A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o. 

Long-Term Payables (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at Dec 

Long-term payables

• Trade

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.   

D, joint stock company   – –

Total long-term intercompany payables    

Other than intercompany payables      

Total long-term payables      
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4.9.6. Bank Loans 

Long-Term Bank Loans  (CZK thousand)

Type of loan Currency Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Interest rate  Form of collateral at  Dec 

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . ÖKB guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . CESCE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK     M PRIBOR + . Real estate, collateral bill of exchange, LoC MS

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK      M PRIBOR + . Real estate, collateral bill of exchange, LoC MS

Investment CZK       FIX . Immovable and movable assets, blank bill of ex-

change

Investment CZK       M PRIBOR + . Movable assets, guarantee statement of MS

Investment CZK       FIX . Movable assets, guarantee statement of MS

Investment CZK       FIX . Immovable and movable assets, guarantee state-

ment of MS, blank bill of exchange 

Total         

Short-Term Bank Loans  (CZK thousand)

Type of loan Currency Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Interest rate  Form of collateral at  Dec 

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . ÖKB guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . CESCE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . EKN guarantee insurer

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . EKN guarantee insurer

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR     M EUROLIBOR + . KUKE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK     M PRIBOR + . Real estate, blank bill of exchange, LoC MS

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK       M PRIBOR + . Real estate, blank bill of exchange, LoC MS

Investment CZK       FIX . Real estate and movable assets, blank bill of ex-

change 

Investment CZK       M PRIBOR + . Movable assets, guarantee statement of MS

Investment CZK       FIX . Movable assets, guarantee statement of MS

Investment CZK       FIX . Real estate and movable assets, guarantee state-

ment of MS, blank bill of exchange.

Total      

Repayment Schedule  (CZK thousand)

Years      Following 

periods 

Total 

Loan instalments               

4.10. Accrued Expenses and Deferred Income  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Accrued expenses      

– Interest, fees      

– Invoices, credit notes     

Deferred income   

Total accrued expenses and deferred income      
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4.11. Assets and Liabilities Denominated in Foreign Currencies

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

CZK USD EUR SKK Other Total 

Tangible fi xed assets            

Non-current fi nancial assets           

Inventory            

Short-term receivables            

Current fi nancial assets           

Total            

Short-term payables            

Bank loans and borrowings          

Total            

31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

CZK GBP USD EUR SKK Other Total 

Tangible fi xed assets             

Non-current fi nancial assets            

Inventory           

Short-term receivables             

Current fi nancial assets            

Total              

Short-term payables              

Bank loans and borrowings           

Total              

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

CZK USD EUR SKK Other Total 

Tangible fi xed assets           

Non-current fi nancial assets           

Inventory          

Long-term receivables         

Short-term receivables            

Current fi nancial assets            

Total            

Long-term payables         

Short-term payables             

Bank loans and borrowings           

Total              

4.12. Details of Income  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Proceeds of the sale of goods      

Proceeds of the sale of products and services, of which:         

– Products         

– Energy      

– Services      

Change in internally produced inventory      

Own work capitalised      

Total income         

4.13. Consumed Purchases and Products Sold  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Consumed material         

Consumed energy         

Goods sold     

Total consumed purchases         



58 F I N A N C I A L  P A R T

4.14. Services  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Repairs and maintenance         

Transportation expenses      

Cooperation      

Leasing      

Right of use      

Promotion      

Rental, leases      

Cleaning services      

Gas and oil distribution      

Audit services      

Other services      

Total         

Other services primarily include security guard services, expert and consultation services, services related to the disposal and demolition of assets, lease 

of facilities, training, transport and telecommunication services.

4.15. Change in Reserves and Provisions Relating to Operating Activities and Complex Deferred Expenses (CZK thousand)

Movements in  Movements in  Movements in 

Change in the reserve under special legislation: –  –  – 

– reserves for repairs –  –  – 

– reserves for waste – – – 

Change in other reserves: –     

– reserve for contractual losses     – 

– reserve for fi delity bonuses – – –

– reserve for liquidation   –  

– reserve for removing legacy environmental burdens –    

– reserve for real estate transfer tax  – 

– reserve for missing emission allowances    

– other –   –   

Change in complex deferred expenses      

Change in the provisions under special legislation –  –  – 

Change in accounting provisions:   –   

– change in provisions against receivables  –  – 

– change in provisions against assets –  –  

– change in provisions against inventory   –   

Total   –  – 

4.16. Other Operating Income  CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Contractual penalties and default interest     

Recoveries of receivables written off  and transferred     

Received subsidies      

Other operating income        

Total other operating income        

Received subsidies refl ect the allowed state subsidy for operating purposes (refer to Note 4.17). 

As of 31 December 2008, other operating income of the Company mainly involves the release of the subsidy related to the use of greenhouse emission 

allowances of CZK 1,556,241 thousand and other operating subsidies and contributions (refer to Note 4.17). 

4.17. Subsidies 

Other subsidies for operating purposes of CZK 4,832 thousand received for the year ended 31 December 2008 (CZK 591 thousand and CZK 2,819 thousand 

in 2007 and 2006, respectively) included subsidies for research purposes. 

In addition, the Company received allowances of CZK 5,741 thousand and CZK 18,624 thousand from the Ministry of Industry and Trade as of 31 De-

cember 2007 and 2006, respectively, designed to address the social implications of the steel industry restructuring eff orts. 

Drawing of Allowed State Aid 

Th e state aid is provided both for operating and investment purposes. 

Until 2008, the Company received CZK 278,786 thousand and CZK 149,217 thousand for operating and investment purposes, respectively.
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 (CZK thousand)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed state 

aid in  

(drawn) 

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed state 

aid in 

(drawn)

Research and development            

Environment          

Education            

Total            

 (CZK thousand)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Total 

eligible 

expenses until 

 Dec  

Allowed state 

aid until 

 Dec  

(drawn)

Research and development            

Environment          

Education          

Total            

 (CZK thousand)

Allowed state aid 

(received)

Returned state aid State aid 

(to be drawn)

Research and development     

Environment     

Education     

Total     

Environmental and educational projects were completed as of 31 December 2007. Research and development projects were completed as of 30 June 2008. 

4.18. Other Operating Expenses  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Gifts      

Penalties and default interest    

Write-off s of receivables and transferred receivables      

Other operating expenses        

Defi cits and damage relating to operating activities      

Total other operating expenses        

As of 31 December 2008, other operating expenses primarily refl ect the use of greenhouse emission allowances of CZK 1,608,152 thousand.

Write-off s of receivables and transferred receivables as of 31 December 2008 predominantly include receivables from STA Frýdek-Místek, Košický mag-

nezit, INTERLOCK-Strop Potor, Montimex Ostrava.

Write-off s of receivables and transferred receivables as of 31 December 2007 predominantly include receivables written off  as a result of the bankruptcy 

proceedings of Besta Přestanov, s.p., FELD, spol. s r. o. and ZVL – ZKL akciová spoločnosť. 

Write-off s of receivables and transferred receivables as of 31 December 2006 predominantly included a written-off  receivable of the bankrupt VT DIOSS 

Hladké trubky, s.r.o.

4.19. Other Financial Income  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Foreign exchange rate gains      

Other fi nancial income      

Total      

4.20. Other Financial Expenses  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Foreign exchange rate losses      

Banking fees      

Other fi nancial expenses      

Total      

Other fi nancial expenses refl ected the write-off  of an equity interest in MS-UNIKOV OSTRAVA s.r.o. in the amount of CZK 52,000 thousand due to the 

completion of the bankruptcy proceedings. 
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4.21. Research and Development Costs (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Research and development costs (net of subsidies)       

4.22. Related Party Transactions 

4.22.1. Income Generated with Related Parties 

2008 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the Company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprav    a TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity          

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Controlled entity           

Kvalif. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity      

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity            

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Controlled entity          

Řetězárna a.s. Controlled entity         

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity          

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity          

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity      

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity       

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity            

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity         

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity           

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Controlled entity           

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity      

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity      

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. Controlled entity      

Moravia Security, a.s. Controlled entity       

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o. Controlled entity      

D, akciová společnost, Třinec Controlled entity         

VÚHŽ a.s. Controlled entity         

ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE Controlled entity      

H & S PROGRESS s.r.o. Controlled entity        

Total              

2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the Company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Controlled entity          

Kvalif. a pers. Agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity      

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity             

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

Řetězárna Česká Ves, a.s. Controlled entity        

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity          

TRIALFA, a.s. Controlled entity          

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity         

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity      

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity          

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity        

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity            

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Controlled entity           

VÚHŽ, a.s.        

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity      

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Fellow subsidiary      

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. Controlled entity            

Total              
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2006 (CZK thousand) 

Entity Relation 

to the Company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Controlled entity          

Kabelová televize Třinec, spol. s r.o. Controlled entity      

Kvalif. a pers. Agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity      

MORAVIA ENERGO, a.s. Controlled entity      

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity            

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

Řetězárna Česká Ves, a.s. Controlled entity      

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity          

TRIALFA, a.s. Controlled entity          

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity      

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity          

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity        

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity            

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity      

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity      

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. Controlled entity          

Total            

4.22.2. Purchases 

2008 (CZK thousand)

Entity Type of entity Fixed 

assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Controlled entity          

Kvalif. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity     

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity           

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

Řetězárna a.s. Controlled entity       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity       

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity       

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity         

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity       

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity       

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       

Hutnictví železa, a.s. Controlled entity       

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s. r.o. Controlled entity     

Moravia Security, a.s. Controlled entity       

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o. Controlled entity       

D, akciová společnost, Třinec Controlled entity         

VÚHŽ a.s. Controlled entity       

Total             
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2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Type of entity Fixed 

assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Controlled entity          

Hutnictví železa, a. s. Controlled entity       

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity     

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity           

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Controlled entity       

Řětězárna Česká Ves, a.s. Controlled entity       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity        

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity       

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity         

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity       

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

VÚHŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. Controlled entity       

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Controlled entity     

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Fellow subsidiary       

Total            

2006 (CZK thousand)

Entity Type of entity Fixed 

assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Controlled entity          

Hutnictví železa, a. s. Controlled entity       

Kabelová televize, spol. s r.o. Controlled entity     

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity     

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity           

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

Řětězárna Česká Ves, a.s. Controlled entity       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity        

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity       

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity         

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity       

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity        

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity     

MORAVIA ENERGO, a.s. Controlled entity       

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. Controlled entity       

FERROMORAVIA, s r.o. Controlled entity     

Total            

4.22.3. Sale of Fixed Assets and Non-Current Financial Assets 

2008 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the Company 

Tangible fi xed assets

NBV Selling price

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. Controlled entity  

Total  
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2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the Company 

Non-current fi nancial assets Tangible fi xed assets

NBV Selling price NBV Selling price

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlled entity      

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. Controlled entity    

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Controlled entity    

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s Controlled entity      

Total        

2006 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the Company 

Intangible fi xed assets Tangible fi xed assets

NBV Selling price NBV Selling price

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity      

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Controlled entity    

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlled entity    

Total      

5. Employees, Management and Statutory Bodies 

5.1. Staff Costs and Number of Employees 

Th e average number of the Companys employees and managers and staff  costs for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Number Wages 

and salaries

Social security 

and health 

insurance, 

incl. pension 

insurance 

contributions

Bonuses to the 

members of 

stat. bodies

Social costs Total staff  

costs 

Employees             

Foreign employees         

Management          

– Management remuneration for          

– bonuses for        

Estimated amounts for outstanding vacation days and bonuses –  –    – 

Total              

* social costs predominantly include staff  costs of employees hired through the employment agency (change in the reporting treatment since 2007, previously reported under Services)

31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Number Wages 

and salaries

Social security 

and health 

insurance, 

incl. pension 

insurance 

contribution

Bonuses to the 

members of 

stat. bodies

Social costs Total staff  

costs 

Employees              

Foreign employees         

Management          

– Management remuneration for          

– bonuses for         

Estimated amounts for outstanding vacation days and bonuses        

Total              

* social costs predominantly include staff  costs of employees hired through the employment agency (change in the reporting treatment since 2007, previously reported under Services)
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31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Number Wages 

and salaries

Social security 

and health 

insurance, 

incl. pension 

insurance 

contribution

Bonuses to the 

members of 

stat. bodies

Social costs Total staff  

costs 

Employees             

Foreign employees         

Management           

– Management remuneration for           

– bonuses for         

Estimated amounts for outstanding vacation days and bonuses – –   –

Total              

Th e number of employees is based on the average recalculated headcount. Th e category of management includes the Chief Executive Offi  cer and divisional 

directors.

Total Remuneration  (CZK thousand)

Board of Directors Supervisory Board 

Remuneration for     

Remuneration for     

Remuneration for     

5.2. Loans, Borrowings, and Other Benefits Provided

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Board of Directors Supervisory Board Management 

Company cars used for both business and private purposes (the fi gure increases the 

tax base of employees)

 

 

Liability insurance   

31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Board of Directors Supervisory Board Management 

Company cars used for both business and private purposes (the fi gure increases the 

tax base of employees)

  

Liability insurance   

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Board of Directors Supervisory Board Management 

Company cars used for both business and private purposes (the fi gure increases the 

tax base of employees)

  

Insurance contribution     

Liability insurance   

6. Contingent Liabilities and off Balance Sheet Commitments 

Th e Company retains the following commitments off  balance sheet:

31 December 2008

Type of commitment Total amount Balance at  Dec 

Guarantee statements

– to Group companies EUR  thousand CZK , thousand

Guarantees

– to other entities USD  thousand CZK , thousand

EUR  thousand CZK , thousand

CZK , thousand CZK , thousand
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31 December 2007

Type of commitment Total amount Balance at  Dec 

Parent company debt acceptance EUR , thousand CZK , thousand

Guarantee statements

– to Group companies EUR  thousand CZK , thousand

Guarantees

– to other entities  USD , thousand CZK , thousand

EUR  thousand CZK , thousand

CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

31 December 2006

Type of commitment Total amount Balance at  Dec 

Parent company debt acceptance EUR , thousand CZK , thousand

Guarantees

– to other entities USD  thousand CZK , thousand

EUR  thousand CZK , thousand

CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

Collateralising blank bills of exchange

– to other entities SKK , thousand CZK , thousand

Environmental Liabilities

Th e Company was subject to an environmental audit which highlighted the Companys environmental obligations. Based upon the audit, the Company 

entered into an agreement with the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic for the settlement of expenses involved in removing environmental 

liabilities up to CZK 514 million that had arisen prior to privatisation. As of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company drew CZK 335,735 thousand, 

CZK 299,316 thousand and CZK 259,744 thousand, respectively. 

Given the amendment to this contract concluded on 3 November 2008 with the Czech Republic – Ministry of Finance, the guarantee of the Minist-

ry is capped at CZK 843.6 million. Th is guarantee covers environmental liabilities of the Company. For this reason, the Company released the reserve for 

environmental burdens (refer to Note 4.15). 

7. Post Balance Sheet Events

On 21 January 2009, the Company increased its equity investment in ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE, Spółka z ograniczoną odpowiedzialnością, Poland, by 

43 percent, i.e. to a total of 88 percent. 

On 4 February 2009, the Company entered into a contract for the sale of the 100 percent equity investment in FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.
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Financial Part II. – Consolidated Financial 
Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2008

Name of the Company: TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a. s.

Registered Offi  ce: Průmyslová ,   Třinec-Staré Město

Legal Status: Joint Stock Company

Corporate ID: 

Components of the Consolidated Financial Statements: 

• Consolidated Balance Sheet

• Consolidated Profi t and Loss Account

• Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

• Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

• Consolidated Notes to the Financial Statements 

These consolidated financial statements were prepared on 7 April 2009. 

Statutory body of the reporting entity: Signature

Ing. Jiří Cieńciała, CSc. 

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ing. Jaroslava Ciahotná

First Vice Chairwoman of the Board 

of Directors

12.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  FULL VERSION (CZK thousand)

.. .. ..

Gross Adjustment Net Net Net

TOTAL ASSETS    –           

B. Fixed assets    –           

I. Intangible fi xed assets   –       

. Research and development   –    

. Software   –       

. Valuable rights   –       

. Other intangible fi xed assets   –      

. Intangible fi xed assets under construction       

. Prepayments for intangible fi xed assets     

II. Tangible fi xed assets    –           

. Land         

. Structures    –           

. Individual movable assets and sets of movable assets    –           

. Other tangible fi xed assets   –      

. Tangible fi xed assets under construction   –        

. Prepayments for tangible fi xed assets         

. Valuation diff erence on acquired assets    – –

III. Non-current fi nancial assets   –       

. Equity investments in subsidiaries   –       

. Equity investments in associates   –       

. Other securities and investments     

. Other non-current fi nancial assets   –      

. Acquisition of non-current fi nancial assets   –     

IV. Consolidation diff erences (goodwill)   –    –  – 

. Positive consolidation diff erence (goodwill)   –      

. Negative consolidation diff erence (negative goodwill)    –  – 

V. Securities and equity interests under equity accounting         

C. Current assets    –           

I. Inventories    –           

. Material    –          

. Work in progress and semifi nished goods    –          

. Products    –          

. Goods   –      

. Prepayments for inventory       

II. Long-term receivables         

. Trade receivables         

. Long-term prepayments made       

. Other receivables         

. Deferred tax asset        

III. Short-term receivables    –          

. Trade receivables    –          

. Receivables from subsidiaries   –    

. Social security and health insurance contributions     

. State - tax receivables         

. Short-term prepayments made         

. Estimated receivables         

. Other receivables   –       

IV. Current fi nancial assets             

. Cash on hand         

. Cash at bank           

. Short-term securities and investments            

D. Other assets         

. Deferred expenses         

. Complex deferred expenses         

. Accrued income       

Control number    –           
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (CZK thousand)

.. .. ..

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY         

A. Equity         

I. Share capital         

. Share capital         

II. Capital funds      

. Other capital funds      

. Gains or losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities – –  

III. Statutory funds         

. Statutory reserve fund / Indivisible fund      

. Statutory and other funds         

IV. Profi t or loss of previous periods         

Retained earnings         

Accumulated losses brought forward –  – 

V. Profi t or loss for the current period (+ -)         

. Profi t or loss for the period         

. Share of income from associates      

VI. Consolidation reserve fund      

B. Liabilities         

I. Reserves      

. Reserves under special legislation      

. Other reserves      

II. Long-term liabilities      

. Trade payables      

. Long-term prepayments received    

. Long-term bills of exchange to be paid    

. Other payables    

. Deferred tax liability      

III. Short-term liabilities         

. Trade payables         

. Payables to partners and association members      

. Payables to employees      

. Social security and health insurance payables      

. State - tax payables and subsidies      

. Short-term prepayments received      

. Estimated payables      

. Other payables      

IV. Bank loans and borrowings         

. Long-term bank loans         

. Short-term bank loans       

C. Other liabilities      

. Accrued expenses      

. Deferred income     

D Minority equity      

Minority share capital      

Minority capital funds    

Minority profi t funds incl. retained earnings and accumulated losses      

Minority profi t or loss for the period      

Control number         
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT STRUCTURED BY THE NATURE OF EXPENSE METHOD (CZK thousand)

Year ended .. Year ended .. Year ended ..

I. Sales of goods      

A. Costs of goods sold      

 + Gross margin      

II. Production         

. Sales of own products and services         

. Change in internally produced inventory      

. Own work capitalised      

B. Purchased consumables and services         

. Consumed material and energy         

. Services         

 + Added value         

C. Staff  costs         

. Payroll costs         

. Remuneration to members of statutory bodies      

. Social security and health insurance costs        

. Social costs      

D. Taxes and charges      

E. Depreciation of intangible and tangible fi xed assets         

KR A. Amortisation of consolidation diff erence (goodwill)    

KR . Release of negative consolidation diff erence (negative goodwill)      

III. Sales of fi xed assets and material      

. Sales of fi xed assets      

. Sales of material      

F. Net book value of fi xed assets and material sold      

. Net book value of sold fi xed assets      

. Book value of sold material      

G. Change in reserves and provisions relating to operating activities and 

complex deferred expenses

  –  – 

IV. Other operating income        

H. Other operating expenses        

* Operating profi t or loss         

VI. Proceeds from the sale of securities and investments      

J. Cost of securities and investments sold      

VII. Income from non-current fi nancial assets     

. Income from subsidiaries and associates    

. Income from other non-current fi nancial assets   

IX. Income from the revaluation of securities and derivates     

L. Costs of the revaluation of securities and derivates  

M. Change in reserves and provisions relating to fi nancial activities –  –  – 

X. Interest income      

N. Interest expenses      

XI. Other fi nancial income      

O. Other fi nancial expenses      

* Financial profi t or loss –  –  – 

Q. Income tax on ordinary activities       

. – due       

. – deferred –  –   

** Profi t or loss from ordinary activities         

XIII. Extraordinary income   

R. Extraordinary expenses  

S. Income tax on extraordinary activities   

. – due 

* Extraordinary profi t or loss –  

** Consolidated profi t or loss net of share of income of associates         

Consolidated profi t or loss net of minority interests         

Minority profi t or loss      

* Share of income from associates      

Profi t or loss for the current period (+/-)         

*** Profi t or loss for the current period (+/-)         
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CZK thousand)

Share 

capital

Capital 

funds

Statutory 

reserve 

fund

Statutory 

funds

Accu-

mulated 

profi ts 

brought 

forward

Profi t 

or loss 

for the 

current 

period

Conso-

lidation 

reserve 

fund

Share of 

income of 

associates

TOTAL 

EQUITY

Balance at  December                        

Increase in share capital        

Distribution of retained earnings     –     –  

Dividends –  – 

Payments from the social fund –   – 

Impact of changes in the consolidated group     

Other    –   

Balance at  December                        

Increase in share capital        

Distribution of retained earnings     –    –  

Dividends –   –  

Revaluation of assets –  – 

Payments from capital funds – –

Impact of changes in the consolidated group     –  

Other    

Balance at  December                        

Profi t for the period        

Distribution of retained earnings        –     –  

Revaluation of assets – –

Payments from the social fund –  – 

Impact of changes in the consolidated group     

Balance at  December                        
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CZK thousand)

Year ended .. Year ended .. Year ended ..

P. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the accounting period         

Cash fl ows from ordinary activities

Z. Profi t/(loss) from ordinary activities before tax         

A.. Adjustments for non-cash transactions        

A... Depreciation of fi xed assets (+) excluding net book value of fi xed assets 

sold, amortisation of goodwill and goodwill on consolidation

        

A... Change in provisions and reserves   –  – 

A... Profi t/(loss) on the sale of fi xed assets (-/+) –  –  – 

A... Revenues from dividends and profi t shares (-), with the exception of divi-

dends paid by Group entities 

–    –

A... Interest expense (+) excluding capitalized interest and interest income (-)      

A... FX diff erences and other non-cash transactions     – 

A.* Net cash fl ow from operating activities before tax, movements 

in working capital and extraordinary items 

        

A.. Change in non-cash component of working capital –    – 

A... Change in receivables from operating activities(+/-), deferred expenses, 

accrued income and estimated assets

     

A... Change in short-term payables from operating activities (+/-), accrued 

expenses, deferred income and estimated liabilities

     

A... Change in inventory –   –  – 

A... Change in current fi nancial assets not included in cash and cash 

equivalents 

     

A.** Net cash fl ow from operating activities before tax and extraordinary 

items

        

A.. Interest paid (-), except interest capitalized –  –  – 

A.. Interest received (+)      

A.. Income tax paid from operating activities, additional tax paid for previous 

periods (-)

–  –  – 

A.. Receipts and expenditures relating to extraordinary activities, which form 

extraordinary profi t or loss, including  income tax paid from extraordinary 

activities (+/-)

–  

A.. Received dividends and profi t shares (+)      

A.*** Net cash fl ow from operating activities         

Cash fl ows from investing activities 

B.. Fixed assets expenditures  –   –   –  

B.. Receipts from fi xed assets sold      

B.. Cash fl ows from the acquisition of business or its part –   – 

B.*** Net cash fl ow from investing activities –   –   –  

Cash fl ow from fi nancial activities

C.. Change in long-term or short-term payables which fall into cash and cash 

equivalent in fi nancing activities 

  –  – 

C.. Impact on cash and cash equivalents due to change in equity –  –   – 

C... Increase in cash and cash equivavalents due to a change in share capital, 

share premium, reserve fund, including prepayments made for this 

increase (+)

C... Payments made from funds (-)  – – 

C... Dividends and profi t shares paid, including withholding tax related to these 

claims and including fi nancial settlement with partners (-), except 

for dividends and profi t shares paid between Group entities

–  –   – 

C.*** Net cash fl ow from fi nancial activities   –   –  

F. Net increase or decrease of cash and cash equivalents –      

R. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the accounting period         
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. General Information 

1.1. Incorporation and Description of the Business 

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a. s. (henceforth the “Company”) was formed by the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic on the basis of a Deed of 

Foundation as a joint stock company registered in Třinec, Czech Republic, and was incorporated following its registration in the Register of Companies 

of the Regional Court in Ostrava on 21 March 1991. Th e Company is primarily engaged in metallurgy with a closed metallurgical cycle. In addition to the 

production of coke, pig iron and steel, the range of principal products provided by the Company involves the products of rolling mills, namely blooms, 

slabs, billets, rods, reinforcing bars and thin, medium and heavy sections. Th e Company benefi ts from its incumbent status of being the Czech monopoly 

in respect of the manufacture of rails.

Th e Companys registered offi  ce is located in Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová 1000, 739 70.

Th e Companys issued share capital is CZK 8,109,863 thousand.

Th e following table shows individuals and corporate entities with ownership interest greater than 20 percent and the amount of their interest:

Shareholder Ownership percentage 

MORAVIA STEEL a. s. . 

Other legal entities and individuals . 

Total . 

1.2. Group Identification 

Th e Company is included in the MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Group. MORAVIA STEEL a.s. is controlled by FINITRADING a.s. and R.F.G., a.s., acting in con-

cert.

1.3. Board of Directors and Supervisory Board as of 31 December 2006

Position Name 

Board of Directors Chairman Jiří Cienciala

st Vice Chairwoman Jaroslava Ciahotná

nd Vice Chairman Jan Czudek

Member Jan Lasota

Member Česlav Marek

Member Petr Matuszek

Supervisory Board Chairman Tomáš Chrenek

st Vice Chairman Ján Moder

nd Vice Chairman Hanns K. Zöllner

Member František Ligocki

Member Evžen Balko

Member Roman Mitręga

Member Vladislav Heczko

Member Jozef Blaško

Member Pablo Alarcón Espinosa

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the following changes were made to the composition of the Companys Supervisory Board:

Supervisory Board:

Position Original member New member Date of the change

Member Oldřich Cieslar Roman Mitręga  Nov 

Member Jiří Stašák Vladislav Heczko  Nov 

On 21 January 2009, the change in the name of the Chairman of the Board of Directors from Jiří Cienciala to Jiří Cieńciała was recorded in the Register 

of Companies. 
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2. Definition Of the Consolidated Group, Consolidation System and Methods

2.1. Basic Organisational Structure 

2.2. Names and Registered Offices of Subsidiaries and Associates included in the Consolidated Group 

Th e following companies were included into the consolidated group (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008:

Subsidiaries

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at  Dec 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a. s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and distribution of heat and electricity . 

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Locksmithing, smithcraft, tool engineering . 

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Foundry industry . 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová ,   Production and metallurgic processing of iron 

and steel

. 

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŹ, a.s. Ostrava-Vítkovice, Výstavní ,   Production of steel tubes . 

VÚHŽ a.s. Dobrá ,   Production of car, metallurgical, manufacturing 

and foundry products

. 

H&S PROGRESS s.r.o. Dobrá ,   Wholesale mediation . 

Šroubárna Kyjov spol. s r.o. Jiráskova ,  , Kyjov Metalworking, locksmithing, production 

of machinery and equipment

 . 

D , akciová společnost Třinec Průmyslová ,   Třinec-Staré Město Repairs of metallurgy technological units, 

and machine, electrical and construction works

 . 

Řetězárna a.s. Česká Ves, Polská ,   Production of chains and chain products . 

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Třinec-Konská, Průmyslová ,   Production of fi reproof products . 

* VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. changed its name to VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. in the reporting period
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Associates

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at  Dec 

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production of isostatically pressed 

heat-resisting products

. 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production and metallurgic processing 

of iron and steel

. 

Given the acquisition of the 100 percent equity investments in Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. and D 5, akciová společnost Třinec, the consolidation group is 

expanded to include these two companies for the year ended 31 December 2008. Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. was included on 1 April 2008 and D 5, akci-

ová společnost Třinec was included on 1 July 2008. VÚHŽ – NEMO, a.s. and ROLLSERVIS, a.s. were removed from the consolidation group due to their 

dissolution without liquidation upon merger with the parent company H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.

Th e following companies were included into the consolidated group (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007:

Subsidiaries

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at  Dec 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a. s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production and distribution of heat and 

electricity 

. 

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Locksmithing, smithcraft, tool 

engineering 

. 

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Foundry industry . 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production and metallurgic processing 

of iron and steel

. 

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŹ, a.s. Ostrava-Vítkovice, 

Výstavní ,  

Production of steel tubes . 

VÚHŽ a.s. Dobrá ,   Production of car, metallurgical, 

manufacturing and foundry products

. 

VÚHŽ NEMO a.s.

Dobrá ,   Real estate activities, lease of mova-

ble assets

 . 

H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.

Dobrá ,   Wholesale mediation . 

ROLLSERVIS a.s.

Dobrá ,   Administration services  . 

Řetězárna a.s. Česká Ves, Polská , 

 

Production of chains and chain 

products

. 

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Třinec-Konská,

Průmyslová ,  

Production of fi reproof products . 

Associates

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at  Dec 

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production of isostatically pressed 

heat-resisting products

. 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production and metallurgic processing 

of iron and steel

. 

Th e following companies were included into the consolidated group (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2006:

Subsidiaries

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at  Dec 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a. s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production and distribution of heat and 

electricity 

. 

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Locksmithing, smithcraft, tool 

engineering 

. 

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Foundry industry . 

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production and metallurgic processing 

of iron and steel

. 

VVT-VÍTKOVICE

VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s.

Ostrava-Vítkovice, 

Výstavní ,  

Production of steel tubes . 

Řetězárna, a.s. Česká Ves, Polská ,   Production of chains and chain 

products

. 

REFRASIL, s.r.o. Třinec-Konská,

Průmyslová ,  

Production of fi reproof products . 
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Associates

Name of the company Registered offi  ce Business activities Equity share at  Dec 

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production of isostatically pressed 

heat-resisting products

. 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Production and metallurgic processing 

of iron and steel

. 

MORAVIA ENERGO, a.s. Třinec-Staré Město,

Průmyslová ,  

Distribution of electricity, energy 

advisory services

. 

Due to the sale of the equity investment in MORAVIA ENERGO, a.s. as of 24 March 2006, the entity was removed from the consolidation group for the 

year ended 31 December 2006. Th e deconsolidation was performed as of 31 March 2006. 

Th e consolidation methods were used in compliance with the consolidation rules of the consolidated group – full consolidation was applied in the case 

of subsidiaries, consolidation under the equity method was used for the associates. Th e Company participates in the fi nancial and operating policies of So-

chorová válcovna TŽ, a.s., which was therefore consolidated using the equity method of accounting.

Financial statements of all entities, both included and excluded from the consolidation, are maintained in the registered offi  ce of the parent company 

for presentation purposes. 

2.3. The Balance Sheet Dates and Registered Offices of the Companies Included in the Consolidated Group

Th e fi nancial statements of the companies included in the consolidated group were prepared as of and for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 

2006. Th e companies included in the consolidated group in the period 2006 – 2008 are based in the Czech Republic.

2.4. Companies Excluded from Consolidation

Entities in which the Company has control, joint control or substantial infl uence are not included in the consolidated group if:

– The assets of such an entity do not exceed CZK 150 million;
– The equity share in the entity in proportion to the equity in the group is less than 1.5 percent;
– The share in the net turnover (revenues of account class 6) in the Group is less than 1.5 percent;
–  The companies which meet the condition set out in the fi rst paragraph for non-inclusion in the consolidated group, thereby not entering into consolidation 

based on individual assessment, must also meet the group materiality criterion. Under the group materiality criterion, these companies are taken as one 
whole. The total assets of this whole must be less than CZK 500 million, the equity share of this whole in the Group must be less than 5 percent and the 
share in the net turnover (revenues of account class 6) in the Group must be less than 5 percent. If the assets are less than CZK 500 million and the equity 
share is less than 5 percent while the share in the net turnover exceeds 5 percent, the decisive fact for inclusion in the consolidated group is whether the 
revenues largely generated by the company with related parties would have an immaterial impact on the profi t and loss account after eliminating inter-
company deliveries. For calculating materiality levels, all companies in the Group with the exception of companies in liquidation or subject to bankruptcy 
proceedings are taken into account;

–  Severe and long-term restrictions of the parent company hinder the companys rights connected to the control of assets or management, or, in exceptional 
cases, if the information necessary for the preparation of the consolidated fi nancial statements cannot be obtained without inevitably incurring undue costs 
(that can be documented) or with inevitable and provable undue delay;

–  The shares or equity interests in these companies are held exclusively with a view to their subsequent disposal. 

3. Basis of Accounting and General Accounting Principles 

Th e Groups accounting records are maintained and the consolidated fi nancial statements were prepared in accordance with Accounting Act 563/1991 

Coll., as amended; Regulation 500/2002 Coll. which provides implementation guidance on certain provisions of the Accounting Act for reporting entities 

that are businesses maintaining double-entry accounting records, as amended, and Czech Accounting Standards for Businesses, as amended. 

The accounting records are maintained in compliance with general accounting principles, specifi cally the historical cost valuation basis, the accruals princi-
ple, the prudence concept and the going concern assumption.

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated fi nancial statements of the TŘINECKÉ železárny, a.s. Group, accounting principles and policies used wi-

thin the Group were brought into line. Signifi cant accounting principles and policies as they are used by individual companies are set out below. 

Th ese consolidated fi nancial statements are presented in thousands of Czech crowns (CZK). 

3.1. Financial Reporting Period 

Th e fi nancial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 were prepared as follows:

–  The balance sheet contains comparative amounts as of 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006;
–  The profi t and loss account comprises comparative amounts for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006;
–  The statement of changes in equity contains comparative amounts as of 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006; and
–  The cash fl ow statement comprises comparative amounts for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.
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3.2. Valuation, Depreciation and Provisioning Policies

3.2.1. Tangible and Intangible Fixed Assets 

Valuation

Tangible fi xed assets include assets with an acquisition cost greater than CZK 40 thousand on an individual basis and an estimated useful life greater than 

one year. 

Intangible fi xed assets include assets (such as software, valuable rights, research and development) with an acquisition cost greater than CZK 60 thou-

sand on an individual basis and an estimated useful life greater than one year.

Purchased tangible and intangible fi xed assets are valued at acquisition costs. Tangible and intangible fi xed assets developed internally are valued at di-

rect costs, incidental costs directly attributable to the internal production of assets, or alternatively incidental costs of an administrative character if the 

production period of the assets exceeds one year.

Th e following tangible and intangible fi xed assets are stated at replacement cost: tangible and intangible fi xed assets acquired through donation, intan-

gible fi xed assets internally generated if replacement cost is lower than internal costs, assets recently entered in the accounting records such as an invento-

ry count surplus (accounted for by a corresponding entry in the relevant accumulated depreciation account) and an investment of intangible and tangible 

fi xed assets, except for cases where the investment is valued diff erently pursuant to a Memorandum of Association or a Foundation Deed.

Th e replacement cost is also applied to tangible fi xed assets acquired under fi nance lease arrangements with an original cost exceeding CZK 1 million. 

Th ese assets are carried at replacement cost and recorded in the statutory books as fully depreciated. Replacement cost is determined by an expert apprai-

ser or through an estimate performed under the Groups internal regulations.

Tangible and intangible assets with an estimated useful life greater than one year and an acquisition cost equal to or lower than CZK 40 thousand and 

CZK 60 thousand, respectively, are not treated as fi xed assets. Such assets are accounted for as inventory and when brought into use they are charged to 

Consumables in the profi t and loss account. Intangible assets costing CZK 60 thousand and less are also expensed through the account Services in the 

year of acquisition.

Th e cost of fi xed asset improvements exceeding CZK 40 thousand increases the acquisition cost of the related fi xed asset.

Th e results of the Groups research and development activities, if designed for trading or resale, are recognised through the balance sheet line Research 

and development. Research and development results designed for internal purposes are not classifi ed as intangible fi xed assets and are recorded off  ba-

lance sheet in the valuation of own costs.

Greenhouse emission allowances are recognised as non-depreciable intangible fi xed assets and are stated at cost, or replacement cost when acquired 

free of charge. Th e use of emission allowances is accounted for at the balance sheet date as a minimum, depending upon the level of emissions produced 

by the Company in the calendar year. An initial free-of-charge acquisition of the allowances is recognised as a subsidy not reducing the carrying amount 

of the intangible fi xed assets. Th is subsidy is released into income on a systematic basis as the allowances are used and charged to expenses. Th e sale of al-

lowances is recorded as a component of Sales of fi xed assets. 

As of the balance sheet date, emission allowances are valued according to the EUROPEAN ENERGY EXCHANGE rate. Th e decrease in the valuation 

of emission allowances acquired on a free-of-charge basis as of the balance sheet date is recognised in balance sheet lines Other intangible fi xed assets 

and State – tax payables and subsidies. Th e Company does not recognise an upward revaluation of the emission allowances. If there is a lack of allowan-

ces at the balance sheet date, the Company recognises a reserve as part of Other reserves and Change in reserves and provisions relating to operating ac-

tivities and complex deferred expenses. Th e reserve for the purchase of allowances is released in the following accounting period when the missing allo-

wances are purchased. 

Depreciation for Accounting Purposes 

Depreciation of fi xed assets, other than land and assets under construction, is recorded on a straight line basis over the depreciation period indicated be-

low:

Category of assets Depreciation period in years 

Structures  – 

Machines and equipment  – 

Vehicles  – 

Furniture and fi xtures  – 

Software  –  

Th e depreciation period in years is established in terms of the estimated useful life of the fi xed assets taking into account the operational conditions.

If the inventory count indicates that the estimated useful life of assets has changed, the Group appropriately adjusts the depreciation period of the re-

lated asset. 

Th e bulk of buildings and structures are depreciated over 45 – 60 years. Th e shorter depreciation period is applied to temporary structures and short-

term structures (lighting, fencing, energy grids, pipelines, etc.). A depreciation period over 60 years is applied to structures with a long useful life such as 

railway and road bridges, conveying tunnels, and production and administrative buildings.

Th e bulk of machines and equipment are depreciated over 15 – 25 years. Th e shorter depreciation period is primarily applied to IT systems, management 

systems, devices, etc.; the longer depreciation period is applied in exceptional cases to agglomeration equipment. 
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Objects from precious metals acquired prior to 31 December 2001 are depreciated based on actual weight loss.

Th e gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the diff erence between the sales proceeds and the net book value of 

the asset at the sale date and is recognised through the profi t and loss account.

Provisioning 

Provisions against tangible fi xed assets are recognised in circumstances where the carrying value is greater than value in use, which is equal to the present 

value of estimated future cash fl ows expected to arise from the continuing use of fi xed assets or anticipated income for the intended sale.

Impairment 

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suff e-

red an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment 

loss (if any). 

3.2.2. Non-Current Financial Assets 

Non-current fi nancial assets principally consist of equity investments, securities and equity investments available for sale and long-term term deposits. 

Valuation 

Securities and equity investments are carried at cost upon acquisition. Th e cost of securities or equity investments includes direct costs of acquisition, 

such as fees and commissions paid to brokers, advisors and stock exchanges. Financial assets acquired prior to 1 January 2002 are stated at purchase cost.

At the balance sheet date, the Group records:

Equity investments at cost less provisions against equity investments. 

Available-for-sale securities are valued pursuant to the Accounting Act (Section 27) at fair value, determined by reference to the market value or a rea-

sonable estimate. If the determination of fair value is not practicable, the securities are valued at cost.

At the balance sheet date, changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities are recorded through balance sheet accounts Other non-current secu-

rities and equity investments and Gains and losses from the revaluation of assets and liabilities. A deferred tax is determined in respect of the revaluati-

on diff erence where the value of available-for-sale securities increases, and is recorded through accounts Gains and losses from the revaluation of assets 

and liabilities and Deferred tax liability.

Upon sale or any other disposal, they are valued on the basis of the weighted average of the cost.

Investments in enterprises in which the Group has the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies so as to obtain benefi ts from their activities 

are treated as Equity investments in subsidiaries. 

Investments in enterprises in which the Group is in a position to exercise signifi cant infl uence over their fi nancial and operating policies so as to obtain 

benefi ts from their activities are treated as Equity investments in associates.

Provisioning against Equity Investments

Investments are provisioned if there is a risk that the fair value of a non-current fi nancial asset is lower than its carrying value. 

In charging provisions against equity securities that are not fair valued, the Group refers to its detailed knowledge of the relevant entity, the results of 

its operations and refl ects its interest in the entitys equity.

3.2.3. Inventory 

Valuation 

Purchased inventory is valued at acquisition costs. Acquisition costs include the purchase cost and indirect acquisition costs such as custom fees, freight 

costs and storage fees during transportation, commissions and insurance charges. 

Inventory is issued out of stock at costs determined using the weighted arithmetic average method.

Internally developed inventory is valued at full operating costs established based upon a costing formula refl ecting annual planned costings. Th e prices 

are determined on the basis of an annual fi nancial plan.

Th e revaluation of internally developed inventory is performed as of 1 January of the current year with reference to the calculations made based on the 

approved fi nancial plan. 

During the reporting period, the Company analysed the internally produced inventory by comparing the valuation of own costs according to planned 

(planned costing) and actual costs. If the diff erence in valuation according to actual costs is greater than the valuation according to the planned own costs, 

the diff erence from the revaluation of internally produced inventory is refl ected in fi nancial accounting records only on the accounts of the general ledger, 

namely in Changes in internally produced inventory with a corresponding entry to Internally produced inventory. In the contrary case (if the diff erence 

in valuation according to the planned own costs is greater than the valuation according to actual own costs), the inventory is not remeasured and the dif-

ference is recognised as a provisioning charge against internally produced inventory. 

Provisioning 

Provisions against the inventory of material are made in respect of inventory with low or no movement and a very low likelihood for processing following 

an individual analysis. 
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Provisions against the inventory of fi nished products and semi-fi nished products are charged based on the analysis of movement, selling prices and re-

alisability. 

3.2.4. Receivables 

Upon origination, receivables are stated at their nominal value as subsequently reduced by appropriate provisions for doubtful and bad amounts.

Provisioning 

Th e Group recognises provisions against receivables, the recoverability of which is doubtful. Tax deductible provisions against receivables are made pur-

suant to the Income Taxes Act and the Provisioning Act. Non-tax deductible provisions (against receivables from other than Group companies) are cre-

ated as follows:

(a) Receivables past due over 360 days are provisioned in full; and 

(b) Receivables past due over 180 days but less than 360 days are provisioned at 50 percent.

In addition, provisions are recognised against specifi c receivables following an assessment of their collectability. 

Th e Group recognises provisions against other interest-free long-term receivables. Th is provisioning charge is calculated as equal to the diff erence 

between the nominal and the discounted value of repayments of these receivables.

3.2.5. Current Financial Assets 

Current fi nancial assets principally consist of cash on hand and cash at bank and short-term debt securities with a maturity of less than one year and other 

securities available for sale. 

Current fi nancial assets are carried at cost upon acquisition.

3.2.6. Payables 

Trade payables are stated at their nominal value. Long-term bills of exchange to be settled are recorded at nominal value. Interest on these bills is accru-

ed over their maturity period. 

3.2.7. Loans and Borrowings

Valuation 

Loans are reported at nominal value. Th e portion of long-term loans maturing within one year from the balance sheet date and revolving loans which are 

regularly rolled over to the following period are included in short-term loans. 

3.2.8. Reserves 

Th e Group creates other reserves to provide for future risks known at the balance sheet date. In addition, the Group records tax allowable reserves for re-

pairs of tangible fi xed assets in accordance with the Provisioning Act, and a reserve for restoration and maintenance of a dump site and clean-up after ter-

mination of the operation of the site in accordance with Regulation of the Environmental Ministry No. 294/2005 Coll. If the reserves are not drawn wi-

thin the statutory period, they are released. 

3.3. Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies conducted during the year are translated using the exchange rate of the Czech National Bank prevailing on the date 

preceding the transaction date.

Financial assets denominated in foreign currencies (foreign currency cash) are translated into Czech crowns using the fi xed monthly exchange rate as 

notifi ed by the Czech National Bank as of the fi rst day of the month in which they were recorded. 

At the balance sheet date, the relevant assets and liabilities are translated at the Czech National Banks exchange rate prevailing as of that date.

3.4. Finance Leases 

A fi nance lease is the acquisition of a tangible fi xed asset such that, over or after the contractual lease term, ownership title to the asset transfers from the 

lessor to the lessee; pending the transfer of title, the lessee makes lease payments to the lessor for the asset that are charged to expenses. 

Th e initial lump-sum payment related to assets acquired under fi nance leases are amortised and expensed over the lease period. 

3.5. Taxation 

Depreciation of Fixed Assets for Tax Purposes 

Depreciation of fi xed assets is recorded on an accelerated basis for tax purposes under Section 32 of Act No. 586/92 Coll., with the exception of assets used 

in the Univerzální trať Bohumín plant and assets of Slévárny Třinec, a.s., which are depreciated using the straight line method.

Current Tax Payable 

Th e tax currently payable is based on taxable profi t for the reporting period. Taxable profi t diff ers from net profi t as reported in the profi t and loss account 

because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or dedu-

ctible. Th e Groups liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. 

Under the liability method, deferred tax is calculated at the income tax rate that is expected to apply in the period when the tax liability is settled.

Th e balance sheet liability method focuses on temporary diff erences which are diff erences between the tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying 

amount in the balance sheet. Th e tax base of an asset or liability is the amount that will be deductible for tax purposes in the future.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profi t and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case 

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

3.6. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs arising from loans are included directly in expenses regardless of the purpose for which they were drawn. 

3.7. Costs Relating to Employees Hired through an Employment Agency

Since 2007, the Group has reported staff  costs of employees hired through an employment agency as part of social costs which include the actually paid sa-

laries including social security costs and health insurance and other aids and protective drinks for agency employees. Th ese costs are reported under Con-

sumed material and energy. Other services of the agency such as mediation fees and agency overheads are reported under Services. 

In the past, all costs relating to employees hired through an employment agency were reported under Services. 

3.8. Revenue Recognition 

Revenues are recognised when goods are delivered and accepted by the customer or when services are rendered and are reported net of discounts and VAT.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the eff ective interest rate applicable. 

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders rights to receive payment have been declared. 

3.9. Use of Estimates 

Th e presentation of fi nancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect the reported amounts of assets and liabili-

ties at the balance sheet date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management of the Group has made these 

estimates and assumptions on the basis of all the relevant information available to it. Nevertheless, pursuant to the nature of estimates, the actual results 

and outcomes in the future may diff er from these estimates.

3.10. Extraordinary Expenses and Income

Extraordinary items are income or expenses that arise from events or transactions that are clearly distinct from the ordinary activities of the Group as well 

as income or expenses from events or transactions that are not expected to recur frequently or regularly. 

3.11. Grants 

Th e Group receives operating grants. Th e funds drawn are charged to expenses and operating grants received are credited to income on an accruals ba-

sis (refer to Note 6.6.). In addition, the Group receives grants to fund the acquisition of fi xed assets and these grants reduce the cost of the related assets.

In 2004, the Group received state aid for projects related to the environment, research and development, education and payments to workers who will 

be made redundant following the discontinuation of a furnace. Th is aid is provided for three years; it is reported as a component of the balance sheet line 

State – tax payables and subsidies and is split into short-term and long-term portions and is gradually released to income on an accruals basis as the pro-

jects for which it was created are implemented.

3.12. Research and Development Expenditure 

Research and development expenditure is capitalised as part of cost and posted to the acquisition of tangible or intangible fi xed assets if the research and 

development projects result in fi xed assets (tangible and intangible). Th e output of a research project is capitalised on the basis of the results of opponent 

proceedings. A detailed analysis of the projects in progress is undertaken at the balance sheet date and the costs incurred are charged to expenses or re-

cognised as complex deferred expenses with a corresponding recognition of a provision in the event that there is doubt over the completion or future uti-

lisation of the project. 

3.13. Cash Flow Statement 

Th e cash fl ow statement is prepared using the indirect method.

For cash fl ow purposes, cash and cash equivalents include cash and duty stamps, cash in bank except for deposits with maturity longer than three mon-

ths, and current liquid assets easily convertible into cash in an amount agreed in advance where no signifi cant changes in the value of these assets are ex-

pected over time.
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Cash and cash equivalents can be analysed as follows:  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Cash      

Current accounts        

Term deposit      

Debt securities and investments        

Provision   – 

Total cash and cash equivalents         

Total cash and cash equivalents not included in cash fl ow     

Total current fi nancial assets         

Comments on the Cash Flow Statement for the Years Ended 31 December 2006 – 2008:

Th e change in the balance of current fi nancial assets as of 31 December 2007 as compared to the balance sheet represents the opening of a special-purpose 

account of CZK 35,444 thousand as of 31 December 2007 in connection with the received state aid.

Th e change in the balance of current fi nancial assets as of 31 December 2006 as compared to the balance sheet represents the opening of a special-

purpose account of CZK 246,216 thousand as of 31 December 2006 in connection with the received state aid and the depository bill of exchange of CZK 

30,000 thousand. 

Th e provision in 2006 includes the provision recognised against Beskydská golfová, a.s.

3.14. Consolidation Rules 

Th e individual items of the balance sheets and the profi t and loss accounts of subsidiaries consolidated under the full consolidation method were added up 

in total amounts with the balance sheet and the profi t and loss account of the parent company. Further, fi nancial investments of the parent company were 

eliminated against acquired equity, inter-company supplies, receivables and payables, including profi ts from the sale of the fi xed assets realised among the 

consolidated group companies, and profi t margins relating to inventories not yet consumed. 

Under the equity consolidation method, fi nancial investments of the parent company were eliminated from the balance sheet against acquired equi-

ty. Th e assets in the consolidated balance sheet included the item Securities and investments under equity accounting, whose balance is calculated as the 

share in the equity of associates. Th is item was adjusted by a portion of the profi t margin, refl ecting the share in the equity of an associate, on intercom-

pany supplies of inventories not yet consumed. Liabilities of the consolidated balance sheet included the item Share in the profi t/loss of equity accoun-

ted investments which represents the parent companys share in the current periods results, and the Consolidation reserve fund comprising an associates 

accumulated profi t/loss of previous years. 

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the diff erence between the cost of an investment in a subsidiary and its value determined on the basis of 

the Parent Companys interest in the fair value of equity which arises as a diff erence between the fair values of assets and the fair values of liabilities as 

of the acquisition date or as of the date of a further capital increase (a further increase of securities or investments). Th e acquisition date is the date from 

which the eff ectively controlling entity starts to exercise infl uence over the consolidated company.

Before 2007, goodwill arising on consolidation was amortised on a straight line basis over 20 years if there were no reasons for a shorter amortisation 

period. Goodwill arising on consolidation was charged to positive consolidation goodwill in expenses from ordinary activities or credited to negative con-

solidation goodwill in income from ordinary activities, as appropriate.

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company changed the policy of valuing, depreciating and accounting for goodwill arising on consolidation, 

refer to Note 3.15. 

Amortisation charges of goodwill arising on consolidation are recognised in a special consolidated profi t and loss account line item.

Th e assets and liabilities of companies acquired and included in the consolidated group after 1 January 2003 were remeasured at fair value in accordan-

ce with the accounting regulations applicable for consolidation.

Th e consolidation of the fi nancial statements was performed using the direct consolidation method.

Th e fi nancial statements for the years ended 31 December 2006 – 2008 prepared by the companies included in the consolidated group, as well as the 

fi nancial statements of subsidiaries and associates not included in the consolidated group that were received by the Company as of the consolidated fi nan-

cial statement preparation date are available in the registered offi  ce of the Company.

Th e consolidation rules for 2006 – 2008 (defi nition of the consolidated group, method of transformation of data from individual fi nancial statements 

into the consolidated fi nancial statements) are available in the registered offi  ce of the Company. 

3.15. Year-on-Year Changes in Valuation, Depreciation or Accounting Policies 

In order to give a true and fair view of the Groups fi nancial position and performance in the consolidated fi nancial statements, the Group decided not to 

amortise the positive (negative) goodwill arising on consolidation starting from 1 January 2008, but rather carry it at cost which is adjusted by cumulative 

losses (cumulative gains) arising from the change in the value, and is tested annually for changes in this value. 
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4. Analysis of Impacts on Profit/Loss 

4.1. Consolidated Profit/Loss for 2008

4.1.1. Structure of the Consolidated Profi t/Loss for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.   

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – Strojírny Třinec, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – Slévárny Třinec, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. – 

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – H&S PROGRESS s.r.o 

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – D , akciová společnost  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – VÚHŽ a.s.  

Share in profi t of the current period – REFRASIL, s.r.o.  

Share in profi t of the current period – Řetězárna a.s.  

Share in profi t/(loss) of equity accounted investments  

Adjustments within full consolidation (see below)  

Adjustments within the equity method of consolidation (see below) – 

Consolidated profi t   

4.1.2. Adjustments within Full Consolidation for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from intercompany sales of fi xed assets, including the deferred tax impact  

Elimination of unrealised profi t from intercompany sales of inventory, including the deferred tax impact  

Revaluation of assets to fair value – 

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation  

Decrease in the value of the positive goodwill on consolidation – 

Elimination of declared dividends of the consolidated group entities – 

Total adjustments  

4.1.3. Adjustments within the Equity Method of Accounting for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of dividends paid by VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. – 

Elimination of profi t and loss from unrealised inventory 

Total adjustments – 

4.2. Consolidated Profit/Loss for 2007

4.2.1. Structure of the Consolidated Profi t/Loss for 2007 (CZK thousand)

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.   

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – Strojírny Třinec, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – Slévárny Třinec, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – H&S PROGRESS s.r.o  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – ROLLSERVIS a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – VÚHŽ NEMO a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – VÚHŽ a.s.  

Share in profi t of the current period – REFRASIL, s.r.o.  

Share in profi t of the current period – Řetězárna a.s.  

Share in profi t/(loss) of equity accounted investments  

Adjustments within full consolidation (see below) – 

Adjustments within the equity method of consolidation (see below) – 

Consolidated profi t   
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4.2.2. Adjustments within Full Consolidation for 2007 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from intercompany sales of fi xed assets, including the deferred tax impact 

Elimination of unrealised profi t from intercompany sales of inventory, including the deferred tax impact – 

Revaluation of assets to fair value – 

Amortisation of positive goodwill on consolidation of H&S PROGRESS s.r.o. – 

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation of FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.  

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation of Řetězárna a.s.  

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation of VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s  

Elimination of the release of the provision recorded against Slévárny Třinec, a.s. – 

Elimination of declared dividends of the consolidated group entities – 

Total adjustments – 

4.2.3. Adjustments within the Equity Method for 2007  (CZK thousand)

Elimination of dividends paid by VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. – 

Total adjustments – 

4.3. Consolidated Profit/Loss for 2006

4.3.1. Structure of the Consolidated Profi t/Loss for 2006 (CZK thousand)

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a. s.   

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.   

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – Strojírny Třinec, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – Slévárny Třinec, a.s.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.  

Profi t/(loss) of the current period – VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s.  

Share in profi t of the current period – REFRASIL, s.r.o.  

Share in profi t of the current period – Řetězárna, a.s.  

Share in profi t/(loss) of equity accounted investments  

Adjustments within full consolidation (see below) – 

Adjustments within the equity method of consolidation (see below) – 

Consolidated profi t   

4.3.2. Adjustments within Full Consolidation for 2006 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of profi t from intercompany sales of fi xed assets, including the deferred tax impact  

Elimination of unrealised profi t from intercompany sales of inventory, including the deferred tax impact – 

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation of FERROMORAVIA s.r.o.  

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation of Řetězárna, a.s.  

Amortisation of negative goodwill on consolidation of VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s  

Revaluation of assets to fair value of VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s – 

Elimination of the release of the provision recorded against Slévárny Třinec, a.s. – 

Elimination of declared dividends of the consolidated group entities – 

Total adjustments – 

4.3.3. Adjustments within the Equity Method for 2006 (CZK thousand)

Elimination of dividends received from VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. – 

Deconsolidation of MORAVIA ENERGO s.r.o. – 

Elimination of profi t from unrealised inventory  

Total adjustments – 
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5. Additional Consolidated Balance Sheet Information 

5.1. Intangible Fixed Assets 

Cost  (CZK thousand)

Balance at

 Jan 

Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



New 

acquisition 

Additions Disposals 

Start-up costs        

Software              

Valuable rights             

Other intangible FA               

Intangible FA under construction            

Prepayments made for intangible FA       

Total                

 (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Dec 

 

New 

acquisition 

Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 

 

Research and development       

Start-up costs     

Software          

Valuable rights         

Other intangible FA          

Intangible FA under construction       

Prepayments made for intangible FA     

Total            

Accumulated Amortisation and Provisions  (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Jan 

Additions Disposals Balance at

  Jan 

New 

acquisition

Additions Disposals 

Start-up costs       

Software              

Valuable rights            

Other intangible FA       

Intangible FA under construction       

Prepayments made for intangible FA       

Total              

 (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Dec 

 

New 

acquisition 

Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 

 

Research and development     

Start-up costs     

Software          

Valuable rights         

Other intangible FA       

Intangible FA under construction     

Prepayments made for intangible FA     

Total          

Net Book Value  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Research and development    

Software      

Valuable rights      

Other intangible FA     

Intangible FA under construction    

Prepayments made for intangible FA   

Total      
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Th e tables of movements within intangible fi xed assets include the column new acquisition relating to the expansion of the consolidated group to include 

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. and D5, akciová společnost, in 2008 and H&S PROGRESS s.r.o., VÚHŽ a.s., VÚHŽ NEMO a.s. and ROLLSERVIS a.s. in 2007. 

Additions to and disposals of intangible fi xed assets predominantly include the allocation and consumption of greenhouse emission allowances. 

Amortisation of Intangible Fixed Assets Charged to Expenses 

Amortisation of intangible fi xed assets amounted to CZK 20,542 thousand, CZK 26,203 thousand and CZK 21,333  thousand as of 31 December 2008, 2007 

and 2006, respectively. 

Aggregate Balance of Low Value Intangible Assets not Reported on the Balance Sheet 

Th e aggregate balance of low value intangible assets not reported on the face of the balance sheet was CZK 32,577 thousand, CZK 28,542 thousand and 

CZK 21,050 thousand as of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. With eff ect from 2002, the Group decided not to report these assets on the 

balance sheet.

5.2. Tangible Fixed Assets 

Cost  (CZK thousand)

 Balance at 

 Jan 

Additions Disposals Balance at

 Dec 



New 

acquisition 

Additions Disposals 

Land           

Structures                

Individual movable assets                  

Other tangible FA          

Tangible FA under construction                  

Prepayments               

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets –    –    

Total                    

 (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Dec 

 

New 

acquisition

Additions Disposals Balance at 

 Dec 

 

Land          

Structures            

Individual movable assets             

Other tangible FA       

Tangible FA under construction             

Prepayments          

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets –  –  – 

Total               

Accumulated Depreciation and Provisions (CZK thousand)

Balance at 

 Jan  

Additions Disposals Balance 

at  Dec 



New 

acquisition

Additions Disposals

Land       

Structures                

Individual movable assets                  

Other tangible FA       

Tangible FA under construction           

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets –  –  –   – 

Total                  

 (CZK thousand)

Balance at

  Dec 



New 

acquisition

Additions Disposals Balance at

  Dec 



Land     

Structures            

Individual movable assets             

Other tangible FA     

Tangible FA under construction        

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets –       

Total             
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Net Book Value  (CZK thousand)

Net book value Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Land      

Structures         

Individual movable assets         

Other tangible FA      

Tangible FA under construction       

Prepayments for tangible FA      

Valuation diff erence on acquired assets – – 

Total         

Th e tables of movements within tangible fi xed assets include the column new acquisition in 2008 relating to the expansion of the consolidated group to 

include Šroubárny Kyjov, spol. s r. o., D 5, akciová společnost, in 2007 relating to the expansion of the consolidated group to include H&S PROGRESS s.r.o., 

VÚHŽ a.s., VÚHŽ NEMO a.s. and ROLLSERVIS a.s.

Principal additions to tangible fi xed assets for the year ended 31 December 2008 are as follows: (CZK thousand)

Garett winding line  

Equipment for pig iron desulphurisation  

Filtration equipment for the agglomeration  

Sakamura press  

SHUMAG III B/ combined drawing machine  

Renovation and modernisation of Big Mannesman  

Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets Charged to Expenses 

Depreciation of tangible fi xed assets amounted to CZK 1,460,601 thousand, CZK 1,345,568 thousand and CZK 1,248,889 thousand as of 31 December 2008, 

2007 and 2006, respectively. 

Aggregate Balance of Low Value Tangible Assets not Reported on the Balance Sheet 

Th e aggregate costs of low value tangible assets not reported on the face of the balance sheet were CZK 498,297 thousand, CZK 422,394 thousand and CZK 

392,336 thousand as of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

Fair Value 

As of the acquisition date in 2008, the Group revalued the assets of D5, akciová společnost and Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the revaluation of assets to fair value increased the balance of tangible fi xed assets by CZK 377,131 thousand and 

resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax liability of CZK 71,655 thousand using the 19 percent tax rate. 

As of the acquisition date in 2007, the Company revalued the assets of VÚHŽ NEMO a.s., ROLLSERVIS a.s., VÚHŽ a.s., and H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.

In the year ended 31 December 2007, the revaluation of assets to fair value increased the balance of tangible fi xed assets by CZK 92,224 thousand, in-

creased the balance of intangible fi xed assets by CZK 36,822 thousand and resulted in the recognition of a deferred tax liability of CZK 19,071 thousand 

using the 19 percent tax rate. 

As of the acquisition date in 2006, the Company revalued the assets of VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. to fair value.

In the year ended 31 December 2007, the revaluation of assets to fair value decreased the balance of tangible fi xed assets by CZK 1,456 thousand. 

In the year ended 31 December 2006, the revaluation of assets to fair value increased the balance of tangible fi xed assets by CZK 5,540 thousand, decre-

ased the balance of intangible fi xed assets by CZK 46 thousand and resulted in recognition of a deferred tax liability of CZK 1,319 thousand using the 24 

percent tax rate. 

5.3. Assets Held under Finance and Operating Lease Agreements

Finance Leases 

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Cars Machinery 

and equipment 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Total anticipated lease payments      

Actual lease payments made through  Dec       

Future payments due by  Dec       

Future payments due in the following periods      
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31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Cars Machinery 

and equipment 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Total anticipated lease payments      

Actual lease payments made through  Dec       

Future payments due by  Dec       

Future payments due in the following periods      

31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Cars Machinery 

and equipment 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Total anticipated lease payments      

Actual lease payments made through  Dec       

Future payments due by  Dec       

Future payments due in the following periods      

Th e Group made lease payments of CZK 29,230 thousand, CZK 26,981 thousand and CZK 33,328 thousand in the years ended 31 December 2008, 2007 

and 2006, respectively. 

5.4. Pledged Fixed Assets

31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Land   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Technology   Raifeisen Bank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from CITIBANK

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from CITIBANK

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from CITIBANK

Tangible fi xed assets  Loan from CITIBANK

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from CITIBANK

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from CITIBANK

Tangible fi xed assets   Investment loan from ČSOB 

Tangible fi xed assets   Long-term loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Long-term loan from UniCredit Bank Czech Republic, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Collateral for loan – renovation and modernisation of the foundry plant

Tangible fi xed assets   Collateral for loan – renovation and modernisation of the foundry plant

Total   

31 December 2007 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible fi xed assets   Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Long-term loan from UniCredit Bank Czech Republic, a.s.

Technology   Raiff eisen Bank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Land   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets  Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Investment loan from Československá obchodní banka, a.s.

Total   
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31 December 2006 (CZK thousand)

Description of assets Net book value Description, scope and purpose of pledge/lien

Tangible fi xed assets

Land

 

 

Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Komerční banka, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from HVB, a.s.

Technology   Loan from Raiff eisen Bank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Citibank, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from ČSOB, a.s.

Tangible fi xed assets   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Land   Loan from Česká spořitelna, a.s.

Total   

5.5. Summary of Unconsolidated Investments

5.5.1. Summary of Unconsolidated Investments for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in subsidiaries

Company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities

Share in  Equity Net profi t 

or loss

Provision Net cost Financial 

income 

for the 

year

Třinecké 

gastroslužby, s.r.o.

    –         

Doprava TŽ, a.s.               

TRIALFA, s.r.o.   –        

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.         – –    

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o.               

MATERIÁLOVÝ A

METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM, s.r.o.

*   –       * 

TRISIA, a.s.         –     

Regionální inovační centrum F-M, s.r.o.   –       

Moravia Security, a.s.         –     

Soukromá střední škola Třinec, s.r.o.     –    –    

Sroubarna Kyjov TK Vida ve Metal Sanay ve 

Ticarel Limited Sirketi

 – – – – – –  

Total   –     

Note: * confi dential

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in associates

Company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities

Share in  Equity Net profi t 

or loss

Provision Net cost Financial 

income 

for the 

year

ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE   –  – –   

SILESIASLAG, a.s.         – –   

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.           

Hutnictví železa, a.s.          – –    

Kvalif. a personální agentura, o.p.s.   –   – –  

HRAT, s.r.o.   –        

Total   –    

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in companies with a minority interest

Company Cost Nominal 

value

Number 

of 

securities

Share in  Equity Net profi t 

or loss

Valuation 

diff erence

Fair value Financial 

income 

for the 

year

KPM CONSULT, a.s.           

SAVER Česká 

Ves, s.r.o.

          

Informatel zájmové sdružení   –      

ACRI, Praha   – .    –  

Total  –  

italics – preliminary results
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Other Non-Current Financial Assets  (CZK thousand)

Investment Acquisition cost Description of 

investment/collateral

Provision Financial income for 



Term deposit   Bank guarantee col-

lateral

– 

 (CZK thousand)

Value of investment Financial income 

Total fi nancial assets    

5.5.2. Summary of Unconsolidated Investments for 2007 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in subsidiaries

Company Cost Nominal 

value

Number of 

securities

Share in  Equity Net profi t 

or loss

Provision Net cost Financial 

income 

for the 

year

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.     –        

Doprava TŽ, a.s.              

TRIALFA, s.r.o.   –        

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.         – –    

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o.     –         

VÍTKOVICE – VaV, spol, s.r.o. *   –       * 

TRISIA, a.s.         –     

Regionální inovační centrum F-M, s.r.o.   –       

Total   –    

Note: * confi dential

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in associates

Company Cost Nominal 

value

Number of 

securities

Share

 in 

Equity Net 

profi t 

or loss

Provision Net

cost

Financial 

income 

for the 

year

SILESIASLAG, a.s.         – –   

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.     .       

Hutnictví železa, a.s.       .    –    

Kvalif. a personální agentura, o.p.s.   – .   –  

MS-UNIKOV OSTRAVA, s.r.o.    – . * * –   

Total   –    

 Note: * – bankruptcy trustee provided no results

  (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in companies with a minority interest

Company Cost Nominal 

value

Number of 

securities

Share

 in 

Equity Net 

profi t 

or loss

Valuation 

diff erence

Fair value Financial 

income 

for the 

year

HRAT, s.r.o.   – .    –  

KPM CONSULT, a.s.           

SAVAREN Česká Ves, s.r.o.   –        

Informatel zájmové sdružení   –  

ACRI, Praha   – .   – –  

Total  –  

Other Non-Current Financial Assets 
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 (CZK thousand)

Investment Acquisition cost Description of 

investment/collateral

Provision Financial income for 



Term deposit   Bank guarantee 

collateral

 

  (CZK thousand)

Value of investment Financial income 

Total fi nancial assets    

5.5.3. Summary of Unconsolidated Investments for 2006 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in subsidiaries 

Company Cost Nominal 

value

Number of 

securities

Share in  Equity Net profi t 

or loss

Provision Net cost Financial 

income 

for the 

year

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.     – .       

Doprava TŽ, a.s.      .        

TRIALFA, s.r.o.   – .       

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.      .   – –    

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o.     – .        

TRISIA, a.s.      .   –     

Total   –   

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in associates

Company Cost Nominal 

value

Number of 

securities

Share in  Equity Net profi t 

or loss

Provision Net cost Financial 

income 

for the 

year

SILESIASLAG, a.s.      .   – –   

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.     .       

Hutnictví železa, a.s.       .    –    

Kvalif. a personální agentura, o.p.s.   – .   –  

MS-UNIKOV OSTRAVA, s.r.o.     – . * * –   

Total   –    

 Note: * – bankruptcy trustee provided no results

 (CZK thousand)

Equity securities and investments in companies with a minority interest

Company Company Company Company Company Company Company Company Company Company

HRAT, s.r.o.   – .    –  

KPM CONSULT, a.s.    .       

SAVAREN Česká 

Ves, s.r.o.

  – .       

ACRI, Praha   – .    –  

Total  –  

Other Non-Current Financial Assets   (CZK thousand)

Investment Acquisition cost Description of 

investment/collateral

Provision Financial income for 



Term deposit   Bank guarantee 

collateral 

 

  (CZK thousand)

Value of investment Financial income 

Total non-current fi nancial assets   

Th e principal additions to non-current fi nancial assets as of 31 December 2008 include:

– Formation of Moravia Security, a.s. wholly owned by TŽ,

– Formation of Soukromá střední škola Třinec, s.r.o. wholly owned by TŽ,

– Acquisition of 45 percent equity investment in “ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE“ Spółka z ograniczoną odpowiedzialnością.



90 F I N A N C I A L  P A R T

5.6. Accounting for Goodwill Arising on Consolidation

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company changed the policy of valuing, depreciating and accounting for goodwill arising on consolidation, as 

described in Note 3.15. For this reason, the Company recognised the aggregate balance of the negative goodwill on consolidation of CZK 262,445 thousand 

in income and the balance of the positive goodwill arising on consolidation of CZK 79,698 thousand in expenses. 

2008 (CZK thousand)

 

Gross Correction Net Recognition 

in expenses

Recognition in income

Positive goodwill arising 

on consolidation

H&S PROGRESS s.r.o   –      –

D , akciová společnost – – –   –

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.   –   – –

Total   –      –

Negative goodwill arising 

on consolidation

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. – – – –  

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s. – – – –  

Řetězárna a.s. – – – –  

Total – – – –  

2007 (CZK thousand)

 

Gross Correction Net Recognition 

in expenses

Recognition in income

Positive goodwill arising 

on consolidation

H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.   –      –

Total   –      –

Negative goodwill arising 

on consolidation

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. –    –  –  

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA 

TRUB, a.s.

–    –  –  

Řetězárna a.s. –    –  –  

Total –    –  –  

2006 (CZK thousand)

 

Gross Correction Net Recognition

 in expenses

Recognition in income

Negative goodwill arising 

on consolidation

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o. –    –  –  

VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA 

TRUB, a.s.

–    –  –  

Řetězárna a.s. –    –  –  

Total –    –  –  

5.7. Securities and Equity Investments under Equity Accounting (CZK thousand) 

Securities and equity investments under equity accounting   

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s.      

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.      

Total      

5.7.1. Pledged Securities and Equity Investments under Equity Accounting

As of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Group carries no pledged non-current fi nancial assets. 
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5.8. Inventory (CZK thousand)

Structure of inventory Balance at  

Dec

 

Provisions at 

 Dec 



Net balance at 

 Dec 



Balance at  

Dec 



Provisions at 

 Dec 



Net balance at 

 Dec 



Material    –        –    

Internally produced inventory:    –        –    

Work in progress and semi-fi nished products    –        –    

Finished products    –        –    

Goods   –     –   

Prepayments       

Total    –         –    

 (CZK thousand)

Structure of inventory Balance at  Dec  Provisions at 

 Dec 

Net balance at  Dec 



Material    –    

Internally produced inventory:    –    

Work in progress and semi-fi nished products    –    

Finished products    –    

Goods     

Prepayments   

Total    –    

5.9. Receivables 

5.9.1. Long-Term Receivables  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

– Trade receivables      

– Prepayments made    

– Other receivables      

– Deferred tax asset     

Total      

Other receivables predominantly include loans provided to employees. 

Aggregate Maturities of Long-Term Trade Receivables as of 31 December 2008 (CZK thousand)

Year Trade receivables and 

prepayments made

Other receivables Deferred tax asset Total 

       

        

      

      

      

After     

Total        

Long-term receivables are settled within their due terms.

5.9.2. Short-Term Receivables

Aging of Short-Term Trade Receivables (CZK thousand)

Year Category Before due date Past due date Total 

 –  days  –  days  –  days  –  years  years and 

greater

 Short-term                

Provisions –  –  –  –  –  –    – 

Total              

 Short-term                

Provisions –  – – –  –  –  – 

Total              

 Short-term                

Provisions –  – – –  –  –  – 

Total              
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Breakdown of Short-Term Trade Receivables (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

– Customers         

– Bills of exchange for collection    

– Other receivables     

– Provision –  –  – 

Total         

Other Short-Term Receivables 

Other short-term prepayments made principally involve prepayments for supplied services and prepayments for fees according to the Air Protection Act. 

State – tax receivables principally include receivables arising from the corporate income tax and receivables arising from excessive deduction of the va-

lue added tax. 

Other receivables mainly relate to the receivable arising from unpaid dividends, loan contract and bank guarantees. 

Estimated receivables principally include insurance benefi ts. 

Receivables typically mature within 30 days.

5.9.3. Pledged Receivables 

Existing and future receivables pledged as collateral for own payables: (CZK thousand)

Receivables pledged on behalf of Receivables from Receivable balance 

 Dec 

Receivable balance 

 Dec 

Receivable balance 

 Dec 

Komerční banka, a.s. Siemens VAI MetalsTechnologies.    

Vesuvius Group S.A.    

VÚHŹ, a.s.    

CSOB, a.s. Edscha Bohemia    

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.    

VÚHŽ    

Citibank, a.s.. Cebes a.s.    

Edscha Bohemia s.r.o.    

ED Scharvachter   

Hayes Lemmers Alukola s.r.o.   

Hoesch Schwerter Profi le    

Ocrim Societa Per  Industria   

Romil s.r.o.   

V.I.P. Trading Company s.r.o.   

Železiarne Podbrezová, a.s.   

Prokop Invest, a.s.   

VÚHŽ, a.s.    

Total     
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5.9.4. Intercompany Receivables 

Short-Term Receivables (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

• Trade payables

Doprava TŽ, a.s.      

Moravia Security, a.s. *   

MORAVIA STEEL a.s.         

Řeťaze Slovakia, s.r.o.    

TRIALFA, s.r.o.      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.   

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.     

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.      

Kvalifi kační a personální agentura, o.p.s.   

TRISIA, a.s.   

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s.      

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH      

Beskydská golfová, a.s.    

ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE *    

Regionální informační centrum Frýdek-Místek, s.r.o.   

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALUGRICKÝ VÝZKUM, s.r.o. *   

HŽP, a.s.   

SILESIASLAG, a.s.   

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s.   

Total         

• Other intercompany receivables

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.    

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s.      

Total      

Total short-term intercompany receivables          

Other than intercompany receivables        

Total short-term receivables         

* Moravia Security, a.s. became part of the group on 15 February 2008 and Zameczek Błogocice on 24 October 2008, VÍTKOVICE – Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o. changed its name to MATERIÁLOVÝ 

A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o.,

Long-Term Receivables  (CZK thousand)

Company’s name Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

• Other 

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.    

Total    

Total long-term intercompany receivables    

Other than intercompany receivables      

Total long-term receivables      

5.10. Current Financial Assets  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Cash      

Current accounts        

Current accounts with limited dealing with the balance   

Current deposit – special-purpose funds of the received state aid     

Term deposit      

Current securities and investments        

Provision against securities   – 

Total current fi nancial assets         
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Short-term securities and equity investments as of 31 December 2008 include depository notes of Komerční banka, a.s. of CZK 807,051 thousand, ČSOB, 

a.s. of CZK 25,001 thousand, Raiff eisenbank, a.s. of CZK 610,033 thousand, Česká spořitelna, a.s. of CZK 688,038 thousand and tradable securities of CZK 

15,349 thousand.

Short-term securities and equity investments as of 31 December 2007 include depository notes of Komerční banka, a.s. of CZK 1,208,145 thousand, Raif-

feisenbank, a.s. of CZK 300,090 thousand, HSBC Bank plc. of CZK 101,010 thousand, Citibank, a.s. of CZK 69,007 thousand, ČSOB, a.s. of CZK 558,259 

thousand and tradable securities of CZK 18,596 thousand. 

Current securities and investments as of 31 December 2006 include depository bills of exchange of Komerční banka, a.s., Československá obchodní ban-

ka, a.s. and Raiff eisenbank, a.s. in the amounts of CZK 575,105 thousand, CZK 24,752 thousand and CZK 9,626 thousand, respectively, marketable securi-

ties of CZK 716 thousand and an equity investment in Beskydská golfová, a.s. of CZK 93,048 thousand decreased by a provision, which was sold in Febru-

ary 2007. 

5.11. Temporary Assets (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Deferred expenses      

Deferred expenses – lease contracts      

Other deferred expenses – studies, projects, interest,

subscription payments

     

Complex deferred expenses      

Accrued income    

Total deferred expenses and accrued income      

Deferred expenses principally consist of deferred fi nance lease instalments, projects, and analyses relating to repairs scheduled for the coming period.

A signifi cant portion of deferred expenses relates to the right to use new technologies. 

Complex deferred expenses primarily consist of deferred implementation of information systems.

5.12. Equity

Movements in equity are reported in a standalone consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Allocations to the statutory reserve fund are made at 5 percent of net profi ts until the fund reaches 20 percent of the Companys share capital as requi-

red by legislation. 

Gains and losses from revaluation comprise the gain or loss from the revaluation of available-for-sale securities net of the deferred tax liability.

Th e General Meeting of Shareholders decided not to declare dividends for 2007, gross dividends for 2006 were CZK 250 per share and gross dividends 

for 2005 were CZK 100 per share. 

On 28 September 2008, the payment of dividends for 2003 declared by the General Meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2004 which were due on 28 

September 2004 became statute barred. Th e amount of these dividends of CZK 1,640 thousand was written off  to other fi nancial income. 

5.12.1. Share Capital 

Th e Companys share capital is composed of 8,109,863 ordinary registered shares, fully subscribed and paid up, with a nominal value of CZK 1 thousand 

per share. 

Th e Extraordinary General Meeting held on 19 November 2007 approved a change of the book-entry to the certifi cate form of shares. Th e change of the 

form of the Companys shares was registered in the Register of Companies on 13 December 2007. Th e shares were deregistered from the Prague Stock Ex-

change in 2002.

On 16 December 2008, the Companys shares in the certifi cate form which were not collected by their owners after the change of the book-entry to the 

certifi cate form of shares were auctioned. Th e shares were not sold, and a repeated enforced auction will be held in 2009. As of 31 December 2008, the 

number of uncollected shares was 84,119. 

5.13. Reserves  (CZK thousand)

Reserves under special legislation Other reserves  Total reserves 

Reserve for repairs 

of tangible FA

Reserve for restoration

Balance at  Jan         

Creation       

Use        

Balance at  Dec         

New acquisition    

Creation       

Use       

Balance at  Dec         

New acquisition      

Creation       

Use       

Balance at  Dec         
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Th e reserves for repairs of tangible fi xed assets (tax deductible) were made for repairs of main production facilities in compliance with the Provisioning 

Act. Th e creation of reserves is based upon a long-term repair plan, timing and budget of repairs. 

Other reserves consist of reserves for the scrapping of equipment, emission allowances, additionally assessed taxes, real estate transfer tax, employee 

bonuses and losses incurred in connection with a concluded long-term contract.

5.14. Payables 

5.14.1. Long-Term Payables  (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Long-term payables

– Trade payables      

– Long-term bills of exchange to be settled    

– Long-term prepayments received    

– Other payables    

– Deferred tax liability      

– Tax liabilities and grants   

Total      

Long-term bills of exchange to be settled reported as of 31 December 2006 refl ected the nominal value of bills of exchange issued in order to cover the due 

amount arising from the renovation and modernisation of the light section mill. Interest expense on these bills of exchange is recorded as a deferred ex-

pense. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, these bills of exchange are recorded as short-term trade payables. 

5.14.2. Short-Term Trade Payables   (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Short-term trade payables 

– Customers         

– Bills of exchange to be settled     

– Other payables    

Total         

Aging of Short-Term Trade Payables (CZK thousand)

Year Category Before due date Past due date Total 

 –  days  –  days  –  days  –  years  years and 

greater

 Short-term          – –   

 Short-term             

 Short-term            

Payables typically fall due for settlement within 30 days. Signifi cant payables past due more than 90 days predominantly arise from off set agreements in 

progress. 

Other Payables 

As of 31 December 2008, payables associated with social security and the state employment policy contribution amounted to CZK 89,379 thousand, heal-

th insurance payables totalled CZK 39,143 thousand. Th e Company has no outstanding social security or health insurance payables. Payables arising from 

additional pension scheme amounted to CZK 4,031 thousand as of 31 December 2008. 

Th e category State – tax payables and subsidies principally comprises valued added tax payables, income tax payable and received subsidies. 

Estimated payables mainly consist of unbilled supplies of work and services and an estimated amount for outstanding vacation days and annual bonu-

ses including insurance. 

Other payables primarily relate to deductions from employee salaries.
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5.14.3. Intercompany Payables  (CZK thousand)

Name of the entity Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

• Trade payables

Doprava TŽ, a.s.      

Kvalifi kační a personální agentura, v.o.s.   

Hutnictví železa, a.s.   

MORAVIA STEEL, a.s.         

Moravia Security, a.s. *    

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o.   

TRIALFA, s.r.o.      

TRISIA, a.s.     

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s.      

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o.      

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.      

VESUVIUS ČESKA REPUBLIKA, a.s.      

Beskydská golfová, a.s.   

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM, s.r.o. *    

Regionální inovační centrum Frýdek-Místek, s.r.o.   

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH   

Total short-term intercompany payables         

Other than intercompany payables           

Total short-term payables           

* Moravia Security, a.s. became part of the group on 15 February 2008 and VÍTKOVICE – Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o. changed its name to MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o.. 
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5.15. Deferred Tax Liability and Deferred Tax Asset 

5.15.1. Deferred Tax Liability 

In determining the deferred tax liability amount, the Group used the tax rate for the period in which the deferred tax liability is anticipated to be realised.

 (CZK thousand)

Deferred tax basis Tax rate in  Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Diff erence between tax and accounting net book value of fi xed assets  – – –   

Diff erence between tax and accounting net book value of fi xed assets  –   –   –

Diff erence between tax and accounting net book value of fi xed assets  – –  –

Diff erence between tax and accounting net book value of fi xed assets  –  – –

Re-measurement of securities available for sale  – – 

Re-measurement of securities available for sale   – –

Re-measurement of fi xed assets to fair value  – –  –

Re-measurement of assets to fair value charged against equity  – – – 

Re-measurement of assets to fair value charged against equity  –  – –

Accounting reserves  – –  

Accounting reserves  –   –

Accounting reserves    – –

Accounting reserves      –

Provisions  – –  

Provisions  –   –

Provisions     – –

Provisions      –

Outstanding default interest  – – –

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods  –   –

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods  – –  

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods    – –

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods    – –

Utilisable tax losses  – –  

Utilisable tax losses    – –

Unrealised gains on the intra  –   –

Unrealised gains on the intra    – –

Unrealised gains on inventory  – –  

Unrealised gains on intragroup sales of tangible fi xed assets  – –  

Unrealised gains on intragroup sales of tangible fi xed assets  –   –

Unrealised gains on intragroup sales of tangible fi xed assets    – –

Unrealised gains on intragroup sales of tangible fi xed assets      –

Total tax base –   –   –  

Deferred tax liability –  –  – 

  (CZK thousand)

Analysis of movements

 Jan  – 

Current changes charged to the profi t and loss account  

Current changes recognised in the balance sheet – 

 Dec  – 

New acquisition – 

Current changes charged to the profi t and loss account  

Current changes recognised in the balance sheet – 

 Dec  – 
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5.15.2. Deferred Tax Asset  (CZK thousand)

Tax rate in  Balance at 

 Dec  

Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Diff erence between tax and accounting net book value of fi xed assets     

Diff erence between tax and accounting net book value of fi xed assets  –   

Diff erence between tax and accounting net book value of fi xed assets  –   

Accounting reserves    

Expenses to be utilised in subsequent periods    

Provisions     

Provisions     

Utilisable tax losses     

Utilisable tax losses     

Utilisable tax losses     

Total tax base     

Deferred tax asset     

 (CZK thousand)

Analysis of movements

 January   

Current changes charged to the profi t and loss account – 

 December  

Current changes charged to the profi t and loss account  

 December   

5.16. Income Tax on Ordinary and Extraordinary Activity (CZK thousand)

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Profi t before tax         

Tax at the domestic income tax rate   ( ,  )       

Tax eff ect of expenses that are not allowable in determining taxable profi t –  –   

Tax reliefs –  –  –

Additional taxes of prior years –    – 

Corrections of estimates   – 

Total income tax on ordinary and extraordinary activities       
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5.17. Bank Loans and Borrowings 

5.17.1. Long-Term Bank Loans (CZK thousand)

Type of loan Currency Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Balance at  

Dec 

Interest rate in  Form of collateral at  Dec 

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK       Fixed . Movable assets, MS guarantee statement

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . ÖKB guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK      M PRIBOR + . Real estate, blank bill of exchange

Investment EUR      EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment CZK      M PRIBOR + . Letter of Comfort – Strojírny Třinec, a.s

Operating EUR     M EURORIBOR + . TŽ guarantee statements

Investment CZK       Fixed .  Real estate, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK       M PRIBOR + . Movable assets, MS guarantee statement

Investment CZK       M PRIBOR + . Immovable assets and movable assets, blank bill 

of exchange

Investment CZK       Fixed . Immovable assets and movable assets, blank bill 

of exchange

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . Movable assets, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK      M EURIBOR + .

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . Real estate, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK      PRIBOR + . Unprotested blank bill of exchange

Investment EUR      M PRIBOR +. Blank bill of exchange, pledged movable assets

Investment CZK      M PRIBOR + . Blank bill of exchange, pledged movable assets

Investment CZK     M PRIBOR +  Blank bill of exchange, pledged movable assets

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . CESCE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . UCB Czech Republic, a.s.

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . Komerční banka a.s. for investment

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK     M PRIBOR + . Real estate, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK     M EURIBOR + . Pledged receivables

Investment CZK     M PRIBOR +  Real estate, receivables

Total         
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5.17.2. Short-Term Bank Loans  (CZK thousand)

Type of loan Currency Balance at

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Balance at 

 Dec 

Interest rate in  Form of collateral at  Dec 

Investment CZK       Fixed . Movable assets, guarantee statement of MS, a.s.

Investment CZK       Fixed . Immovable and movable assets, blank bill 

of exchange

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . ÖKB guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . Hermes guarantee insurer

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . CESCE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR      M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Operating CZK      M PRIBOR + .

Operating CZK     M EURIBOR + . Guarantee statements of TŽ, a.s.

Investment CZK      M PRIBOR + .

Investment CZK      M EURIBOR + .

Investment CZK     

Investment CZK       M EURIBOR+ . Movable assets

Investment CZK       M EURIBOR+ .

Investment EUR       EURIBOR + .

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . Real estate, blank bill of exchange

Investment CZK       M PRIBOR + . Real estate, blank bill of exchange 

Investment CZK       Fixed .  Immovable and movable assets, blank bill 

of exchange

Investment CZK        M PRIBOR + . Movable assets, guarantee statement of MS

Investment CZK       PRIBOR + . Pledged movables, immovables and blank 

promissory note 

Investment EUR       M EURIBOR + . SACE guarantee insurer

Operating CZK    PRIBOR + .

Operating CZK      M PRIBOR + . Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK     M PRIBOR + . Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK      M PRIBOR + . Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK      M PRIBOR + . Blank bill of exchange, pledged real estate

Investment EUR     M EUROLIBOR + . KUKE guarantee insurer

Investment CZK     M PRIBOR +. Letter of Comfort Strojírny Třinec, a.s.

Investment CZK     M EURIBOR +.

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR +. Pledged movables, blank bills of exchange

Investment EUR     O/N PRIBOR +. Pledged movables, blank bills of exchange

Investment CZK     M EURIBOR +. Receivables

Investment CZK     M PRIBOR +. Real estate, receivables

Operating CZK     PRINOR +.

Investment CZK     M EURIBOR +. Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK     PRIBOR +. Blank bill of exchange, receivables

Operating CZK     PRIBOR + . Guarantee statements of TŽ,a.s. blank bill 

of exchange

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . Movable assets, blank bill of exchange

Operating CZK     PRIBOR + .

Operating CZK     PRIBOR + . Receivables, current account

Operating CZK     M PRIBOR + .

Operating CZK     M PRIBOR + .

Operating EUR     M EURORIBOR + . Guarantee statements of TŽ

Investment CZK     M PRIBOR + . Real estate, blank bill of exchange

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . EKN guarantee insurer

Investment EUR     M EURIBOR + . EKN guarantee insurer

Total CZK       

Repayment Schedule  (CZK thousand)

Years        In 

subsequent 

periods 

Total 

Loan instalments                          
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5.18. Temporary Liabilities  (CZK thousand)

 Dec   Dec   Dec 

Accrued expenses      

– Interest      

– Invoices, credit notes      

Deferred income     

Total accrued expenses and deferred income      

5.19. Other off Balance Sheet Liabilities 

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a. s.

Type of liability Aggregate amount at 

 Dec 

Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Parent company debt acceptance   CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

Guarantee statements

– to Group companies EUR  thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand –

Guarantees

– to other entities USD  thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

EUR  thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

CZK , thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand CZK , thousand

Collateralising blank bills of exchange

– to other entities    CZK , thousand

Th e Company was subject to an environmental audit which indicates the Companys liabilities relating to the environment. Pursuant to the audit, the 

Company entered into a contract with the Czech Property Fund for the settlement of expenses incurred for the settlement of the environmental liabilities 

before the privatisation up to CZK 514 million. As of 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company drew the funds in the amounts of CZK 335,735 

thousand, CZK 299,316 thousand and CZK 259,744 thousand, respectively. 

Given that the Company concluded an amendment to this contract with the Czech Republic – Ministry of Finance on 3 November 2008, the guaran-

tee of the Ministry amounts up to CZK 843.6 million. Th is guarantee covers environmental liabilities of the Company, therefore the reserve for environ-

mental burdens was released. 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. (CZK thousand)

Type of liability Aggregate amount Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec  Balance at  Dec 

Blank bills of exchange – 

collateral for long-term bank loans

       

Blank bills of exchange – 

collateral for overdraft loans

       

Total        

Th e company provides no guarantees for liabilities to third parties. 

Th e company holds the ČSN EN ISO 14001 certifi cate and successfully passed an EMS compliance audit in 2008 performed by EZU, a.s. Praha. Accor-

ding to the results of the audit, no extraordinary environmental expenses are anticipated to be incurred in the future periods. As of 31 December 2008, the 

company was involved in no signifi cant legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact the company.

Th e company is not aware of any material contingent losses. 

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.

Th e companys off -balance sheet records show payables of CZK 1,190 thousand arising from outstanding default interest charged until 2000. 

As of 31 December 2008, the company was involved in no signifi cant legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact the company.

As of 31 December 2008, there was no environmental audit of the company. As a result, the companys management cannot estimate contingent liabili-

ties pertaining to damage caused by prior activities or liabilities related to the prevention of potential future damage.

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.

Th e company received non-payment bank guarantees from Komerční banka, a.s. for the prepayments to customers. 

As of 31 December 2008, the company was involved in no signifi cant legal dispute, the outcome of which would signifi cantly impact the company.

At the balance sheet date, the company recorded future liabilities as a result of the contracted capital expenditure of CZK 19,433 thousand.

As of 31 December 2008, there was no environmental audit of the company. As a result, the companys management cannot estimate contingent liabili-

ties pertaining to damage caused by prior activities or liabilities related to the prevention of potential future damage.
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FERROMORAVIA,s.r.o.

As of 31 December 2008, the company was named as a defendant in a legal dispute regarding the payment of CZK 1,386 thousand in respect of the impaired 

ability of an employee to seek proper employment following the work injury of a leg. CZK 252 thousand of this amount was already paid by the inter-plea-

der, Kooperativa pojišťovna, a.s., which mediates the payment of the compensation. On 7 November 2007, the fi rst hearing was held and the plaintiff  was 

heard. Th e hearing on 20 February was adjourned to 26 March 2008. During the hearing held on that date, the court decided that a new expert opinion 

should be prepared. Such opinion has not been presented to the court to date. If the plaintiff  is successful, management of the Company anticipates that 

all costs, including the disputed sum, will be paid by Kooperativa pojišťovna, a.s. as indicated by the contract. 

As of 31 December 2008, there was no environmental audit of the company. As a result, the companys management cannot estimate contingent liabili-

ties pertaining to damage caused by prior activities or liabilities related to the prevention of potential future damage.

D 5, akciová společnost, Třinec

Th e company records the following off  balance sheet liabilities: loans collateralised by the blank bill of exchange and aggregate future receivables up to 

CZK 100 million. As of 31 December 2008, the company was involved in no legal dispute. Th e company records no environmental liabilities. 

As of the balance sheet date, the company records no material future payables arising from expenditure for tangible fi xed assets arising from conclu-

ded contracts. 

VUHŽ, a.s.

As of 31 December 2008, the company records no off  balance sheet liabilities, except for leases. 

As of 31 December 2008, the company was involved in a legal dispute for the amount of CZK 225 thousand regarding defects in the work on the renovation 
of bathrooms. The dispute has not been completed as of the balance sheet date, it is in progress with the Arbitration Court attached to the Economic Chamber 
of the Czech Republic and the Agricultural Chamber of the Czech Republic in Prague. 

Receivables of CZK 1,565 thousand are registered for recovery under bankruptcy proceedings. These receivables are provided for in full. 
As of the balance sheet date, the Company records no material future payables arising from expenditure for fi xed assets arising from concluded con-

tracts. 

Řetězárna, a.s.

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the company concluded forward contracts for the hedging of the exchange rate in 2009 and 2010 in the aggregate 

amount of EUR 2,300 thousand. Th e fair value measurement of these transactions was recognised in the profi t and loss account. 

Slévárny Třinec, a.s., REFRASIL, s.r.o., Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o. a H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.

Th e companies are unaware of any off  balance sheet liabilities as of 31 December 2008.

6. Additional Profit and Loss Account Information 

6.1. Income from Ordinary Activities

6.1.1. Th e Group’s Income from Ordinary Activities and Sale of Goods for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Activities Domestic Export Total

Metallurgic production        

Power generation     

Production of refractory material      

Foundry production        

Engineering production        

Sale of goods     

Services      

Change in inventory     

Capitalisation     

Total         

6.1.2. Th e Group’s Income from Ordinary Activities and Sale of Goods for 2007  (CZK thousand)

Activities Domestic Export Total

Metallurgic production        

Power generation     

Production of refractory material      

Foundry production       

Engineering production      

Sale of goods     

Services      

Change in inventory     

Capitalisation      

Total         
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6.1.3. Th e Group’s Income from Ordinary Activities and Sale of Goods for 2006 (CZK thousand)

Activities Domestic Export Total

Metallurgic production        

Power generation     

Production of refractory material      

Foundry production      

Engineering production       

Sale of goods      

Services      

Change in inventory     

Capitalisation     

Total         

6.2. Consumed Purchases and Good Sold  (CZK thousand)

    

Consumed material         

Consumed energy         

Goods sold      

Total consumed purchases         

6.3. Services  (CZK thousand)

  

Repairs and maintenance         

Transportation expenses      

Cooperation      

Leasing      

Right of use      

Promotion costs      

Rental      

Cleaning services      

Statutory audit          

Other services           

Total         

Other services largely include services which were outsourced in prior years (health security and protection, security guard services, training, cleaning 

and other auxiliary work).

6.4. Other Operating Income   (CZK thousand)

    

Contractual penalties and default interest        

Recoveries of receivables written off  and transferred      

Received subsidies      

Settlement of CO emission allowances in income under the National Allocation Plan        

Sundry operating income      

Total other operating income        

6.5. Other Operating Expenses  (CZK thousand)

    

Gifts      

Contractual penalties and default interest     

Other penalties and fi nes     

Write-off s of receivables and transferred receivables      

Sundry operating expenses      

Settlement of CO emission allowances in expenses under the National Allocation 

Plan

        

Defi cits and damage relating to operating activities      

Total other operating expenses        
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6.6. Grants 

Grants for operating purposes of CZK 6,026 thousand received in 2008 (CZK 7,860 thousand and CZK 3,025 thousand in 2007 and 2006, respectively) in-

clude grants for research purposes, and grants received from the Employment Offi  ce in prior years. 

In addition, the Group received allowances of CZK 6,893 thousand and CZK 25,423 thousand from the Ministry of Industry and Trade as of 31 Decem-

ber 2007 and 2006, respectively, designed to address the social implications of the steel industry restructuring eff orts.

Drawing of Allowed State Aid 

Th e state aid is provided both for operating and investment purposes. 

Until 2008, the Company received CZK 278,786 thousand and CZK 149,217 thousand for operating and investment purposes, respectively.

 (CZK thousand)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed state 

aid in  

(drawn) 

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed 

state aid in 

 (drawn)

Research and development            

Environment          

Education            

Total            

  (CZK thousand)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed state 

aid in  

(drawn)

Total eligible 

expenses until 

 Dec 

Total 

allowed state 

aid until 

 Dec  

(drawn)

Allowed state 

aid (received)

Returned 

allowed state 

aid 

Allowed 

state aid 

(to be drawn)

Research and development              

Environment             

Education              

Total               

 (CZK thousand)

Eligible 

expenses in 



Allowed state 

aid in  

(drawn)

Total eligible 

expenses until 

 Dec 

Total 

allowed state 

aid until 

 Dec  

(drawn)

Allowed state 

aid (received)

Returned 

allowed state 

aid 

Allowed 

state aid 

(to be drawn)

Research and development             

Environment           

Education           

Total             

Environmental and educational projects were completed as of 31 December 2007. Research and development projects were completed as of 30 June 2008. 

6.7. Extraordinary Income (CZK thousand)

    

Other   

Total extraordinary income   

6.8. Extraordinary Expenses  (CZK thousand)

  

Other   

Total extraordinary expenses   
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6.9. Related Party Transactions 

6.9.1. Income Generated with Related Parties 

Th e column Relation to the company is disclosed from the perspective of the parent company, TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.

2008 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

Kvalif. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity      

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity           

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o. Controlled entity        

TRIALFA, a.s. Controlled entity          

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity       

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity          

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity           

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Controlled entity        

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity        

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity      

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity      

Moravia Security, a.s. Controlled entity     

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o. Controlled entity      

ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE Controlled entity      

Regionální informační centrum Frýdek-Místek s.r.o. Controlled entity      

Total              

2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

Kvalif. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity      

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity             

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o. Controlled entity        

TRIALFA, a.s. Controlled entity          

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity         

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity          

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Controlled entity         

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity            

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Controlled entity        

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity      

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity      

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity      

Total             

2006 (CZK thousand)

Entity Relation 

to the company 

Goods Products Services Other 

income 

Financial 

income 

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

Kvalif. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity      

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity            

Reťaze Slovakia s.r.o. Controlled entity        

TRIALFA, a.s. Controlled entity          

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity         

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity            

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Controlled entity        

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity      

SILESIASLAG, a.s. Controlled entity      

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. Controlled entity      

Total            
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6.9.2. Purchases from Related Parties

Relation to the company (type of entity) is disclosed from the perspective of the parent company, TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.

2008 (CZK thousand)

Entity Type of entity Fixed 

assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Extraor-

dinary 

expenses

Total

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

Hutnictví železa, a.s. Controlled entity        

Kval. a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity      

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity              

Reťaze Slovakia, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity          

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity      

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity         

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity           

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity        

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity          

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity        

Moravia Security, a.s. Controlled entity        

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

CMC-Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Controlled entity      

Total              

2007 (CZK thousand)

Entity Type of entity Fixed 

assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       

Hutnictví železa, a.s. Controlled entity       

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity     

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity           

Reťaze Slovakia, s.r.o. Controlled entity       

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity       

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s. Controlled entity       

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity       

Total            

2006 (CZK thousand)

Entity Type of entity Fixed 

assets

Inventory Services Other 

expenses

Total 

Doprava TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity       

Hutnictví železa, a.s. Controlled entity       

Kvalifi kační a pers. agentura, o.p.s. Controlled entity     

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. Controlling entity           

Reťaze Slovakia, s.r.o. Controlled entity       

TRIALFA, s.r.o. Controlled entity        

TRISIA, a.s. Controlled entity       

TŘINECKÁ PROJEKCE, a.s. Controlled entity        

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. Controlled entity         

VESUVIUS ČR, a.s. Controlled entity       

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Controlled entity         

CMC Třinec Stahlhandel GmbH Controlled entity     

Beskydská golfová, a.s. Controlled entity     

Total            



A N N U A L  R E P O R T  T Ř I N E C K É  Ž E L E Z Á R N Y ,  a .  s .  2 0 0 8 107

7. Employees, Management and Statutory Bodies 

7.1. Staff Costs and Number of Employees

7.1.1. Staff  Costs and Number of Employees for 2008 (CZK thousand)

Company Average number of 

employees

Of which managers Total staff  costs Of which managers

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.        

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Strojírny Třinec, a.s..       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

REFRASIL, s.r.o.      

Řetězárna a.s.      

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.      

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.      

H&S PROGRESS, s.r.o.    

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o.      

D, a.s.      

VUHŽ, a.s.      

Total under full consolidation        

7.1.2. Staff  Costs and Number of Employees for 2007  (CZK thousand)

Company Average number of 

employees

Of which managers Total staff  costs Of which managers

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.        

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Strojírny Třinec, a.s..       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

REFRASIL, s.r.o.      

Řetězárna a.s.      

VVT VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s.      

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.      

H&S PROGRESS, s.r.o.     

ROLLSERVIS a.s.     

VÚHŽ a.s.      

VUHŽ NEMO a.s.    

Total under full consolidation        

7.1.3. Staff  Costs and Number of Employees for 2006 (CZK thousand)

Company Average number of 

employees

Of which managers Total staff  costs Of which managers

TŘINECKÉ ŽLEZÁRNY, a. s.       

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Strojírny Třinec, a.s..       

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.      

REFRASIL, s.r.o.      

Řetězárna, a.s.      

VVT VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s.      

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.      

Total under full consolidation        

7.2. Benefits Provided to Members of Statutory, Supervisory and Management Bodies

Set out below are the amounts of bonuses, advances, borrowings, other receivables, payables and other benefi ts in respect of members of the statutory, 

management and supervisory bodies:
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 (CZK thousand)

Company/benefi t   

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s.      

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution    

Liability insurance    

Bonuses      

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.      

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Liability insurance   

Bonuses   

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.      

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Liability insurance   

Bonuses   

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.   

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Liability insurance   

Bonuses   

REFRASIL, s.r.o.     

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution    

Liability insurance   

Bonuses   

FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o.    

Use of management cars   

Liability insurance   

Bonuses    

Řetězárna a.s.      

Bonuses      

Life insurance contribution   

Use of management cars   

Liability insurance   

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.     

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Bonuses   

H&S PROGRESS s.r.o.   

Liability insurance   

Bonuses   

ROLLSERVIS, a.s.   

Use of management cars   

Liability insurance   

Bonuses   

VÚHŽ NEMO, a.s.   

Bonuses   

D, a.s.   

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Bonuses   

VÚHŽ a.s.     

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Liability insurance   

Bonuses    

Šroubárna Kyjov, s.r.o.   

Use of management cars   

Life insurance contribution   

Bonuses   

Total      
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8. Post Balance Sheet Events 

On 21 January 2009, the Company increased its equity investment in ZAMECZEK BŁOGOCICE Spółka z ograniczoną odpowiedzialnością, Poland, by 

43 percent i.e. to a total of 88 percent. 

Th e Company entered into a contract leading to the control of METALURGIA S.A. based in Radomsk, Poland. Th e transaction will be completed fol-

lowing the fulfi lment of the suspensive conditions involving, among others, the receipt of approvals from the relevant anti-monopoly offi  ces. 
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Selected Capital Interests 
of Tinecké železárny, a. s.

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s.

Registered offi  ce: Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová 1024

ID: 47 67 58 96

Subscribed capital: CZK 1,680,000 thousand 

Share in registered capital: 100 percent

Th e company is an energy facility supplying a full range of energy and energy services to its customers. It supplies electricity, process steam, heat, fuel gas, 

compressed and blast air, and process, service and drinking water to Třinecké železárny and other companies as well as the communal sphere in the region 

of Třinec. It operates wastewater treatment plants and a sewerage system. In the environmental area, the company introduced a control system according 

to the ISO 14001 standard.

CZK’  *  

Equity         

Balance sum         

Revenues         

Profi t/Loss after tax      

Employees   

* unaudited results

Strojírny Třinec, a.s.

Registered offi  ce: Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová 1038

ID: 25 36 36 54

Subscribed capital: CZK 565,000 thousand

Share in registered capital: 100 percent

Th e company deals in the production of railway superstructures, manufacture and renovation of metallurgical rolls, as well as a wide range of general ma-

chinery production. Th e goal of the company is to maintain and strengthen its position on the market as the supplier of top quality products and services, 

especially parts for railways, rolls, forges, and machinery. Th e company has a quality control system in place according to the ČSN EN ISO 9001:2000 

standard and an environmental system according to ČSN EN ISO 14001.

Th e company owns a 100 percent share in FERROMORAVIA, s.r.o., which produces drawn steel.

CZK’  *  

Equity      

Balance sum       

Revenues         

Profi t/Loss after tax      

Employees       

* unaudited results

Slévárny Třinec, a.s.

Registered offi  ce: Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová 1001

ID: 25 83 07 16

Subscribed capital: CZK 550,000 thousand 

Share in registered capital: 100 percent

Th e company draws on a nearly 160-year tradition in the foundry industry in Třinecké železárny. Its key business activity is production and sales of ca-

stings of steel, gray iron, and to a lesser extent of non-ferrous metals. In recent years, the product portfolio has evolved into a range of products dedicated 

to the steel industry, construction machines, mining, machinery, and the automotive industry. Th e strategy of the company focuses on the valuation of the 

material inputs outside the TŽ – MS Group. Th e foundry has introduced a quality control system according to ISO 9001 and an environmental control 

system according to ISO 14001.

13.
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CZK’  *  

Equity      

Balance sum      

Revenues         

Profi t/Loss after tax      

Employees   

* unaudited results

VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.

Registered offi  ce: Ostrava-Vítkovice, Výstavní 1132

ID: 25 82 52 91

Subscribed capital: CZK 418,166 thousand

Share in registered capital: 100 percent

Th e company hot rolls seamless steel tubes using the Mannesmann technology. Th e production is characterised by the sophisticated technology of a wide 

portfolio of steel grades as well as the dimensions not only pursuant to the ČSN standard, but pursuant to the international DIN, ASTM, GOST, NFA, API 

standards as well. Th e company is certifi ed according to ISO 9001.

CZK’  *  

Equity      

Balance sum         

Revenues         

Profi t/Loss after tax –     

Employees   

*unaudited results

D 5, akciová společnost, Třinec

Registered offi  ce: Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová 1026

ID: 47 67 45 39

Subscribed capital: CZK 13,600 thousand

Share in registered capital: 100 percent

Th e essential mission of the company is the complex delivery of repairs of the steel making facilities regarding the engineering electrical and construction 

activities. Th anks to its highly skilled workers and technical equipment, the company is able to respond fl exibly to the needs of its customers not directly 

relating to maintenance and repair in Třinecké železárny. Th e company has implemented a quality control system pursuant to ČSN EN ISO 9001:2001 as 

well as an environmental system pursuant to ČSN EN ISO 14001.

CZK’  *

Equity  

Balance sum  

Revenues   

Profi t/Loss after tax  

Employees 

*unaudited results

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s o.

Registered offi  ce: Kyjov, Jiráskova 987

ID: 42 29 35 88

Subscribed capital: CZK 140,000 thousand

Share in registered capital: 100 percent

Th e company is a traditional producer of fastening material using the technology of hot forging processes. Th e product range includes products for 

railways, mines, construction, engineering as well as the automotive industry. Th e main production portfolio consists of screw spikes, construction scre-

ws, hook screws, railway fasteners, nuts, mine stirrups, and screws for special use such as rivets, tensors, anchor screws, insulator hooks etc. Th e company 

has been certifi ed pursuant to ISO 9001.
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CZK’  *

Equity  

Balance sum  

Revenues  

Profi t/Loss after tax  

Employees 

*unaudited results

H & S PROGRESS s.r.o.

Registered offi  ce: Dobrá 240

ID: 61 94 64 60

Subscribed capital: CZK 3,784 thousand

Share in registered capital: 100 percent

Th e company is the only shareholder of the joint stock company VÚHŽ, which is an established supplier for the automotive, steel, and machinery indu-

stries, and produces the automation technology, as well as facilities for secondary metallurgy.

CZK’  * 

Equity    

Balance sum    

Revenues    

Profi t/Loss after tax   

Employees 

* company not audited (preliminary results)

Řetězárna a.s.

Registered offi  ce: Česká Ves, Polská 48

ID: 47 67 20 81

Subscribed capital: CZK 10,200 thousand

Share in registered capital: 51 percent

Th e company is based in Česká Ves u Jeseníku and is the manufacturer of a wide assortment of chains from wire rod and bars produced predominantly in 

Třinecké železárny. Its product range consists of an extensive assortment of chain lengths for various applications, snow chains for trucks and cars, as well 

as protective and engagement chains. Th e company responds to changes in market requirements with new products, such as fi shing chains, cage-draw bars 

and lugs, and substitute items. Th e company is certifi ed according to ISO 9001 and ISO 14001.

CZK’  *  

Equity      

Balance sum      

Revenues      

Profi t/Loss after tax      

Employees   

* audited results

REFRASIL, s.r.o.

Registered offi  ce: Třinec-Konská, Průmyslová 720

ID: 48 39 58 62

Subscribed capital: CZK 510 thousand

Share in registered capital: 51 percent

Th e company belongs among the most signifi cant producers of refractory materials in the Czech Republic. Besides the production of refractory, it provides 

technical services concerning the application of refractory and renders complex technical services during installation of its materials at customers pre-

mises. Th e production range involves fi reclay and high alumina bricks, mixes, mortars, mastics, refractory castables and monolithic refractory castables. 

Th e company is a member of the European Association of Refractory Material Manufacturers and has implemented a quality control system according 

to ISO 9001.
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CZK’  *  

Equity      

Balance sum      

Revenues      

Profi t/Loss after tax       

Employees   

* unaudited results

VESUVIUS ČESKÁ REPUBLIKA, a.s.

Registered offi  ce: Třinec, Průmyslová 715

ID: 45 19 28 47

Subscribed capital: CZK 25,137 thousand

Share in registered capital: 40 percent

Th e companys activity focuses on the production and sale of special isostatically pressed ceramics for continuous steel casting such as plug sticks, scre-

ening tubes and teeming nozzles. Th e company was founded in compliance with the strategy of the international company Vesuvius, i.e. as close to the 

customer as possible, with ensured fl exibility in supplies of refractory material.

CZK’  *  

Equity      

Balance sum      

Revenues      

Profi t/Loss after tax      

Employees ???  

* audited results

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.

Registered offi  ce: Třinec-Staré Město, Průmyslová 1000

ID: 25 87 29 40

Subscribed capital: CZK 72,180 thousand 

Share in registered capital: 18 percent

Th e goal of the company is to fulfi l the long-term goal of the TŽ – MS Group through the building of product chains and achieving a higher grade of fi -

nalising the TŽ products. Th e product portfolio of the company consists of long rolled products and semis for a wide range of domestic as well as foreign 

customers. Th e company focuses on the production of high carbon and alloyed construction steel grades; stainless and tool steel grades are produced to 

a lesser extent.

CZK’  *  

Equity         

Balance sum         

Revenues          

Profi t/Loss after tax      

Employees   

* unaudited results



114 F I N A N C I A L  P A R T

Report on Related Party Transactions

TŘINECKÉ ŽELEZÁRNY, a.s., registered at Průmyslová 1000, 739 70 Třinec-Staré Město, corporate ID: 18050646, entered in the Register of Companies, 

Section B, File No. 146, maintained by the Regional Court in Ostrava (hereinafter the “Company”) together with the entities below (the “related parties”) 

forms a group in terms of the second sentence of Section 66a (7) of the Commercial Code.

Th e report on relations between the related parties was prepared in compliance with the provisions of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code for the 

year ended 31 December 2008 (the “accounting period”). 

I. DEFINITION OF RELATED PARTIES

A. Controlling Entities

MORAVIA STEEL a.s., Registered offi  ce: Průmyslová 1000, 73970 Třinec-Staré Město 

Corporate ID: 63474808 

Relation: Th e company is the Companys controlling entity acting in concert with FINITRADING a.s., which is another shareholder of the Company. 

MORAVIA STEEL a.s. is controlled by the entities below acting in concert under Section 66b (1) and Section 66b (2) (b) of the Commercial Code:

– FINITRADING, a.s. with its registered offi  ce at nám. Svobody 526, Třinec 73961, Corporate ID: 61974692

– R.F.G., a.s. with its registered offi  ce at nám. Svobody 526, Třinec 73961, Corporate ID: 63079658

FINITRADING, a.s., Registered at nám. Svobody 526, 73961 Třinec

Corporate ID: 61974692

Relation:  Th e company is the Companys controlling entity acting in concert with MORAVIA STEEL a.s., which is another shareholder of the Company. 

B. Other Related Parties

B.1. Companies Controlled by the Controlling Entities 

Moravia Steel AG Zug registered at Oberallmendstrasse 16, 6302 Zug, Switzerland 

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

MORAVIA STEEL IBÉRIA, S.A. registered at Campo Grande, 35 – 9. A, P-1700 Lisbon, Portugal

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

MORAVIA GOEL TRADE d.o.o., “in liquidation”, registered at Perkovčeva 48, 10430 Samobor, Croatia 

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

MORAVIA STEEL ITALIA s.r.l. registered at via Niccolini 26, 20154 Milan, Italy

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

MORAVIA STEEL SLOVENIJA d.o.o. registered at Valvazorjeva 14, 3000 Celje, Slovenia

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

CMC – TRINEC Stahlhandel, GmbH registered at Cliev 19, 51515 Kürten, Germany

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s. 

TRINEC – CMC LIMITED registered at Bradwall Court, Bradwall Road, Sandbach, Cheshire, CW11 1 GE, England

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Barrandov Televizní Studio a.s. registered at Kříženeckého nám. 322, Prague 5

Corporate ID 41693311

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Barrandov Studio a.s. registered at Kříženeckého nám. 322/5, 15200 Prague 5-Hlupočepy, Corporate ID: 28172469

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

14.
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Barrandov Lands a.s. registered at Kříženeckého nám. 322/5, 15200 Prague 5, Corporate ID: 27225674

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

MS – Slovensko s.r.o. registered at Palisády 56, 81106 Bratislava 

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

MORAVIA STEEL ISRAEL Ltd. registered at Petach Tikva 49511, 23 Efal St., P.O.B. 3286 Israel

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Beskydská golfová, a.s., registered at Ropice 415, 73956, Corporate ID 25352920

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s. 

Hanácké železárny a pérovny, a.s., registered at Dolní 100, 797 11 Prostějov, Corporate ID 26955342

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Moravia Steel Poland sp. z o.o., registered at Bobrecka 27, Cieszyn 43-400, Poland

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. registered at Průmyslová 1000, 73970 Třinec-Staré Město; Corporate ID 25872940

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s. and the Company acting in concert. 

B.2. Companies Controlled by the Company 

ENERGETIKA TŘINEC, a.s. registered at Průmyslová 1024, 73965 Třinec-Staré Město, Corporate ID: 47675896

Relation: company controlled by the Company

Strojírny Třinec, a.s. registered at Průmyslová 1038, 73965 Třinec-Staré Město, Corporate ID: 25363654

Relation: company controlled by the Company

Slévárny Třinec, a.s. registered at Průmyslová 1001, 73965 Třinec-Staré Město, Corporate ID: 25830716

Relation: company controlled by the Company

Třinecké gastroslužby, s.r.o. registered at Průmyslová 1035, 73965 Třinec-Staré Město , Corporate ID: 25838148

Relation: company controlled by the Company

SILESIASLAG, a.s. registered at Průmyslová 1032, 73965 Třinec-Staré Město, Corporate ID: 25893882

Relation: company controlled by the Company

Doprava TŽ, a.s. registered at Průmyslová 1008, 73965 Třinec-Staré Město , Corporate ID: 25398083

Relation: company controlled by the Company

TRIALFA, s.r.o. registered at ul. Míru 272, 73965 Třinec-Kanada, Corporate ID: 25839888

Relation: company controlled by the Company

Řetězárna a.s. registered at Polská 48, 79081 Česká Ves, Corporate ID: 47672081

Relation: company controlled by the Company 

TRISIA, a.s. registered at nám. Svobody 526, Třinec, District of Frýdek-Místek, 73965, Corporate ID: 64610152

Relation: company controlled by the Company

REFRASIL, s.r.o. registered at Průmyslová 720, Třinec-Konská 73965, Corporate ID 48395862

Relation: company controlled by the Company

Steel Consortium Partners, a.s. registered at Průmyslová 1000, 73970 Třinec-Staré Město; Corporate ID: 27242382

Relation: company controlled by the Company 

VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. registered at Výstavní 1132, Ostrava-Vítkovice, Corporate ID: 25825291

– On 1 April 2008 the company changed its name from VVT-VÍTKOVICE VÁLCOVNA TRUB, a.s. to VÁLCOVNA TRUB TŽ, a.s.

Relation: company controlled by the Company 
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H & S PROGRESS s.r.o. registered at Dobrá 240, 73951, Corporate ID: 61946460

Relation: company controlled by the Company 

MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ VÝZKUM s.r.o. registered at Pohraniční 693/31, 70602 Ostrava-Vítkovice, Corporate ID: 25870807

– On 27 February 2008 the Companys name was changed from VÍTKOVICE – Výzkum a vývoj, spol. s r.o. to MATERIÁLOVÝ A METALURGICKÝ 

VÝZKUM s.r.o.

Relation: company controlled by the Company 

Šroubárna Kyjov, spol. s r.o., registered at Jiráskova 987, 69732 Kyjov, Corporate ID: 42293588

Relation: company controlled by the Company since 8 April 2008

Moravia Security, a.s., registered at Průmyslová 725, 73965 Třinec-Konská, Corporate ID: 27835481

Relation: company controlled by the Company since 15 February 2008

D5, akciová společnost, Třinec, registered at Průmyslová 1026, 73965 Třinec-Staré Město,, Corporate ID: 47674539

Relation: company controlled by the Company since 20 June 2008

Soukromá střední škola Třinec, s.r.o., registered at Průmyslová 1000, 73970 Třinec-Staré Město, Corporate ID: 27856216

Relation: company controlled by the Company since 27 August 2008

Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. registered at Průmyslová 1000, 73970 Třinec-Staré Město , Corporate ID: 25872940

Relation: company controlled by MORAVIA STEEL a.s. and the Company acting in concert. 

II. DESCRIPTION OF THE RELATIONS

A. Definition of the Relation between Related Parties

a)  Th e relations in terms of the provisions of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code that were established in the accounting period between the Com-

pany and MORAVIA STEEL a.s. as the controlling company are presented below in section B hereof.

b)  Th e relations in terms of the provisions of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code that were established in the accounting period between the Com-

pany and FINITRADING, a.s. as the controlling entity are presented below in section C hereof.Th e relations in terms of the provisions of Section 66a 

(9) of the Commercial Code between the Company and R.F.G., a.s. were not established in the accounting period, i.e. no contracts were eff ected, no 

other legal acts were performed, and no measures were taken in terms of the above-mentioned provisions in the accounting period. 

c)  Th e relations in terms of the provisions of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code between the Company and other companies – except for Socho-

rová válcovna TŽ, a.s. and Beskydská golfová, a.s. – that are controlled by the controlling entities, were not established in the accounting period, i.e. 

no contracts were eff ected among the related parties, no other legal acts were performed and no measures were taken at the initiative or on behalf of 

the related parties. 

d)  Th e relations in terms of the provisions of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code that were established in the accounting period between the Com-

pany and Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. are presented below in section D hereof.

e)  Th e relations in terms of the provisions of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code that were established in the accounting period between the Com-

pany and Beskydská golfová, a.s., are presented below in section E hereof.

f)  Th e relations in terms of the provisions of Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code that were established in the accounting period between the Compa-

ny and the above-stated companies controlled by the Company are stated in the reports on relations of each of the controlled companies that prepare 

their reports separately, providing a detailed description of individual relations with the Company for the relevant accounting period. Th e Company 

incurred no damage as a result of the relationships. 

B. Description of the Companys Relations with the Controlling Entity, MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

Introduction 

a)  Th e principal contract applicable to the day-to-day business relations between the Company and MORAVIA STEEL a.s. is the General Commercial 

Contract of 30 December 2002 whereby both parties declared their common interest in the further development of their mutual business relations. Th is 

contract is updated for the relevant accounting period: 

aa) by the Master Contract mentioned below of 30 December 2002 for the sale area; and

ab) by the Contract for the Supply of Materials and Raw Materials mentioned below of 12 January 1999 for the purchase area.

Th e individual performances are presented in the partial purchase contracts executed pursuant to the above contracts for a particular product, amount, 

shape and type, the agreed upon price and performance deadline. Th e agreed upon prices respect the specifi c features of purchases and sales in the metal-

lurgic industry and take into account the elimination of foreign exchange risks, the adjustment of payment conditions, and business risks.

b) Due to the high number of contracts entered into during the accounting period, the report includes:

ba)  separate references to the individual contracts important for the relations between the Company and MORAVIA STEEL a.s., primarily the contracts 
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whereby the performance fee exclusive of VAT agreed upon in the contract amounted to no less than 1 percent of the Companys share capital within 

the day-to-day course of business relations, and 0.5 percent of the Companys share capital outside of day-to-day business relations; and

bb)  a collective reference to other contracts, mainly contracts whereby the performance fee is below the amount set out under section ba).

B.1 Sales and Other Performances Provided by the Company in Favour of the Controlling Entity, MORAVIA STEEL a.s.

B.1.1. Master Contract 

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 30 December 2002. Under the contract, as amended by Amendment 

No. 1 of 31 December 2004 and Amendment No. 2 of 30 June 2005, the Company agrees to sell its metallurgical products to the controlling entity. Partial 

sale contracts are prepared for individual performances. Th e prices for goods are arms length prices derived from market prices. 

During the accounting period ended 31 December 2008, the performance under the above contract and the underlying partial sale contracts with 

settlement in the form of invoices and credit notes for the sale of products, or expenses associated with complaints was provided for consideration of 

CZK 28,657,459 thousand. 

B.1.2. Licence Contract for the Use of the “Th ree Hammers in a Circle” Trademark

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 30 June 2002. Under the contract, as worded in the subsequent amen-

dments and appendices, the Company provided a non-exclusive right to the controlling entity to use the Companys trademark as part of the logo of MO-

RAVIA STEEL a.s. Th e right was provided for consideration. 

During the accounting period, the consideration for the right provided under the above contract amounted to CZK 123,000 thousand.

B.1.3. Contract on the Provision of Services 

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 1 January 2003. Under the contract, the Company provided the control-

ling entity with services involving building guards, fi re protection, postal services, archiving and documentation services, dispatch services, transport and 

customs clearance, information technology, selected technical services, pricing services, selected accounting services and complaint resolution services.

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 30,681 thousand.

B.1.4. Lease Contract 

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 9 March 2000. Under the contract, as amended by Amendment No. 1 

of 10 November 2005, Amendment No. 2 of 19 January 2006, Amendment No. 3 of 7 September 2006 and Amendment No. 4 of 24 October 2007, the lease 

right to real estate and non-residential premises and movable assets owned by the Company was agreed upon for the location of the controlling entitys 

registered offi  ce and business activities.

Th e rent and other payments arising from the above contract during the accounting period amounted to CZK 7,024 thousand.

B.1.5. Contract for the Provision of Telecommunications Services

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 31 December 1998 and was amended by Amendment No. 1 of 1 July 2002. 

Under the contract, the Company rendered telecommunications services to the controlling entity. 

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 4,514 thousand.

B.1.6. Other Performances Provided

During the accounting period, the Company provided the controlling entity with other performances under special contracts involving, for example, the 

sale of goods and other assets, provision of internet services or other services for a total consideration of CZK 5,922 thousand.

B.2. Purchases and Other Performances Provided by the Controlling Entity, MORAVIA STEEL a.s., in Favour 

of the Company

B.2.1. Purchase Contract for the Supply of Materials and Raw Materials

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 12 January 1999 and amended by Amendment No. 1 of 30 December 

2002. Under the contract, the Company agrees to purchase basic metallurgical raw materials, mainly ores, coal, fuels and metallurgical semi-fi nished pro-

ducts, from the controlling entity. Th e volume of the supplies and fees are specifi ed on a quarterly basis in the form of partial sale contracts. Th e contract 

was entered into for an indefi nite period of time.

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 21,650,283 thousand.

B.2.2. Master Forwarding Contract

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 30 December 2002. Under the contract, as worded in the subsequent 

amendments and appendices, the controlling entity agrees to provide transport for goods and to perform activities associated with such transport and to 

arrange for any other action necessary for the operation of national railway freight transport for the Company. Th e performance was provided on the basis 

of contractual prices agreed for one year with respect to a specifi c shipment and volume.

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 194,946 thousand.
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B.2.3. Mandate Contract 

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 1 July 2005 and amended by Amendment No. 1 of 1 December 2005 and 

Amendment No. 2 of 27 September 2007. Under the contract, the controlling entity, on behalf and on the account of the Company, agrees to deal with all 

business matters relating to the purchase of work and services necessary for performing the activity of the Company, primarily providing for the mainte-

nance and repairing of the production facility, technology, structures, land and other assets owned or used by the Company. 

 During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 215,566 thousand.

B.2.4. Mandate Contract

Th e contract between the Company and the controlling entity was entered into on 29 June 2007. Under the contract, the controlling entity, on behalf and 

on the account of the Company agrees to deal with business matters relating to the purchase of metal scrap category No. 170405 (Iron and Steel) complying 

with the requirements of ČSN 420030 (Steel and Alloy scrap) – i.e. scrap for the production needs of the Company, as well as to deal with the relating 

activities, in the scope and under the conditions defi ned in the mandate contract. 

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 191,845 thousand.

B.2.5. Other Performances Received

1.  Th e Company received other performances from the controlling entity under special contracts during the accounting period involving, for example, the 

provision of liability insurance, property insurance, insurance for the corporate body members, purchase of goods, lease rights and provision of other 

services totalling CZK 38,177 thousand.

2.  Th e controlling entity provided the Company with guarantees for its obligations under:

a) Th e guarantees for investment loan settlement of CZK 630,000 thousand:

Creditor: ČSOB, a.s.  CZK 180,000 thousand. Th e contract was eff ected on 31 March 2004.

ČSOB, a.s. CZK 150,000 thousand. Th e contract was eff ected on 31 March 2004.

Citibank, a.s. CZK 300,000 thousand. Th e contract was eff ected on 9 September 2004.

Th e controlling entity provided no performance under the guarantees. 

B.3. Other Contractual Relations

No other contractual relationships were established between the Company and the controlling entity under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code 

during the accounting period.

B.4. Other Legal Acts 

No other legal acts were performed within the relationship between the Company and the controlling entity under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial 

Code during the accounting period.

B.5. Other Measures 

No other measures were taken within the relationship between the Company and the controlling entity under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code 

during the accounting period.

C. Description of the Companys Relations with the Controlling Entity, FINITRADING a.s.

C.1. Sales and Other Performances Provided by the Company in Favour of the Controlling Entity, FINITRADING a.s.

C.1.1. Other Performances Provided

During the relevant accounting period, the Company provided performance in favour of the controlling entity, which involved the provision of other 

services in the amount of CZK 397. 

C.2. Other Contractual Relations

No other contractual relationships were established between the Company and the controlling entity under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code 

during the accounting period.

C.3. Other Legal Acts 

No other legal acts were performed within the relationship between the Company and the controlling entity under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial 

Code during the accounting period.

C.4. Other Measures 

No other measures were taken within the relationship between the Company and the controlling entity under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code 

during the accounting period.
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D. Description of the Companys Relations with Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.

D.1. Sales and Other Performances Provided by the Company in Favour of Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s.

D.1.1. Master Contract

Th e Company eff ected this contract with the company on 30 June 2002 and it was amended by Amendment No. 1 of 30 January 2004, Amendment No. 2 of 

29 October 2004 and Amendment No. 3 of 30 December 2005. Under the contract, as amended, the Company agrees to provide ingots, continuous ingots 

and billets as well as charges for the companys manufacturing programme. Partial sale contracts are executed for individual performances. Th e prices for 

goods are arms length prices derived from the prices for the relevant product mix under common commercial relationships. 

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract and the underlying partial sale contracts with settlement in the form of in-

voices and credit notes for the sale of products, or expenses associated with complaints was provided for consideration of CZK 4,386,643 thousand. 

D.1.2. Licence Contract for the Use of the “Th ree Hammers in a Circle” Trademark

Th e Company entered into the contract on 30 June 2002 which was amended by Amendment No. 1 of 19 March 2004. Under the contract, as amended, the 

Company provides a non-exclusive right to use the trademark for products as well as a non-exclusive right to use the Companys trademark as part of the 

logo of Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. Th e right was provided for consideration.

During the accounting period, the consideration for the right ensuing from the above contract amounted to CZK 99 thousand.

D.1.3. Contract for the Provision of Services

Th e contract between the Company and the company was executed on 2 January 2004. Under this contract, the Company provides services involving 

building guards, fi re protection, fi ling room, archiving and documentation services, information technology, selected technical services, selected accoun-

ting services, protection of the environment, payroll and personnel services, audit, marketing, and procurement services. 

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 8,040 thousand.

D.1.4. Lease Contract 

Th e Company executed the contract on 30 June 2002, as amended. Under the contract, as amended, the Company leases the tangible and intangible assets 

assigned for the operation of Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. to this company. 

During the accounting period, the consideration for the rental and other payments under the above contract amounted to CZK 1,467 thousand.

D.1.5. Contract for the Lease of Non-Residential Premises

Th e Company executed this contract on 13 May 2002, as subsequently amended by Amendment No. 1 of 5 December 2003, Amendment No. 2 of 1 May 

2004 and Amendment No. 3 of 14 April 2007. Under this contract, the Company acquires the right to lease non-residential premises. 

During the accounting period, the consideration for the lease and other services under the above contract amounted to CZK 34 thousand.

D.1.6. Other Performances Provided

During the accounting period, the Company provided other performances under special contracts involving, for example, the sale of goods and other 

assets or other services for an aggregate consideration of CZK 4,236 thousand.

D.2. Purchases and Other Performances Provided by Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. to the Company

D.2.1. Master Agreement No. 4600000076

Th e Company executed the contract on 9 January 2003, as subsequently amended by Amendment No. 1 of 30 August 2004, Amendment No. 2 of 31 January 

2005, Amendment No. 3 of 30 March 2006 and Amendment No. 4 of 28 February 2007. Under the contract, Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. agrees to deliver 

work to the Company involving heat treatment or other adjustments of rolled material necessary for technological reasons. 

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 42,068 thousand.

D.2.2. Mandate Contract

Th e Company executed the contract on 25 April 2005. Under the contract, Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. agrees to act on behalf of the Company in con-

nection with the sale of the Companys land in Kladno and, in parallel, to perform other work and activities relating to the appreciation of this land due to 

its preparation for a planned sale. 

During the accounting period, the performance under the above contract was provided for consideration of CZK 111 thousand.

D.2.3. Other Performances Received

Th e Company received other performances under special contracts during the accounting period involving, for example, the purchase of slag, scrap, other 

assets, material, and services in the aggregate amount of CZK 69,634 thousand. D.3. Other Contractual Relations 

During the accounting period, the Company and Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. established no other contractual relationships under Section 66a (9) of the 

Commercial Code.
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D.3. Other Contractual Relations 

During the accounting period, the Company and Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. established no other contractual relationships under Section 66a (9) of the 

Commercial Code.

D.4. Other Legal Acts 

No other legal acts were performed within the relationship between the Company and Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. under Section 66a (9) of the Commer-

cial Code during the accounting period.

D.5. Other Measures

No other measures were taken within the relationship between the Company and Sochorová válcovna TŽ, a.s. under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial 

Code during the accounting period.

E. Description of the Companys Relations with Beskydská golfová, a.s.

E.1. Sales and Other Performances Provided by the Company in Favour of Beskydská golfová, a.s. 

E.1.1. Other Performances Provided

During the accounting period, the Company provided other performances under contracts involving the provision of telecommunications and other ser-

vices for an aggregate consideration of CZK 171 thousand.

E.2. Purchases and Other Performances Provided by the Company to Beskydská golfová, a.s. 

E.2.1. Other Performances Received

Th e Company received other performances under special contracts during the accounting period involving the purchase of other services in the aggregate 

amount of CZK 1,630 thousand. 

E.3. Other Contractual Relations

During the accounting period, the Company and Beskydská golfová, a.s. established no other contractual relationships under Section 66a (9) of the Com-

mercial Code.

E.4. Other Legal Acts 

No other legal acts were performed within the relationship between the Company and Beskydská golfová, a.s. under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial 

Code during the accounting period.

E.5. Other Measures 

No other measures were taken within the relationship between the Company and Beskydská golfová, a.s. under Section 66a (9) of the Commercial Code 

during the accounting period.

III. OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF RELATIONS UNDER SECTION A  OF THE COMMERCIAL CODE

Th e Report presents all major contracts entered into during the accounting period as well as the total volume of received and provided performances 

within the relations between the Company and the controlling entities, and the Company and the entities controlled by the same controlling entities. Th e 

analyses of provided and received performances as shown in sections B, C, D and E indicate that all performances were provided under standard business 

conditions. Th e Company did not incur any damage as a result of the relations during the accounting period. 

In Třinec on 31 March 2009 ……………………………………  ………………………………………..

 Jiří Cieńciała Jaroslava Ciahotná

 Chairman of the Board of Directors First Vice-Chairwoman of the Board of Directors


